
City Council Workshop Agenda 
June 28, 2016 

Page 1 of 1 
 
 

 
 
 

City Council Workshop Agenda 
Tuesday, June 28, 2016 - 4:30 p.m. 

Smith Room, Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
 
 
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Discuss Growth Management Framework for the City of Belton. 
 
3. Receive an update on Ordinance regarding management of construction in public 

rights-of-way. 
 
4. Receive an update on Stormwater Public Education. 
 
5. Adjourn. 

 

 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time 
regarding any issue on this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



City Council Workshop 
June 28, 2016 

Growth Management Framework 



Background 
 Texas Municipal League (TML) hosted the 2016 Texas 

Municipal League Annexation Conference on May 12-13. 
 TML recommended each city adopt a growth management 

framework prior to beginning an annexation study.  
 Not a legal requirement, but from a policy perspective it is 

important to have a clear growth management framework. 
 Such a framework will provide background on issues, 

objectives, and policies that will be considered when 
addressing major growth and development issues. 

 Belton’s Strategic Plan identifies Development of a Growth 
Management Strategy as a Goal for FY2016.    
 



Annexation Authority 
 The City of Belton has the authority to annex areas within its 

extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) that are contiguous to the 
City limits. 

 City Council adopted the Annexation Plan by resolution in 
1999 and established all future annexations in the ETJ would 
comply with allowed exceptions, making Belton exempt 
from a three year annexation plan.  

 Areas located within the Belton ETJ are exempt from the 
annexation plan requirements because the Plan indicates no 
future annexation will contain more than 100 residentially 
developed tracts.  



Growth Management Strategies 
 Promote Economic Development 
 Stimulate local and regional economic growth and implement 

sound capital improvement programming. 
 Facilitate Long Range Planning 
 Manage development on the fringe of the City in accordance 

with the Comprehensive Plan.  
 Protect Future Development 
 Extend the City's land use standards and building codes to 

protect future development. 
 Foster Intergovernmental Cooperation 
 Alleviate jurisdictional conflicts with abutting municipal and 

county governments, and for coordinating service delivery 
arrangements with emergency response providers. 

 Consider boundary adjustments with adjacent municipalities. 



Growth Management Policy Statements 

 Evaluate areas for Annexation Based on Existing or Planned 
Level of Development 

 Address Service Delivery Needs 
 Protect Public Health, Safety, and Welfare 
 Facilitate Intergovernmental Regulations  
 Evaluate Fiscal Considerations 
 Offer the opportunity for Non-Annexation Development 

Agreements 



Recommendation 
 The proposed Growth Management Framework will set the 

stage for Council analysis and decision making to determine 
if annexation is the right choice for the City and affected 
property owners.   

 Recommend approval of a Resolution establishing a Growth 
Management Framework consistent with Belton’s 2016 
Strategic Plan.   
 



Proposed Amendment to the 
Ordinance Regarding 
Management of Construction in City 
Rights‐of‐Way
Council Workshop
June 28, 2016



Purpose of the Ordinance 

1. Assist in the management of utility facilities placed in, on or over the public rights‐of‐way to minimize 
the congestion, inconvenience, deterioration, visual impact, and the public costs from the locations in 
the public rights‐of‐way; 

2. Govern the use and occupancy of the public rights‐of‐way;

3. Protect the public health, safety and welfare;

4. Conserve the limited physical capacity of the public rights‐of‐way held in public trust by the city; 

5. Preserve the physical integrity of the streets and highways;

6. Control the orderly flow of vehicles and pedestrians when required for construction;

7. Keep track of the different entities using the public rights‐of‐way to prevent interference between 
them; 

8. Assist on scheduling common trenching and street cuts; and

9. Protect the safety, security, appearance and condition of the public rights‐of‐way.

Purpose of the Ordinance



Background
Non‐City owned/maintained facilities have been placed in the ROW

 Deterioration of roadways, interruptions in traffic flow





Ordinance 
Summary

1. Any person requesting to place facilities in the 
ROW must apply for a permit. 

2. Director of Public Works to review and 
approve. 

3. The City has priority over all other uses of the 
public rights‐of‐way. The City shall assign the 
location in or over the public rights‐of‐way 
among users of the public rights‐of‐way with 
due consideration.

4. Bonding and insurance are required.
5. Person to give 48‐hour notice of beginning 

construction. 
6. In emergency work, City Manager is to be 

notified immediately. 
7. Post‐construction, the person shall restore the 

ROW with 30 days. 
8. As‐built drawings are required. 
9. Warranty of work is 2 years. 

The ordinance as it stands 
provides a structure for the City 

to manage public ROW. 
However, in order to properly 
enforce and adequately protect 
public ROW, Staff proposes 
additions and revisions to the 
ordinance along with a formal 

permitting process.



Amending the Ordinance
INITIAL APPROACH

Developed entirely new ordinance. 

Used TML model ordinance to draft 
new City of Belton ROW Management 
Ordinance. 

Requested 2 rounds of comments from 
interested parties (70+, including 
TABA). 

Result: many comments and concerns 
with proposed new ordinance. 

FINAL APPROACH

Took a step back. 

Proposing revisions to existing 
ordinance with less stringent 
requirements. 

Requested review from interested 
parties.

Result: fewer comments, less 
resistance 



Purpose of the Ordinance 

Section 20‐143 Definitions
• Definition of Facilities: Included pipes, sidewalks, landscaping, light poles, temporary construction 

fencing, barricades, storage of materials such as soil, gravel, etc. 
• Clarified mailboxes, irrigation systems, and driveways are not included in this ordinance. 

Section 20‐144 Municipal authorization required
• Clarified that any person wishing for facilities to be placed, reconstructed, demolished, repaired, 

maintained, or altered within the ROW must receive approval from the Director of Public Works 
(Director). 

• Declared non‐City owned or maintained facilities shall not be located within the ROW, unless 
otherwise approved by the Director. 

Proposed Amendments to the Ordinance



Purpose of the Ordinance 

Section 20‐146 Construction obligations
• A traffic control plan may be required by the Director. 
• If approved to be placed in the ROW, any non‐City owned or maintained utilities are to be fully 

encased in steel pipe or concrete and access to such encasements shall be made outside of the 
ROW.

• A permit must be obtained at least three (3) business days prior to any work to be done in the 
ROW. 

• The ROW must be restored to at or better than the pre‐construction condition. 
• In the case of emergency work, the person shall apply for a permit on the first working day after 

the work has been completed. 

Section 147 Conditions of public ROW occupancy
• Clarified the City has the first priority over all other uses of the ROW.
• If the City were to obtain new ROW with existing utilities, the existing utilities may be required to 

be relocated at the direction of the Director. 

Proposed Amendments to the Ordinance



• Instead of creating a completely new ordinance, Staff modified existing ordinance

• No Permit Fee is not included at this time

• The ordinance does not apply to ETJ, only to City limits

• Specifications on the methods and when traffic control plans are required was not included

• Underground placement of facilities is encouraged but not required (TXU Electric v City of Allen)

• Heights of overhead utilities was not included – governed by other entities

 Next Steps:
A. Schedule consideration of the proposed ordinance amendment at July 12, 2016 meeting.
B. Staff to advise interested parties. 

Other Notes



Stormwater Public Outreach 
and Education

Council Workshop



MS4 PERMIT REQUIREMENT 
EDUCATION!

Residents 
 Water quality
 Household hazardous waste program

Visitors
 What is the City doing to promote water quality?

Local Businesses, Commercial and Industrial Facilities
 Focused literature on industrial, commercial, and automotive businesses
 Develop Business Recognition Program

Developers/Home Builders
 Construction related literature 

Future Leaders
 Art Contest
 Awareness Events



 

 

 

Together… 
The City of Belton is the community’s advocate and partner in promoting clean water. The 

City requires every construction project to incorporate stormwater protection measures like 
silt fencing and rock berms. Along with mowing and maintaining the City’s detention ponds 
and channels, City staff inspects and cleans storm drains before every heavy rain event to 

prevent debris from ending up in our creeks. City leaders evaluate every proposed 
development with the goal to protect and preserve the City’s stormwater system and creeks. 

Together… Cleaner	Streams,	a	Stronger	City

Six Simple Steps to Clean Water 
Help Keep Pollution Out of Storm Drains:

  Never dump anything down a storm sewer! 
 

Never Fertilize When Heavier Rain is in the Forecast:   

  Sweep, don’t hose, excess fertilizer onto the lawn! 
 

Carefully Dispose of Chemical and Oil:   

  Don’t top off when you fill up your gas tank! Soak up any oil spills! 
 

  Clean up After Your Pet: 

  Dispose of pet waste in a trash can! 
 

  Practice Good Car Care: 

Fix leaks promptly & wash your car on the grass or at a car wash! 
 

  Properly Dispose of Travel Trailer Waste: 

  Don’t dump any waste on the ground or in a storm drain! 

1.  

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

City of Belton

Stormwater Management Program 



City of Belton  
RECYCLING PROGRAM 

 
 
 
 
 

 

  
 Paper and cardboard must be dry and free of food debris. 

 Tissues, paper towels or other paper that has been in contact with food is not acceptable. 

 Make sure food contamination and caps are removed from cans and plastics and all containers are empty. 

 Separate plastic lids from plastic bottles (often made from different materials). 

 Do not place medical waste (needles, catheters or lancets) into the recycling containers. 
 

  

 
DO NOT INCLUDE: Food waste, Plastic Bags, Polystyrene Foam Cups & Containers, GLASS, Ceramics, 

      Hangers or Hazardous Waste 
(See reverse for information on recycling hazardous waste) 

  



City of Belton  
HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE PROGRAM 

 
 
 

 

Do you have used motor oil in your home? Used batteries? Old paint? Unwanted TV? 
 
There is a convenient and FREE service offered in your community for you to properly dispose and recycle home-generated special 
materials- safely, easily and responsibly. These items may include paints, spray paint, wood stain, household cleaners, compact 
fluorescent lamps (CFL), automotive products, gasoline, antifreeze, pesticide, insecticide, household and vehicle batteries, televisions, 
computers, DVD/CD players, desktop printers, and more, that can be conveniently picked up at your home by simply scheduling a 
collection. 
 

For a complete list of acceptable items, program guidelines and to schedule a home collection: 
 

Go to WMATYOURDOOR.COM, Call 1-800-449-7587, or Email ATYOURDOOR@WM.COM 
 

 

 

mailto:ATYOURDOOR@WM.COM


What is stormwater runoff?

Why is stormwater runoff
a problem?

The effects of pollution

Stormwater runoff occurs when precipitation
from rain or snowmelt flows over the ground.
Impervious surfaces like driveways, sidewalks,
and streets prevent stormwater from
naturally soaking into the ground.

Stormwater can pick up debris, chemicals, dirt, and other
pollutants and flow into a storm sewer system or directly to
a lake, stream, river, wetland, or coastal water. Anything that
enters a storm sewer system is discharged untreated into
the waterbodies we use for swimming, fishing, and providing
drinking water.

Polluted stormwater runoff can have
many adverse effects on plants, fish,
animals, and people.

Sediment can cloud the water
and make it difficult or
impossible for aquatic plants to
grow. Sediment also can

.

�

destroy aquatic habitats

Excess nutrients can cause
algae blooms. When algae die,
they sink to the bottom and decompose
in a process that removes oxygen from
the water. Fish and other aquatic
organisms can’t exist in water with low
dissolved oxygen levels.

Bacteria and other pathogens can wash
into swimming areas and create health
hazards, often making beach closures
necessary.

Debris—plastic bags, six-pack rings, bottles, and
cigarette butts—washed into waterbodies can choke, suffocate, or
disable aquatic life like ducks, fish, turtles, and birds.

Household hazardous wastes like insecticides, pesticides, paint,
solvents, used motor oil, and other auto fluids can poison aquatic life.
Land animals and people can become sick or die from eating diseased
fish and shellfish or ingesting polluted water.

Polluted stormwater often
affects drinking water
sources. This, in turn, can
affect human health and
increase drinking water
treatment costs.

�

�

�

�

�

AftertheStorm

EPA 833-B-03-002

January 2003

For more information contact:

or visit
www.epa.gov/npdes/stormwater

www.epa.gov/nps

ACitizen’sGuideto
UnderstandingStormwater

WHEN IT RAINS
IT DRAINS

WHEN IT RAINS
IT DRAINS

InternetAddress(URL)HTTP://www.epa.gov
Recycled/RecyclablePrintedWithVegetable

OilBasedInkson100%Postconsumer,
ProcessChlorineFreeRecycledPaper

●

●



Auto care
Washing your car and
degreasing auto parts at home
can send detergents and other
contaminants through the
storm sewer system. Dumping
automotive fluids into storm
drains has the same result as
dumping the materials directly
into a waterbody.

Pet waste
Pet waste can be
a major source of
bacteria and
excess nutrients
in local waters.

� When walking
your pet,
remember to pick up the
waste and dispose of it
properly. Flushing pet
waste is the best disposal
method. Leaving pet waste
on the ground increases
public health risks by
allowing harmful bacteria
and nutrients to wash into
the storm drain and
eventually into local
waterbodies.

Septic
systems
Leaking and
poorly
maintained
septic
systems release nutrients and
pathogens (bacteria and
viruses) that can be picked up
by stormwater and discharged
into nearby waterbodies.
Pathogens can cause public
health problems and
environmental concerns.

Lawn care
Excess fertilizers
and pesticides
applied to lawns
and gardens wash
off and pollute
streams. In
addition, yard
clippings and
leaves can wash
into storm drains and contribute
nutrients and organic matter to streams.

Education is essential to changing people's behavior.
Signs and markers near storm drains warn residents
that pollutants entering the drains will be carried
untreated into a local waterbody.

Recycle or properly dispose of household products that

contain chemicals, such as insecticides, pesticides, paint,

solvents, and used motor oil and other auto fluids.

Don’t pour them onto the ground or into storm drains.
�

�

Use a commercial car wash that treats or
recycles its wastewater, or wash your car on
your yard so the water infiltrates into the
ground.

Repair leaks and dispose of used auto fluids
and batteries at designated drop-off or
recycling locations.

�

�

�

�

Don’t overwater your lawn. Consider
using a soaker hose instead of a
sprinkler.

Use pesticides and fertilizers
sparingly. When use is necessary, use
these chemicals in the recommended
amounts. Use organic mulch or safer
pest control methods whenever
possible.

Compost or mulch yard waste. Don’t
leave it in the street or sweep it into
storm drains or streams.

Cover piles of dirt or mulch being
used in landscaping projects.

�

�

Inspect your system every
3 years and pump your
tank as necessary (every 3
to 5 years).

Don't dispose of
household hazardous
waste in sinks or toilets.

Dirt, oil, and debris that collect in
parking lots and paved areas can be
washed into the storm sewer system
and eventually enter local
waterbodies.

�

�

�

Sweep up litter and debris from
sidewalks, driveways and parking lots,
especially around storm drains.

Cover grease storage and dumpsters
and keep them clean to avoid leaks.

Report any chemical spill to the local
hazardous waste cleanup team.
They’ll know the best way to keep
spills from harming the environment.

Erosion controls that aren’t maintained can cause
excessive amounts of sediment and debris to be
carried into the stormwater system. Construction
vehicles can leak fuel, oil, and other harmful fluids
that can be picked up by stormwater and
deposited into local waterbodies.

�

�

�

Divert stormwater away from disturbed or
exposed areas of the construction site.

Install silt fences, vehicle mud removal areas,
vegetative cover, and other sediment and
erosion controls  and properly maintain them,
especially after rainstorms.

Prevent soil erosion by minimizing disturbed
areas during construction projects, and seed
and mulch bare areas as soon as possible.

Uncovered fueling stations allow spills to be
washed into storm drains. Cars waiting to be
repaired can leak fuel, oil, and other harmful
fluids that can be picked up by stormwater.

�

�

�

�

Clean up spills immediately and properly
dispose of cleanup materials.

Provide cover over fueling stations and
design or retrofit facilities for spill
containment.

Properly maintain fleet vehicles to prevent
oil, gas, and other discharges from being
washed into local waterbodies.

Install and maintain oil/water separators.

Lack of vegetation on streambanks can lead to erosion. Overgrazed pastures can also
contribute excessive amounts of sediment to local waterbodies. Excess fertilizers and
pesticides can poison aquatic animals and lead to destructive algae blooms. Livestock in
streams can contaminate waterways with bacteria, making them unsafe for human contact.

�

�

�

�

�

Keep livestock away from streambanks and provide
them a water source away from waterbodies.

Store and apply manure away from waterbodies and in
accordance with a nutrient management plan.

Vegetate riparian areas along waterways.

Rotate animal grazing to prevent soil erosion in fields.

Apply fertilizers and pesticides according to label
instructions to save money and minimize pollution.

Permeable Pavement

Rain Barrels

Rain Gardens and
Grassy Swales

Vegetated Filter Strips

—Traditional concrete and
asphalt don’t allow water to soak into the ground.
Instead these surfaces rely on storm drains to
divert unwanted water. Permeable pavement
systems allow rain and snowmelt to soak through,
decreasing stormwater runoff.

—You can
collect rainwater from
rooftops in mosquito-
proof containers. The
water can be used later on
lawn or garden areas.

—Specially
designed areas planted
with native plants can provide natural places for

rainwater to collect
and soak into the
ground. Rain from
rooftop areas or paved
areas can be diverted
into these areas rather
than into storm drains.

—Filter strips are areas of
native grass or plants created along roadways or
streams. They trap the pollutants stormwater
picks up as it flows across driveways and streets.

Residential landscaping

Improperly managed logging operations can result in erosion and
sedimentation.

�

�

�

�

�

Conduct preharvest planning to prevent erosion and lower costs.

Use logging methods and equipment that minimize soil disturbance.

Plan and design skid trails, yard areas, and truck access roads to
minimize stream crossings and avoid disturbing the forest floor.

Construct stream crossings so that they minimize erosion and physical
changes to streams.

Expedite revegetation of cleared areas.

Commercial

Stormwater Pollution Solutions

Construction
Agriculture Automotive

Facilities

Forestry



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Automotive Repair and Maintenance Businesses 

Stormwater Best Management Practices 

 Protect floor drains from discharges 

 Keep dumpster area clean and free of 

hazardous wastes 

 Never wash spilled material down storm 

drain or sanitary sewer drain 

 Use dry cleanup methods 

 Do not store drained vehicle fluids in 

open containers 

 Dispose of wastewater from closed‐loop 

flushing systems as hazardous waste 

 Never wash parts outdoors 

 Do not dispose of spent parts‐cleaning 

solution down the sanitary sewer, even if 

it is water‐based 

 Keep waste disposal records as required 

by hazardous waste regulations for 

inspection 

 Change all fluids indoors 

 Use drip pans and transfer to appropriate 

containers as soon as possible 

 Have absorbent pads and brooms on 

hand for spill response 

 Drain oil filters and other part containing 

fluids before recycling them 

 Use closed‐loop flushing systems to flush 

engines, radiators and transmissions to 

prevent discharges to the sanitary sewer 

 Avoid using spray‐on solvent brake 

cleaner 

 Consider purchasing an aqueous brake 

washer 

 Use water‐based cleaning products 

 Clean parts in a location equipped with 

drip pans, drain boards and drying racks 

 Avoid chlorinated solvents due to air 

quality and employee health concerns 

 

 Proteja de derrames las alcantarillas del suelo 

 Mantenga el área del contenedor, limpia y 

libre de desechos tóxicos o peligrosos 

 Nunca lave el material derramado en el 

desagüe pluvial o alcantarilla pluvial 

 Use métodos de limpieza en seco 

 No guarde líquidos de desecho de los 

vehículos en envases abiertos 

 Elimine las aguas residuales de los sistemas 

de drenaje como desechos peligrosos 

 Nunca lave las partes o refacciones afuera 

 No deseche las solución usada para la 

limpieza de las partes en las alcantarillas 

aunque sean solubles al agua 

 Mantenga un registro de los residuos de 

desecho de acuerdo con las regulaciones de 

desechos peligrosos para su inspección 

 Cambie todos los líquidos adentro 

 Use la cubeta de goteo o charola recolectora 

de aceite y transfiéralo a envases apropiados 

tan pronto como sea posible 

 Tenga a mano almohadillas o esponjas 

absorbentes y recipientes para usarlos en 

caso de derrame 

 Escurra los filtros de aceite y otras partes que 

contengan líquidos antes de reciclarlos 

 Use el sistema de inyección o limpieza de 

inyectores para purgar maquinas, radiadores 

y transmisiones y prevenir descargas al 

sistema de drenaje sanitario 

 Evite usar aerosoles solventes par la limpieza 

de frenos 

 Considere la compra de un limpiador de 

frenos acuosos 

 Uso productos de limpieza solubles al agua 

 Limpie las partes o refacciones en un lugar 

equipado con cubetas de goteo, escurrideros 

y rejillas de secado 

 Evite solventes que contengan cloro que 

dañan la calidad del aire y perjudican la salud 

de sus empleados 

   

City of Belton  

Stormwater Management Program 

P.O. Box 120 

Belton, TX 76513 

For more information, please call City of Belton Department of Public Works at (254) 933‐5823. 

www.beltontexas.gov 



Stormwater and the Construction Industry
Construction Phasing

Maintain your BMPs!

Good

Bad

• Sequence construction activities so that the soil is not 
exposed for long periods of time.

• Schedule or limit grading to small areas.

• Install key sediment control practices before site grading 
begins.

• Schedule site stabilization activities, such as landscaping, 
to be completed immediately after the land has been 
graded to its final contour.

Protect Natural Features

Good

Bad

• Minimize clearing.

• Minimize the amount of exposed soil. 

• Identify and protect areas where existing vegetation, such as 
trees, will not be disturbed by construction activity.

• Protect streams, stream buffers, wild woodlands, wetlands, 
or other sensitive areas from any disturbance or construction 
activity by fencing or otherwise clearly marking these areas.

• Protect and install vegetative buffers along waterbodies to 
slow and filter stormwater runoff.

• Maintain buffers by mowing or replanting periodically to 
ensure their effectiveness.

Vegetative Buffers

• Inspect and maintain silt fences after each rainstorm.

• Make sure the bottom of the silt fence is buried in the ground.

• Securely attach the material to the stakes.

• Don’t place silt fences in the middle of a waterway or use them as 
a check dam.

• Make sure stormwater is not flowing around the silt fence.

Site Stabilization

• Vegetate, mulch, or otherwise stabilize all exposed areas as 
soon as land alterations have been completed.

 

Silt Fencing

• Use rock or other appropriate material to cover the storm 
drain inlet to filter out trash and debris.

• Make sure the rock size is appropriate (usually 
1 to 2 inches in diameter). 

• If you use inlet filters, maintain them regularly.

• Cover or seed all dirt stockpiles. 

Dirt Stockpiles

Storm Drain Inlet Protection

• Rough grade or terrace slopes.

• Break up long slopes with sediment barriers, or under 
drain, or divert stormwater away from slopes.

• Remove mud and dirt from the tires of construction vehicles 
before they enter a paved roadway.

• Properly size entrance BMPs for all anticipated vehicles.

• Make sure that the construction entrance does not become 
buried in soil.

Slopes

Construction Entrances

Good

Bad

Good

Bad

Good

Bad

Good

Bad

Good

Bad

Good

Bad

Good

Bad

www.epa.gov/npdes/menuofbmps



Stormwater and the Construction Industry
Planning and Implementing Erosion and Sediment Control Practices

4. Certification and Notification
n Certify the Plan

n Submit permit application or notice of intent
Once the Plan has been developed, an authorized representative must sign 
it. Now is the time to submit the permit application or notice of intent. 
Your permit might require that the Plan be kept on site, so be sure to keep 
it available for the staff implementing the Plan. 

5. Implementing and 
Maintaining a Plan

n Implement controls

n Inspect and maintain controls

n Update/change the Plan

n Report releases of hazardous materials

A Plan describes the practices and activities you’ll use to prevent 
stormwater contamination and meet the NPDES permit requirements. 
Make sure that the Plan is implemented and that the Plan is updated as 
necessary to reflect changes on the site.

Erosion and sedimentation control practices are only as good as their 
installation and maintenance. Train the contractors that will install 
the BMPs and inspect immediately to ensure that the BMPs have been 
installed correctly.

Regularly inspect the BMPs (especially before and after rain events) and 
perform any necessary repairs or maintenance immediately. Many BMPs 
are designed to handle a limited amount of sediment. If not maintained, 
they’ll become ineffective and a source of sediment pollution.  

It’s also important to keep records of BMP installation, implementation, 
and maintenance. Keep track of major grading activities that occur on the 
site, when construction activities cease (temporarily or permanently), and 
when a site is temporarily or permanently stabilized.

If construction plans change at any time, or if more appropriate BMPs are 
chosen for the site, update the Plan accordingly.  

6. Completing the Project: 
Final Stabilization and 
Termination of the Permit

n Final stabilization

n Notice of Termination

n Record retention

Many states and EPA require a Notice of Termination (NOT) or other 
notification signifying that the construction activity is completed. An 
NOT is required when

• Final stabilization has been achieved on all portions of the site 
for which the permittee is responsible.

• Another operator has assumed control over all areas of the site 
that have not been finally stabilized. That operator would need 
to submit a new permit application to the permitting authority.

• For residential construction only, temporary stabilization of a 
lot has been completed prior to transference of ownership to the 
homeowner, with the homeowner being made aware of the need 
to perform final stabilization.

Permittees must keep a copy of their permit application and their Plan 
for at least 3 years following final stabilization. This period may be longer 
depending on state and local requirements.

So what’s being done about polluted runoff?
The Clean Water Act includes the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permitting program. 
As of January 2003, 44 states and territories are authorized to issue NPDES stormwater permits. If your state isn’t 
authorized to operate the NPDES stormwater permit program, EPA issues the permits. Permits vary from state to 
state, so contact your state or EPA for specific information. Your permitting authority has specific information on 
your state’s NPDES stormwater permit program. In general, construction permits require construction operators 
to do all of the following:

• Develop and implement a stormwater pollution prevention plan

• Submit a permit application or notice of intent (NOI) 

• Comply with the permit, including maintaining BMPs and inspecting the site

Under the NPDES program, construction activities that disturb 1 or more acres are required to obtain stormwater 
permit coverage. States have different names for the plans that construction operators must develop, such as

• Stormwater pollution prevention plan

• Erosion and sediment control plan

• Erosion control and stormwater management plan

• Stormwater management plan

• Water pollution control plan

• Pollution prevention plan

This document uses the term “Plan.”

I think I need a permit… Where do I start?
All land-disturbing activities, including clearing, grading, and excavation, that disturb 1 or more acres are required 
to be covered under a state or EPA-issued NPDES construction stormwater permit prior to land disturbance. Permit 
requirements vary by state. Begin by researching the specific requirements in your state. You might already be subject 
to local erosion and sediment control requirements, but that doesn’t release you from the requirements of the NPDES 
program at the state or EPA level. Although you must comply with both sets of requirements, in most cases they have 
been designed to be complementary. Contact your permitting authority to find out exactly what you need to do. A good 
place to start your search is the Construction Industry Compliance Assistance web site  at http://www.envcap.org/cica.

The NPDES permit requirements include small construction activities that are part of a larger common plan of 
development or sale, such as a single lot within a larger subdivision. For developments with multiple operators, all 
operators must have permit coverage for their individual parts of the larger development, no matter how large or 
small each operation happens to be. When there are multiple operators at one site, they’re encouraged to develop 
and share one comprehensive Plan and obtain permit coverage as co-permitees. 

The owner or operator of the construction site is responsible for complying 
with the requirements of the permit. Responsibilities include developing a Plan, 
obtaining permit coverage, implementing BMPs, and stabilizing the site at the 
end of the construction activity.

Determine your eligibility
All construction activity that disturbs 1 or more acres of land, as well as activity that disturbs less than 1 acre but is 
part of a larger common plan of development, must obtain permit coverage. 

Read and understand your stormwater permit requirements
Get a copy of the permit for construction activities and a permit application (or notice of intent form) from your 
state or EPA permitting authority. 

Develop a Plan
Most states do not require you to submit your Plan. However, you do need to keep the Plan on site. If that’s 
impractical, you may post a notice that tells where the Plan is kept so it can be accessed by the permitting authority 
and other interested parties. 

You’ll need to post a copy of your completed application on site. Put it in a place where the public can see it so 
they’ll know your site is covered by an NPDES permit!

Apply for permit coverage
Once you understand your permit requirements and have developed a Plan, you can submit a stormwater permit 
application (or notice of intent) to your permitting authority. This must be done before beginning any land 
disturbance on the site. Some states require a few days of lead time, so check with your permitting authority. Once 
you’ve submitted the application, you must satisfy the conditions of the permit.

Implement the Plan
Be prepared to implement the BMPs in your Plan before construction begins. Ensure that BMPs are properly 
maintained, and upgrade and repair them as necessary. 

Preconstruction Checklist 
• A site description, including

u Nature of the activity

u Intended sequence of major construction activities

u Total area of the site

u Existing soil type and rainfall runoff data

u A site map with:
£ Drainage patterns

£ Approximate slopes after major grading

£ Area of soil disturbance

£ Outline of areas which will not be disturbed

£ Location of major structural and nonstructural soil erosion 
controls

£ Areas where stabilization practices are expected to occur

£ Surface waters

£ Stormwater discharge locations

u Name of the receiving water(s)

• A description of controls:

u Erosion and sediment controls, including

£ Stabilization practices for all areas disturbed by construction

£ Structural practices for all drainage/discharge locations

u Stormwater management controls, including

£ Measures used to control pollutants occurring in stormwater 
discharges after construction activities are complete

£ Velocity dissipation devices to provide nonerosive flow conditions 
from the discharge point along the length of any outfall channel

u Other controls, including

£ Waste disposal practices that prevent discharge of solid materials

£ Measures to minimize offset tracking of sediments by construction 
vehicles

£ Measures to ensure compliance with state or local waste disposal, 
sanitary sewer, or septic system regulations

u Description of the timing during the construction when measures will 
be implemented

• State or local requirements incorporated into the Plan

• Inspection and maintenance procedures for control measures identified in 
the Plan

• Contractor certification and Plan certification

An ounce of prevention is worth a pound of cure! It’s far more efficient and cost-
effective to prevent pollution than it is to try to correct problems later. Installing and 
maintaining simple BMPs and pollution prevention techniques on site can greatly 
reduce the potential for stormwater pollution and can also save you money!

Developing and Implementing a Plan
You must have a Plan that includes erosion and sediment control and pollution prevention BMPs. These Plans require

• Advance planning and training to ensure proper implementation of the BMPs

• Erosion and sediment control BMPs in place until the area is permanently stabilized 

• Pollution prevention BMPs to keep the construction site “clean”

• Regular inspection of the construction site to ensure proper installation and maintenance of BMPs

Fortunately, the practices and measures that must be included in your Plan are already part of the standard operating procedures at many construction sites.

Six steps are associated with developing and implementing a stormwater Plan. There’s a wealth of information available on developing pollution 
prevention plans. Please contact your permitting authority for help in finding additional guidance materials, or visit www.epa.gov/npdes/stormwater. A 
sample construction plan is available at www.epa.gov/npdes/pubs/sample_swppp.pdf.

1. Site Evaluation and Design Development
n Collect site information

n Develop site plan design

n Prepare pollution prevention site map

The first step in preparing a Plan is to define the characteristics of the site and the type of construction that will occur. This involves collecting site 
information, identifying natural features that should be protected, developing a site plan design, describing the nature of the construction activity, and 
preparing a pollution prevention site map.

2. Assessment
n Measure the site area

n Determine the drainage areas

n Calculate the runoff coefficient
The next step is assessing the impact the project will have on stormwater runoff. Determine the drainage areas and estimate the runoff amounts and 
velocities. For more information on calculating the runoff coefficient, go to www.epa.gov/npdes/pubs/chap02_conguide.pdf, page 11.

3. Control Selection and Plan Design
n Review and incorporate state or local requirements

n Select erosion and sediment controls

n Select other controls

n Select stormwater management controls

n Indicate the location of controls on the site map

n Prepare an inspection and maintenance plan

n Coordinate controls with construction activity

n Prepare sequence of major activities
In the third step you’ll actually document your procedures to prevent and control polluted stormwater runoff. You must delineate areas that will not be 
disturbed, including critical natural areas like streamside areas, floodplains, and trees. You must also identify the measures (or BMPs) you’ll use to protect 

these areas. 

Phasing your project to minimize the amount of exposed 
soil at any given time is a highly effective way to prevent 
erosion. Erosion control measures designed to prevent 
soil from being mobilized include diversions to route 
stormwater away from exposed soils and stabilization 
with vegetation, mulch, and geotextiles. Sedimentation 
control measures designed to remove sediment from 
stormwater or prevent it from leaving the site include 
silt fences, sediment traps, and diversions.

You’ll need to select erosion and sediment controls—
including stabilization measures for protecting dis-
turbed areas and structural controls for diverting run-
off and removing sediment—that are appropriate for 
your particular site. The appropriateness of the control 
measures will depend on several factors, but will be 
influenced most directly by the site characteristics. 
Some stabilization measures you might consider are 
temporary seeding, permanent seeding, and mulching. 
Structural control measures include earth dikes, silt 
fences, and sediment traps. No single BMP will meet 
all of the erosion and sedimentation control needs of a 
construction site. A combination of BMPs is necessary. 
For more information on the types of BMPs appropri-
ate for your construction site, see the BMP fact sheet 
series available at www.epa.gov/npdes/menuofbmps.

Soil erosion control tips…
• Design the site to infiltrate stormwater into the ground and to keep it out of storm drains. Eliminate 

or minimize the use of stormwater collection and conveyance systems while maximizing the use of 
stormwater infiltration and bioretention techniques.

• Minimize the amount of exposed soil on site.
u To the extent possible, plan the project in stages to minimize the amount of area that is bare and 

subject to erosion. The less soil exposed, the easier and cheaper it will be to control erosion.

u Vegetate disturbed areas with permanent or temporary seeding immediately upon reaching final 
grade.  

u Vegetate or cover stockpiles that will not be used immediately.  

• Reduce the velocity of stormwater both onto and away from the project area.
u Interceptors, diversions, vegetated buffers, and check dams are a few of the BMPs that can be used 

to slow down stormwater as it travels across and away from the project site.

u Diversion measures can also be used to direct flow away from exposed areas toward stable 
portions of the site. 

u Silt fences and other types of perimeter filters should never be used to reduce the velocity of 
runoff.

• Protect defined channels immediately with measures adequate to handle the storm flows expected.
u Sod, geotextile, natural fiber, riprap, or other stabilization measures should be used to allow the 

channels to carry water without causing erosion. Use softer measures like geotextile or vegetation 
where possible to prevent downstream impacts.

• Keep sediment on site.
u Place aggregate or stone at construction site vehicle exits to accommodate at least two tire 

revolutions of large construction vehicles. Much of the dirt on the tires will fall off before the 
vehicle gets to the street. 

u Regular street sweeping at the construction entrance will prevent dirt from entering storm drains. 
Do not hose paved areas.

u Sediment traps and basins are temporary structures and should be used in conjunction with other 
measures to reduce the amount of erosion.

• Maintaining all BMPs is critical to ensure their effectiveness during the life of the project.
u Regularly remove collected sediment from silt fences, berms, traps, and other BMPs.

u Ensure that geotextiles and mulch remain in place until vegetation is well established.

u Maintain fences that protect sensitive areas, silt fences, diversion structures, and other BMPs.

Other BMPs and Activities to Control Polluted Runoff
You’ll need to select other controls to address potential pollutant sources on your site. Construction materials, debris, trash, fuel, paint, and stockpiles become pollution 
sources when it rains. Basic pollution prevention practices can significantly reduce the amount of pollution leaving construction sites. The following are some simple 
practices that should be included in the Plan and implemented on site:

• Keep potential sources of pollution out of the rain as practicable (e.g., inside a building, covered with plastic or tarps, or sealed tightly in a leak-proof container).

• Clearly identify a protected, lined area for concrete truck washouts. This area should be located away from streams, storm drain inlets, or ditches and should be cleaned 
out periodically.

• Park, refuel, and maintain vehicles and equipment in one area of the site to minimize the area exposed to possible spills and fuel storage. This area should be well away 
from streams, storm drain inlets, or ditches. Keep spill kits close by and clean up any spills or leaks immediately, including spills on pavement or earthen surfaces.  

• Practice good housekeeping. Keep the construction site free of litter, construction debris, and leaking containers. Keep all waste in one area to minimize cleaning.

• Never hose down paved surfaces to clean dust, debris, or trash. This water could wash directly into storm drains or streams. Sweep up materials and dispose of them in 
the trash. Never bury trash or debris!

• Dispose of hazardous materials properly.

Erosion and 
sedimentation control 

practices are only 
as good as their 
installation and 

maintenance.

Best Management Practice (BMP)
A BMP is a method used to prevent or control stormwater runoff and the discharge of pollutants, including sediment, into 

local waterbodies. Silt fences, inlet protection, and site-stabilization techniques are typical BMPs on a construction site. 

Operator
An operator is someone who has control over and the ability to modify construction plans and specifications (e.g. owner, 

general contractor)

 or

Someone who has control over the day-to-day operations at a site (e.g., owner, general contractor) that are necessary 

to ensure compliance with the permit requirements. It is the responsibility of a construction site owner or operator to 

contain stormwater runoff and prevent erosion during all stages of a project. 

There may be more than one person at a site who meets these definitions and must apply for permit coverage. (States 

may have different definitions of the term “operator.”)

Implementation Checklist 
• Maintain records of construction activities, including

u Dates when major grading activities occur

u Dates when construction activities temporarily cease on the site or 
a portion of the site

u Dates when construction activities permanently cease on the site or a 
portion of the site

u Dates when stabilization measures are completed on the site

• Prepare inspection reports summarizing

u Name of person conducting BMP inspections

u Qualifications of person conducting BMP inspections

u BMPs/areas inspected

u Observed conditions

u Necessary changes to the Plan

• Report releases of reportable quantities of oil or hazardous materials

u Notify the National Response Center at 800-424-8802 immediately

u Report releases to your permitting authority immediately, or as 
specified in your permit. You must also provide a written report 
within 14 days.

u Modify the Plan to include

£ The date of release

£ Circumstances leading to the release

£ Steps taken to prevent reoccurrence of the release

• Modify Plan as necessary

u Incorporate requests of the permitting authority to bring the Plan into 
compliance

u Address changes in design, construction operation, or maintenance 
that affect the potential for discharge of pollutants

Visit www.epa.gov/npdes/stormwater for more information.
EPA 833-H-03-001
April 2003
Recycled/Recyclable
Printed with vegetable-based ink on paper that contains a 
minimum of 50% post-consumer fiber content processed chlorine-free.

T he construction industry is a critical participant in the nation’s efforts to protect streams, rivers, lakes,
 wetlands, and oceans. Through the use of best management practices (BMPs), construction site operators are 

the key defense against erosion and sedimentation.

As stormwater flows over a construction site, it picks up pollutants like sediment, debris, and chemicals. High 
volumes of stormwater can also cause stream bank erosion, and destroy downstream aquatic habitat. Preventing soil 
erosion and sedimentation is an important responsibility at all construction sites.

In addition to the environmental impact, uncontrolled erosion can have a significant financial impact on a 
construction project. It costs money and time to repair gullies, replace vegetation, clean sediment-clogged storm 
drains, replace poorly installed BMPs, and mitigate damage to other people’s property or to natural resources.

Construction sites that discharge 
unpermitted stormwater are in 
violation of the Clean Water Act 
and may be subject to fines of up 
to $27,500 a day per violation.



 CITY OF BELTON
Business Stormwater Management 

Only Rain...Down the Storm Drain 

WHAT IS STORMWATER? 
Stormwater is water runoff from precipitation 

that flows across the ground and pavement when 

it rains or when snow and ice melt.  The water 

seeps into the ground or drains into what we call 

storm sewers.  These are the drains you see at 

street corners or at low points on the sides of 

streets.  Collectively, the draining water is called 

stormwater runoff. 

BUSINESS SOLUTIONS TO 

STORMWATER POLLUTION 
Businesses need to be aware that things they do 

or products they use in their daily operations can 

enter the stormwater system and effect our water 

sources. Runoff from construction sites, spills at 

fueling areas and chemicals used to keep 

outdoor areas clean can be picked up by 

rainwater and whisked into the storm sewer 

system.  

Vehicle wastes are among the many common 

stormwater pollutants that can degrade water 

quality. Stormwater runoff from vehicle 

maintenance and repair wastes has been found to 

contain high concentrations of metals, organics, 

oil and grease. When these wastes wash into our 

waters they can kill aquatic organisms. Metals 

such as chromium, cadmium, lead, and zinc 

have the potential to contaminate drinking water 

supplies as well as bioaccumulation in aquatic 

life. Organics such as engine degreasers, 

cleaners, and other solvents can also degrade 

water quality. 

Business Guide for Clean Stormwater Do’s & Don'ts 

All Businesses 

 Implement a recycling program to reduce the amount of litter that may end up in 

the nearby creeks. 

 Regularly service your business vehicles to prevent oil leaks and take your 

business vehicles to the car wash instead of washing in the lot. 

Construction/Landscape Activities 
Use filter fabric or hay to block sediment or other construction runoff from 

entering into the storm drain.  Do not rinse or clean cement or heavily soiled 

trucks near a storm drain. 



Sweep up the grass clippings after mowing the lawn.  Do not leave them in the 

street.  Do not blow leaves in the street that may eventually clog storm drains. 

 Use Pesticides and fertilizers sparingly, avoid excess to prevent polluted runoff. 

Automotive Repair & Service 

 Use drip pans or buckets to contain or catch oil leaks. 

 Properly label all hazardous waste containers and dispose of hazardous waste 

properly. 

 Regularly inspect, maintain and service your containment units to prevent 

leakage. 

Food Service/Restaurant 

 Regularly inspect, maintain and service your grease traps.  Do not clean filters or 

traps on pavement where the grease and detergents may runoff to a storm drain. 

 Sweep up litter and debris from the sidewalk and curb to prevent litter build-up 

in front of storm drains. 

Office/Retail/Child Care/Other Services 

 Sweep up litter and debris from the sidewalk and curb to prevent litter build up 

in front of storm drains. 

Public/Private Facilities with Swimming Pool and/or Detention Basins 



 

Discharge chlorinated pool water on pervious surfaces at a rate allowable for 

infiltration that does not cause erosion.  Do not discharge chlorinated pool water 

down storm drains or directly into the creek. 

Use due diligence in inspecting and maintaining detention basins. 

To report spills, dumping or discharges of 

pollutants into the street, stormwater system or 

streams, contact the following: 

Public Works at (254) 933-5823
Code Enforcement at (254) 933-5820
Email us at: publicworks@beltontexas.gov

For more information, visit our website
www.beltontexas.gov

Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality (TCEQ)

www.tceq.texas.gov

1502 Holland Road  • Belton, Texas 76513  •  P:  254.933.5823  • www.beltontexas.gov  •  publicworks@beltontexas.gov

STORMWATER DRAINAGE AREA SIGNAGE 
These signs bring awareness that the area is a drainage 
site and that floodwaters may rise unexpectedly. The City 
of Belton has installed nearly 25 signs at the City's major 
detention ponds. 
If you would like to request a sign to be placed near a 
drainage area, please email us the proposed location at 
publicworks@beltontexas.gov.





1

CLEAN STREETS MEAN 
CLEAN STREAMS

Inexpensive to implement
and easy to use, 
   BMPs help you to do 
        your share to protect 
            the environment.

1. Sweep Regularly and Employ Dry Methods for Cleaning

Routinely sweep paved areas to remove and pick up silt, sand, dirt, debris, and litter for 
proper disposal as solid waste into a dumpster or trash receptacle.  

Avoid using water to hose down dirty sidewalks, bays, and other paved areas to prevent 
washing debris, silt, grease, and detergents into storm drains and streams.  

Use dry methods (such as granular or fabric absorbent products) to clean up spilled or 
leaked oil, grease or chemicals.  Absorbents should be selected based on the type of 
chemical that was spilled.  Spent absorbents must be picked up after use and properly 
disposed.

Spot clean stains where necessary to remove oil, grease or chemical residues.  Take steps to 
limit water usage when spot cleaning to reduce the production of wastewater.  If wastewater 
is generated, collect and properly dispose of the liquid into a drain connected to a 
wastewater treatment system or sanitary sewer, according to local code. 

When sweeping alone is insufficient or your area is too large, use a cleaning machine.  
Cleaning machines can be leased as needed or a cleaning contractor can be hired. 
Wastewater from these activities must be disposed at approved locations.

•
 

•
 

•
 

•

 
 

•

Sediment and debris in the 
water make it difficult for 
fish to breath, just like 
smoke in the air makes it 
difficult for humans to 
breath.

The term Best Management Practice (BMP) refers to practices or 
measures used to control water pollution that keep our rivers and 
streams as clean as possible.  BMPs can be employed at commercial, 
residential and industrial sites to help control and prevent stormwater 
runoff pollution.  While many simple BMPs are inexpensive to 
implement, other BMPs are more costly.  The Clean Water Partners 
program promotes using simple and less costly Good Housekeeping 
BMPs to prevent stormwater from picking up debris, wastes and 
chemical pollutants.  Good Housekeeping BMPs are common sense 
measures that help businesses manage site activities and operations to 
control pollution.  When employed, these BMPs prevent materials and 
wastes from being exposed to stormwater, thereby preventing 
stormwater runoff pollution.  

“Treatment” BMPs include structures and devices specifically designed to remove pollutants in 
stormwater runoff.  Treatment BMPs generally are more costly and involve methods of mechanically 
trapping or chemically altering pollutants in stormwater runoff, prior to stormwater being discharged 
off site.

BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPs)...
What are They?

        GOOD HOUSEKEEPING PRACTICES
Your Business Should Employ

Control dirt and disturbed earth to prevent soil erosion, which clogs stormwater grates, 
drains and conveyances and causes sediment pollution in waterways by employing the following 
erosion control measures: 

Temporary Erosion Control Measures:  These measures may include placing straw 
mulch, organic mulches, erosion control fabrics, or rock on areas during grading, 
construction, landscaping, and earth moving activities.

Permanent Erosion Control Measures: 
(1) Regrade to reduce the slope of the ground and to slow speed of flowing water; 
(2) Plant well-adapted grasses, ground covers, and plants with good root systems to hold 
soil in place and improve stormwater percolation into the ground; and 
(3) Place stone or rock on disturbed areas to prevent soil from washing away.  Mulch can 
help control erosion depending upon slope and force of runoff.  

(Obtain information from local 
conservation district or municipality 
for acceptable erosion control 
practices.)

Treatment BMPs, also called structural BMPs, refer to structural methods and devices designed to 
remove or treat pollutants that have been picked up by stormwater runoff flowing across a site.  
Treatment BMPs should be considered and implemented when good housekeeping practices alone 
are not sufficient in preventing stormwater runoff pollution.  Treatment BMPs are designed by an 
engineer and can be installed or constructed on site to address site-specific conditions and 
activities.  Treatment structures designed to filter oil and grease from parking lot runoff include    
oil-water separators, sand filters, and stormceptors.  Treatment BMPs can also include biological 
treatment methods such as wetponds, biofiltration swales, and constructed wetlands that use 
selected plants and vegetation to absorb and trap certain pollutants.  All treatment BMPs require 
ongoing inspection and maintenance to ensure proper functioning and, generally, are more 
expensive to implement and maintain than Good Housekeeping BMPs.

More information about treatment BMPs, including design and inspection guidelines, can be 
obtained from your county or local conservation district office, state environmental protection 
agency, or your municipality.

•

6

TREATMENT BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES
When are They Needed?



5

8. Stock Spill Control and Cleanup Supplies 

Stock and maintain adequate supplies of spill cleanup materials (including 
absorbent granules, fabrics and pads; containers/bags; brooms and dustpans; and 
vacuum equipment) in locations accessible to where spills and leaks are likely to 
occur.  

Familiarize all employees, subcontractors, and delivery personnel with spill 
control and clean up procedures for materials handled on site, including the 
proper disposal of spent clean up materials. 

Display clean up procedures as a reminder, especially for infrequent activities (i.e., 
periodic refueling and restocking).  

Know special handling, clean up and disposal procedures for hazardous 
materials/wastes used on site.   Check with manufacturers, product labels, and 
product Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS).

9. Educate Employees, Contractors, & Customers 

Educate your employees, suppliers, subcontractors, and customers about stormwater pollution 
control and associated responsibilities.  

Label stormwater inlets (i.e., storm drains) as a reminder that pollutants entering a storm 
drainage system discharge to nearby waterways.  

Inform employees at staff meetings or training sessions about good housekeeping practices and 
procedures to control stormwater runoff pollution. 

Consider offering incentives that encourage adherence to good housekeeping practices.

10. Use Plantings to Help Control Stormwater Runoff Pollution 

Maintain vegetation and landscaping in sloped 
areas and around the site since plants (native 
grasses, wildflowers, shrubs, and trees), as well 
as the soil they grow in, have the capacity to 
filter pollutants in stormwater runoff.  
 
Seek opportunities for stormwater to soak 
into the ground and be absorbed by soil and 
plants by directing rainwater, gutters and 
downspouts into stabilized and planted areas.  
Ensure areas where stormwater is being 
directed are well situated away from building 
foundations.   Areas suitable for passive 
stormwater infiltration include those with 
little or no pedestrian and vehicular traffic, 
and areas that are level and well stabilized 
with vegetation or rock.

•
 
 
•

•
 

•

 
•

 
•

•
 
 

•

•
 

•

2. Cover, Contain, & Elevate Materials

Cover outdoor storage containers with leak proof lids 
that fit securely to contain contents and materials.

Ensure storage containers, particularly waste storage 
containers, are leak proof.  

Materials and wastes stored outdoors should remain 
contained and covered when not in use.

Elevate materials stored outside using platforms or 
wood pallets to prevent direct contact with runoff. 

Locate certain activities under a cover or roof, such 
as an overhanging awning, a lean-to structure, or a 
stand-alone canopy.  These activities include fueling 
and maintenance of vehicles; battery, hazardous 
material, and salvage storage.

Use stormwater diversion methods like barriers, berms, and curbing or constructed devices, to 
redirect stormwater runoff away from stored materials and stockpiles.  

Use temporary covers, such as tarps, for materials that do not have permanent coverage or 
containment.  Plastic tarps must impermeable and well anchored to prevent them from blowing 
away.  (Check guidelines in your municipality.) 

Control easily dissolved and eroded materials, such as earth or soil, using temporary seeding or 
other stabilization methods. 
 
Use secondary containment, including drip pans/trays, catch basins, curbing, or containers, to 
collect and contain materials in the event a primary storage container (i.e., fuel tank, holding  
tank) is breached, overflows or leaks.  (Know local requirements for hazardous materials 
stored on site.)

Capture pollutants before runoff enters 
storm drains or streams.  Employ 
temporary or permanent treatment 
practices, as necessary, to filter and 
treat any polluted runoff that cannot be 
captured.  (Check guidelines in your 
municipality.)

•
 
 
•
 

•
 

•

•

 
 

•

•

•

•

2

•



3. Relocate Activities Away from Surface Drainage Paths

Locate outdoor activities likely to pollute stormwater runoff (i.e., waste storage, 
material/product storage, processing and cleaning activities) as far away as possible from 
stormwater flow paths, including downspouts, gutters, ditches, depressions, and channels where 
stormwater collects, flows and drains.  

Locate outdoor activities on higher elevations to provide employees more time to recognize 
and clean up spilled materials before they reach stormdrains or streams.

Locate fueling activities on an impervious surface (i.e., concrete pad) to prevent any spilled fuel 
from soaking into the ground. 

6. Inspect Outdoor Areas Regularly to Identify Maintenance Needs

Visually inspect all outdoor areas (parking lots, 
loading bays, walkways, waste storage) to check for 
residues, stains or traces of pollutants on paved 
surfaces, around stormwater conveyances and 
structures, and ports and valves. 

Replace leaking, corroded, or otherwise 
deteriorating outdoor storage containers, facilities, 
or structures to prevent release or discharge of 
materials and wastes that can pollute stormwater 
runoff.  

Conduct periodic visual inspections to remove 
blockages in stormwater conveyances and 
structures (storm drains, gutters, grates, catch 
basins, basins, and ponds) to ensure their proper 
function.  Inspections should always be conducted 
following storm events. 

Clean stormwater conveyances and structures on a 
regular basis to prevent the transport of 
accumulated sediment and debris from entering 
receiving waters.  

Routine maintenance and cleaning of stormwater facilities should always include removing 
pollutants, not flushing them into storm drains and receiving waters.  (Check telephone 
directory to identify contractors providing pollutant removal services.)
 

7. Eliminate Illicit Connections to Storm Drainage System
 
If unsure about where a drain or wastewater discharges, have a licensed plumber verify that 
indoor drains properly discharge to a sanitary treatment system or other approved system 
where wastewater is treated to remove dirt and contaminants.  “Illicit connections,” as they are 
often called, improperly connect indoor plumbing to storm drainage systems and streams.  
Illicit connections to storm drainage systems are often from floor drains, slop sinks, and boilers, 
facility heating and cooling systems, and production processes. These occurrences are common 
in older buildings and can easily persist unnoticed for years.

Wastewater containing chemicals, residues, pesticides, oil, and grease should be disposed or 
discharged into an approved treatment system.  

•
 
 

•
 

•
 

•

•

 
 

•

•

3 4

“Pesticides” include a 
large group of chemical 
products, designed to 
control or kill “pests” 
including mold, mildew, 
bacteria, plants, weeds, 
insects, and rodents. 

4. Reduce or Avoid Certain Activities

Reschedule activities (i.e., painting, mixing chemicals or fertilizing) when rain or snow are likely 
to occur.  If an activity cannot be rescheduled, take extra precautions to prevent stormwater 
runoff pollution.  

Discontinue activities on sites where good housekeeping practices are not feasible or effective.  
For example, in lieu of washing vehicles on site, take vehicles to a commercial car wash that 
collects and treats wastewater.  Lease enclosed storage space for supplies, overstock and 
salvage, when on-site space is limited or inadequate.

5. Limit Use of Toxic Products and Materials

Seek non-toxic or alternative products and practices for cleaning, pest control, and degreasing.  
For example, steam cleaning systems that use water, mild detergents, and mechanical action, 
rather than solvents, may be an alternative to some cleaning and degreasing activities.

Keep inventory to a minimum by purchasing only amounts needed for the foreseeable future.

Consider possible cost savings associated with non-toxic product use compared to both the 
purchase and disposal costs of products containing toxic chemicals.

•
 
 

•
 

•

•

•

The Federal Clean Water Act 
prohibits illicit discharges into 
stormwater drainage systems.

•
 
 

•

•



3. Relocate Activities Away from Surface Drainage Paths

Locate outdoor activities likely to pollute stormwater runoff (i.e., waste storage, 
material/product storage, processing and cleaning activities) as far away as possible from 
stormwater flow paths, including downspouts, gutters, ditches, depressions, and channels where 
stormwater collects, flows and drains.  

Locate outdoor activities on higher elevations to provide employees more time to recognize 
and clean up spilled materials before they reach stormdrains or streams.

Locate fueling activities on an impervious surface (i.e., concrete pad) to prevent any spilled fuel 
from soaking into the ground. 

6. Inspect Outdoor Areas Regularly to Identify Maintenance Needs

Visually inspect all outdoor areas (parking lots, 
loading bays, walkways, waste storage) to check for 
residues, stains or traces of pollutants on paved 
surfaces, around stormwater conveyances and 
structures, and ports and valves. 

Replace leaking, corroded, or otherwise 
deteriorating outdoor storage containers, facilities, 
or structures to prevent release or discharge of 
materials and wastes that can pollute stormwater 
runoff.  

Conduct periodic visual inspections to remove 
blockages in stormwater conveyances and 
structures (storm drains, gutters, grates, catch 
basins, basins, and ponds) to ensure their proper 
function.  Inspections should always be conducted 
following storm events. 

Clean stormwater conveyances and structures on a 
regular basis to prevent the transport of 
accumulated sediment and debris from entering 
receiving waters.  

Routine maintenance and cleaning of stormwater facilities should always include removing 
pollutants, not flushing them into storm drains and receiving waters.  (Check telephone 
directory to identify contractors providing pollutant removal services.)
 

7. Eliminate Illicit Connections to Storm Drainage System
 
If unsure about where a drain or wastewater discharges, have a licensed plumber verify that 
indoor drains properly discharge to a sanitary treatment system or other approved system 
where wastewater is treated to remove dirt and contaminants.  “Illicit connections,” as they are 
often called, improperly connect indoor plumbing to storm drainage systems and streams.  
Illicit connections to storm drainage systems are often from floor drains, slop sinks, and boilers, 
facility heating and cooling systems, and production processes. These occurrences are common 
in older buildings and can easily persist unnoticed for years.

Wastewater containing chemicals, residues, pesticides, oil, and grease should be disposed or 
discharged into an approved treatment system.  

•
 
 

•
 

•
 

•

•

 
 

•

•

3 4

“Pesticides” include a 
large group of chemical 
products, designed to 
control or kill “pests” 
including mold, mildew, 
bacteria, plants, weeds, 
insects, and rodents. 

4. Reduce or Avoid Certain Activities

Reschedule activities (i.e., painting, mixing chemicals or fertilizing) when rain or snow are likely 
to occur.  If an activity cannot be rescheduled, take extra precautions to prevent stormwater 
runoff pollution.  

Discontinue activities on sites where good housekeeping practices are not feasible or effective.  
For example, in lieu of washing vehicles on site, take vehicles to a commercial car wash that 
collects and treats wastewater.  Lease enclosed storage space for supplies, overstock and 
salvage, when on-site space is limited or inadequate.

5. Limit Use of Toxic Products and Materials

Seek non-toxic or alternative products and practices for cleaning, pest control, and degreasing.  
For example, steam cleaning systems that use water, mild detergents, and mechanical action, 
rather than solvents, may be an alternative to some cleaning and degreasing activities.

Keep inventory to a minimum by purchasing only amounts needed for the foreseeable future.

Consider possible cost savings associated with non-toxic product use compared to both the 
purchase and disposal costs of products containing toxic chemicals.

•
 
 

•
 

•

•

•

The Federal Clean Water Act 
prohibits illicit discharges into 
stormwater drainage systems.

•
 
 

•

•



5

8. Stock Spill Control and Cleanup Supplies 

Stock and maintain adequate supplies of spill cleanup materials (including 
absorbent granules, fabrics and pads; containers/bags; brooms and dustpans; and 
vacuum equipment) in locations accessible to where spills and leaks are likely to 
occur.  

Familiarize all employees, subcontractors, and delivery personnel with spill 
control and clean up procedures for materials handled on site, including the 
proper disposal of spent clean up materials. 

Display clean up procedures as a reminder, especially for infrequent activities (i.e., 
periodic refueling and restocking).  

Know special handling, clean up and disposal procedures for hazardous 
materials/wastes used on site.   Check with manufacturers, product labels, and 
product Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS).

9. Educate Employees, Contractors, & Customers 

Educate your employees, suppliers, subcontractors, and customers about stormwater pollution 
control and associated responsibilities.  

Label stormwater inlets (i.e., storm drains) as a reminder that pollutants entering a storm 
drainage system discharge to nearby waterways.  

Inform employees at staff meetings or training sessions about good housekeeping practices and 
procedures to control stormwater runoff pollution. 

Consider offering incentives that encourage adherence to good housekeeping practices.

10. Use Plantings to Help Control Stormwater Runoff Pollution 

Maintain vegetation and landscaping in sloped 
areas and around the site since plants (native 
grasses, wildflowers, shrubs, and trees), as well 
as the soil they grow in, have the capacity to 
filter pollutants in stormwater runoff.  
 
Seek opportunities for stormwater to soak 
into the ground and be absorbed by soil and 
plants by directing rainwater, gutters and 
downspouts into stabilized and planted areas.  
Ensure areas where stormwater is being 
directed are well situated away from building 
foundations.   Areas suitable for passive 
stormwater infiltration include those with 
little or no pedestrian and vehicular traffic, 
and areas that are level and well stabilized 
with vegetation or rock.

•
 
 
•

•
 

•

 
•

 
•

•
 
 

•

•
 

•

2. Cover, Contain, & Elevate Materials

Cover outdoor storage containers with leak proof lids 
that fit securely to contain contents and materials.

Ensure storage containers, particularly waste storage 
containers, are leak proof.  

Materials and wastes stored outdoors should remain 
contained and covered when not in use.

Elevate materials stored outside using platforms or 
wood pallets to prevent direct contact with runoff. 

Locate certain activities under a cover or roof, such 
as an overhanging awning, a lean-to structure, or a 
stand-alone canopy.  These activities include fueling 
and maintenance of vehicles; battery, hazardous 
material, and salvage storage.

Use stormwater diversion methods like barriers, berms, and curbing or constructed devices, to 
redirect stormwater runoff away from stored materials and stockpiles.  

Use temporary covers, such as tarps, for materials that do not have permanent coverage or 
containment.  Plastic tarps must impermeable and well anchored to prevent them from blowing 
away.  (Check guidelines in your municipality.) 

Control easily dissolved and eroded materials, such as earth or soil, using temporary seeding or 
other stabilization methods. 
 
Use secondary containment, including drip pans/trays, catch basins, curbing, or containers, to 
collect and contain materials in the event a primary storage container (i.e., fuel tank, holding  
tank) is breached, overflows or leaks.  (Know local requirements for hazardous materials 
stored on site.)

Capture pollutants before runoff enters 
storm drains or streams.  Employ 
temporary or permanent treatment 
practices, as necessary, to filter and 
treat any polluted runoff that cannot be 
captured.  (Check guidelines in your 
municipality.)

•
 
 
•
 

•
 

•

•

 
 

•

•

•

•

2

•



1

CLEAN STREETS MEAN 
CLEAN STREAMS

Inexpensive to implement
and easy to use, 
   BMPs help you to do 
        your share to protect 
            the environment.

1. Sweep Regularly and Employ Dry Methods for Cleaning

Routinely sweep paved areas to remove and pick up silt, sand, dirt, debris, and litter for 
proper disposal as solid waste into a dumpster or trash receptacle.  

Avoid using water to hose down dirty sidewalks, bays, and other paved areas to prevent 
washing debris, silt, grease, and detergents into storm drains and streams.  

Use dry methods (such as granular or fabric absorbent products) to clean up spilled or 
leaked oil, grease or chemicals.  Absorbents should be selected based on the type of 
chemical that was spilled.  Spent absorbents must be picked up after use and properly 
disposed.

Spot clean stains where necessary to remove oil, grease or chemical residues.  Take steps to 
limit water usage when spot cleaning to reduce the production of wastewater.  If wastewater 
is generated, collect and properly dispose of the liquid into a drain connected to a 
wastewater treatment system or sanitary sewer, according to local code. 

When sweeping alone is insufficient or your area is too large, use a cleaning machine.  
Cleaning machines can be leased as needed or a cleaning contractor can be hired. 
Wastewater from these activities must be disposed at approved locations.

•
 

•
 

•
 

•

 
 

•

Sediment and debris in the 
water make it difficult for 
fish to breath, just like 
smoke in the air makes it 
difficult for humans to 
breath.

The term Best Management Practice (BMP) refers to practices or 
measures used to control water pollution that keep our rivers and 
streams as clean as possible.  BMPs can be employed at commercial, 
residential and industrial sites to help control and prevent stormwater 
runoff pollution.  While many simple BMPs are inexpensive to 
implement, other BMPs are more costly.  The Clean Water Partners 
program promotes using simple and less costly Good Housekeeping 
BMPs to prevent stormwater from picking up debris, wastes and 
chemical pollutants.  Good Housekeeping BMPs are common sense 
measures that help businesses manage site activities and operations to 
control pollution.  When employed, these BMPs prevent materials and 
wastes from being exposed to stormwater, thereby preventing 
stormwater runoff pollution.  

“Treatment” BMPs include structures and devices specifically designed to remove pollutants in 
stormwater runoff.  Treatment BMPs generally are more costly and involve methods of mechanically 
trapping or chemically altering pollutants in stormwater runoff, prior to stormwater being discharged 
off site.

BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPs)...
What are They?

        GOOD HOUSEKEEPING PRACTICES
Your Business Should Employ

Control dirt and disturbed earth to prevent soil erosion, which clogs stormwater grates, 
drains and conveyances and causes sediment pollution in waterways by employing the following 
erosion control measures: 

Temporary Erosion Control Measures:  These measures may include placing straw 
mulch, organic mulches, erosion control fabrics, or rock on areas during grading, 
construction, landscaping, and earth moving activities.

Permanent Erosion Control Measures: 
(1) Regrade to reduce the slope of the ground and to slow speed of flowing water; 
(2) Plant well-adapted grasses, ground covers, and plants with good root systems to hold 
soil in place and improve stormwater percolation into the ground; and 
(3) Place stone or rock on disturbed areas to prevent soil from washing away.  Mulch can 
help control erosion depending upon slope and force of runoff.  

(Obtain information from local 
conservation district or municipality 
for acceptable erosion control 
practices.)

Treatment BMPs, also called structural BMPs, refer to structural methods and devices designed to 
remove or treat pollutants that have been picked up by stormwater runoff flowing across a site.  
Treatment BMPs should be considered and implemented when good housekeeping practices alone 
are not sufficient in preventing stormwater runoff pollution.  Treatment BMPs are designed by an 
engineer and can be installed or constructed on site to address site-specific conditions and 
activities.  Treatment structures designed to filter oil and grease from parking lot runoff include    
oil-water separators, sand filters, and stormceptors.  Treatment BMPs can also include biological 
treatment methods such as wetponds, biofiltration swales, and constructed wetlands that use 
selected plants and vegetation to absorb and trap certain pollutants.  All treatment BMPs require 
ongoing inspection and maintenance to ensure proper functioning and, generally, are more 
expensive to implement and maintain than Good Housekeeping BMPs.

More information about treatment BMPs, including design and inspection guidelines, can be 
obtained from your county or local conservation district office, state environmental protection 
agency, or your municipality.

•

6

TREATMENT BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES
When are They Needed?



City of Belton 
~ Public Works ~ 

 
 

P.O. Box 120  Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5823  
 
 

Clean Water Advocates (CWA) 
Business Recognition Program 

 
Clean Water Advocates (CWA)  
The Clean Water Advocate (CWA) Program is a voluntary, cooperative effort between the City of Belton and Belton Area 
businesses and multi-family residential complexes. The goal of the program is to help identify practical, cost effective 
ways to protect Belton’s waterways through pollution prevention. CWA is a recognition initiative that helps businesses 
show off the good things they are doing to protect our water.  
 
Did you know? 
Clean water is everyone's responsibility. Stormwater runoff is the leading cause of pollution to surface water in the United 
States. Stormwater runoff occurs when precipitation from rainfall events flows over the ground. Stormwater picks up dirt, 
litter, automotive fluids, oils, pet waste, pesticides, yard waste, and other pollutants as it flows over paved surfaces and 
yards. Paved surfaces like driveways, sidewalks, and streets direct stormwater runoff into storm sewer systems, where it 
discharges untreated into detention basins, channels, creeks, rivers, and lakes. Anything that enters a storm sewer system 
is discharged into the waterbodies we use for swimming, fishing, and provide drinking water. 
 
The most effective way to protect Belton’s waterways is to prevent pollution before it ends up in stormwater. The cost of 
preventing pollution is generally one-tenth to one-hundredth the cost of cleaning it up, so it is the best practice for both the 
environment and the economy. 
 
Reasons to Become a Clean Water Advocate 

• Certificate to let consumers know you care. 
• Recognition for being a responsible steward of our environment.  
• Be part of the effort to protect Belton’s waters.  
• Show your corporate responsibility. 
• Give your employees one more reason to take pride in working for you. 

 
Apply for the Program 
The purpose of the program is for the City of Belton to officially recognize local businesses who have made substantial 
efforts to become environmentally sustainable by adopting best practices in the following areas:  

• Stormwater Pollution Prevention 
• Waste Reduction & Recycling 
• Fats, Oils and Grease Disposal  
• Water Conservation  
• Lawn Care 
• Other Best Management Practices 

 

In order to be considered for the Recognition Program, a business must demonstrate significant environmentally 
sustainable practices. If you are interested in being recognized, please submit the application to the City Engineer. 
Applications will be reviewed every March and September by the designated selection committee.  



City of Belton 
~ Public Works ~ 

 
 

P.O. Box 120  Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5823  
Page 1 of 3 

 

 
Clean Water Advocates (CWA) 

Business Recognition Program 
Application 

 
 

BUSINESS INFORMATION 
Business Name   
Business Type  Email  
Contact Person  Number of Employees  
Position Title  Business Address  
Phone    
 
STORMWATER QUALITY 
Program practices to promote water quality: 
□ Stormwater Pollution Prevention   
□ Waste Reduction & Recycling 
□ Fats, Oils and Grease Disposal 

□ Water Conservation 
□ Lawn Care 
□ Other Best Management Practices 

 
Water Quality Protection Measures. Respond and provide comments on the following applicable items. 

I. Employee Training Yes No N/A 
1 Are employees trained on stormwater quality, spill prevention, and/or spill cleanup?    
2 Are employees trained on proper grease disposal?    
3 Other: 

 
 
 

 
II. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Yes No N/A 
1 Are spill cleanup kits kept in vehicles?    
2 Are vehicles and/or equipment checked regularly for oil and fluid leaks?    
3 Is vehicle maintenance performed under a covered area and/or are oil spots cleaned up?    
4 Other: 

 
 
 

 
III. Waste Management Yes No N/A 
1 Do you provide trash and recycling containers for your employees and/or customers to use?    
2 Do you regularly check your facility for trash and debris?    
3 Are oil and grease collection containers that you use checked daily for spills?    
4 Other: 

 
 
 



City of Belton 
~ Public Works ~ 

 
 

P.O. Box 120  Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5823  
Page 2 of 3 

 

IV. Lawn Care Yes No N/A 
1 Do you sweep up or otherwise collect grass clippings/leaves/yard waste to keep them out of the 

storm drain system? 
   

2 Do you keep at least 10 feet between where you fertilize and the nearest waterway/drainage system?    
3 Do you make a good faith effort to avoid applying chemicals before a rainfall event?    
4 Do you use phosphorus-free fertilizer?    
5 Do you sweep up excess fertilizer/chemicals that are spread onto pavement?    
6 Describe alternate pest control methods other than the use of pesticides: 

 
 

7 Other: 
 
 
 

 
V. Water Conservation Yes No N/A 
1 Is your business adhering to the current Drought Response Stage in terms of irrigation and water 

usage? 
   

2 Is there a timer on your irrigation system?    
3 Does your business use EPA Water Sense appliances?    
4 Are any low or ultra-low restroom facilities installed?     
5 Describe any native or no-water landscaping on the property: 

 
 

6 Other: 
 
 
 

 
VI. Other Items Yes No N/A 
1 For material and equipment with the potential to pollute (e.g. chemicals containers, cooking oil 

containers, etc.) that are stored outside, are they covered to protect them from stormwater and stored 
within secondary containment? 

   

2 Do you use a tarp, drip pan or other method to catch potential drips/spills on your equipment?    
3 When facilities are cleaned, mopped, or pressure washed inside and out, is all mop and wash water 

being contained, collected and disposed of in the sewer system? 
   

4 Are you using ONLY water when power washing?    
5 Other: 

 
 
 

 
Optional: Describe how your company is a Clean Water Advocate or provide any additional comments and 
supporting documentation: ________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 



City of Belton 
~ Public Works ~ 

 
 

P.O. Box 120  Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5823  
Page 3 of 3 

 

______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
By this application for the Clean Water Advocate Program, I, as the representative of the facility owner with permission from 
the owner, __________________________________, hereby acknowledge that these responses and comments are true and 
accurate to the best of my knowledge. I acknowledge that if chosen for recognition, a representative of the City of Belton will 
contact me and my business will be acknowledged on either the City’s website and/or social media networks.  

 
 
 
Applicant:_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
               Printed Name    Signature       Date 
 
 
 

Submit form to the City Engineer via email at publicworks@beltontexas.gov or by mail to: 
City Engineer 
City of Belton 
P.O. Box 120 

Belton, Texas 76513 



CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION 
This Certificate is Awarded To 

[INSERT NAME] 
to recognize local businesses who have made substantial 

efforts to become environmentally sustainable by adopting 
best practices in stormwater pollution, water conservation, 

waste reduction & recycling 

CLEAN WATER ADVOCATE 
Dated this [Day] day of [Date] 

   
Sam A. Listi, City Manager  Angellia C. Points, P.E., City Engineer 

 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 28, 2016 

Page 1 of 3 
 
 

 
 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, June 28, 2016 - 5:30 p.m. 

Wright Room, Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Craig Pearson. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Assistant City 
Manager/Police Chief Gene Ellis. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Andy Davis, Senior Pastor at First Baptist 
Church of Belton. 
  
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Public Comments. 
 
3. Recognize Public Safety personnel regarding their efforts in saving a life. 

 
4. Consider minutes of previous meetings: 

 
A.  June 14, 2016, City Council Workshop 
B. June 14, 2016, City Council Meeting 

 
Planning and Zoning 

 
5. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Commercial Highway to 

Commercial-1 Zoning District for a minor auto repair shop at 501 East Avenue I, a 
0.33 acre tract of land, located on the southeast corner of South Beal Street and 
East Avenue I. 
 

6. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Heavy Industrial to Light 
Industrial Zoning District on a 36.326 acre tract of land, located on the north side of 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 28, 2016 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

East 6th Avenue/FM 93, south of Taylors Valley Road, and east of Interstate 
Highway 35. 

 
7. Hold a public hearing and consider a re-plat for 93 Quarters Place, a 0.576 acre tract 

of land, located on the southwest corner of West 2nd Avenue and Alexander Street.  
 

8. Hold a public hearing and consider an amendment to Section VI, Tree Protection, 
Preservation, and Mitigation, of the Design Standards in the Zoning Ordinance, 
regarding the heritage tree replacement fee and ratio inches.  

 
9. Hold a public hearing and consider an amendment to Section 41, Screening, Fence 

and Wall Standards, of the Zoning Ordinance, regarding the maximum height of a 
fence within the front yard of a single family- duplex, or patio home.  

 
10. Hold a public hearing and consider an amendment to Section 502, Street Standards 

and Policy, of the Subdivision Ordinance, regarding the maximum cul-de-sac length 
and means of access into a subdivision. 

 
11. Hold a public hearing and consider an amendment to Section 517, Requirements for 

Parkland, of the Subdivision Ordinance, regarding required parkland.    
 
Miscellaneous   
 
12. Consider a Resolution establishing a Growth Management Framework for the City of 

Belton. 
 
13. Second Reading and Public Hearing - Consider ordinances granting a one year 

extension with two additional one-year automatic extensions, unless rescinded by 
City, of a franchise to operate and maintain a non-emergency ambulance transfer 
service within the public streets and highways of the City of Belton: 

 
A. Acadian EMS 
B. Serenity EMS, LLC, dba Ameristat Ambulance 
C. Scott & White EMS 
 

14. Consider the following: 
 

A. An amendment to Ordinance No. 2013-02, regarding Institutional Control 
Measures, on portions of the former Rockwool Superfund Site, located east of IH 
35 and FM 93 (6th Avenue), addressing changes in ownership. 

 
B. An amendment to Resolution No. 2013-13-R determining the necessity of 

transferring real property and authorizing its transfer to the Belton Economic 
Development Corporation (BEDC) for a public purpose, and authorizing the City 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 28, 2016 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

Manager to take all steps necessary to accomplish the transfer of portions of the 
former Rockwool Superfund Site, located east of IH 35 and FM 93 (6th Avenue). 

 
15. Consider an amendment to Ordinance No. 2013-26 regulating burglar alarms within 

the City of Belton. 
 

Executive Session 
 
16. Executive Session pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, 

Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance with the 
authority contained in Section 551.071, consultation with attorney. 

 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any 
issue on this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 28, 2016 

Page 1 of 4 
 
 

 
OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, June 28, 2016 - 5:30 p.m. 

Wright Room, Harris Community Center 
401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Craig Pearson. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Assistant 
City Manager/Police Chief Gene Ellis. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state 
under God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Andy Davis, Senior Pastor at First 
Baptist Church of Belton. 
  
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Public Comments. 
 
3. Recognize Public Safety personnel regarding their efforts in saving a life. 

 
4. Consider minutes of previous meetings: 

 
A.  June 14, 2016, City Council Workshop 
B. June 14, 2016, City Council Meeting 

 
Copies of minutes attached. Recommend approval. 

 
Planning and Zoning 

 
5. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Commercial 

Highway to Commercial-1 Zoning District for a minor auto repair shop at 501 
East Avenue I, a 0.33 acre tract of land, located on the southeast corner of 
South Beal Street and East Avenue I. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 28, 2016 

Page 2 of 4 
 
 

See Staff Report from Director of Planning Erin Smith. P&ZC unanimously 
recommended approval, and Staff concurs with their recommendation. 
 

6. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Heavy Industrial to 
Light Industrial Zoning District on a 36.326 acre tract of land, located on the 
north side of East 6th Avenue/FM 93, south of Taylors Valley Road, and east of 
Interstate Highway 35. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Erin Smith. P&ZC unanimously 
recommended approval, and Staff concurs with their recommendation. 

 
7. Hold a public hearing and consider a re-plat for 93 Quarters Place, a 0.576 acre 

tract of land, located on the southwest corner of West 2nd Avenue and 
Alexander Street. 
 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Erin Smith. P&ZC unanimously 
recommended approval, and Staff concurs with their recommendation. 
 

8. Hold a public hearing and consider an amendment to Section VI, Tree 
Protection, Preservation, and Mitigation, of the Design Standards in the 
Zoning Ordinance, regarding the heritage tree replacement fee and ratio 
inches.  

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Erin Smith. P&ZC unanimously 
recommended approval, and Staff concurs with their recommendation. 

 
9. Hold a public hearing and consider an amendment to Section 41, Screening, 

Fence and Wall Standards, of the Zoning Ordinance, regarding the maximum 
height of a fence within the front yard of a single family- duplex, or patio 
home.  

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Erin Smith. P&ZC recommended 
approval, and Staff concurs with their recommendation. 

 
10. Hold a public hearing and consider an amendment to Section 502, Street 

Standards and Policy, of the Subdivision Ordinance, regarding the maximum 
cul-de-sac length and means of access into a subdivision. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Erin Smith. P&ZC unanimously 
recommended approval, and Staff concurs with their recommendation. 

 
11. Hold a public hearing and consider an amendment to Section 517, 

Requirements for Parkland, of the Subdivision Ordinance, regarding required 
parkland.    

 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 28, 2016 

Page 3 of 4 
 
 

See Staff Report from Director of Planning Erin Smith. P&ZC unanimously 
recommended approval, and Staff concurs with their recommendation. 

 
Miscellaneous   
 
12. Consider a Resolution establishing a Growth Management Framework for the 

City of Belton. 
 

See Staff Report from Director of Planning Erin Smith. Recommend establishment of 
Growth Management Framework for the City of Belton. 

 
13. Second Reading and Public Hearing - Consider ordinances granting a one 

year extension with two additional one-year automatic extensions, unless 
rescinded by City, of a franchise to operate and maintain a non-emergency 
ambulance transfer service within the public streets and highways of the City 
of Belton: 

 
A. Acadian EMS 
B. Serenity EMS, LLC, dba Ameristat Ambulance 
C. Scott & White EMS 
 
Per the City Charter, franchise agreements require two readings of the ordinance. 
Conduct public hearing and recommend approval of the franchise renewal 
ordinances on second reading. 
 

14. Consider the following: 
 

A. An amendment to Ordinance No. 2013-02, regarding Institutional Control 
Measures, on portions of the former Rockwool Superfund Site, located east 
of IH 35 and FM 93 (6th Avenue), addressing changes in ownership. 

 
B. An amendment to Resolution No. 2013-13-R determining the necessity of 

transferring real property and authorizing its transfer to the Belton 
Economic Development Corporation (BEDC) for a public purpose, and 
authorizing the City Manager to take all steps necessary to accomplish the 
transfer of portions of the former Rockwool Superfund Site, located east of 
IH 35 and FM 93 (6th Avenue). 

 
See Staff Report from City Manager Sam Listi. Item 14A will provide flexibility to 
BEDC as it markets the former Rockwool property for sale or lease. Item 14B affirms 
the City’s decision to transfer the Rockwool property to BEDC, with a reference to 
the amended institutional controls. Recommend approval of the amendments to the 
ordinance and resolution. 

 
15. Consider an amendment to Ordinance No. 2013-26 regulating burglar alarms 

within the City of Belton. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 28, 2016 

Page 4 of 4 
 
 

 
See Staff Report from Assistant City Manager/Police Chief Gene Ellis. Recommend 
approval of the amendment to the ordinance. 
 

Executive Session 
 
16. Executive Session pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, 

Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance 
with the authority contained in Section 551.071, consultation with attorney. 
 

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any 
issue on this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



BEL TON CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP 
June 14, 2016 -4:30 P.M. 

The Belton City Council met in workshop session in the Smith Room at the Harris 
Community Center with the following members present: Mayor Marion Grayson, Mayor 
Pro Tern David K. Leigh and Councilmembers Paul Sanderford, Dan Kirkley, Jerri 
Gauntt (arrived 4:34 p.m.), and Guy O'Banion. Councilmember Craig Pearson was 
absent. Staff present included Sam Listi, Gene Ellis, Amy Casey, Brandon Bozon, Chris 
Brown, Erin Smith, Angellia Points, Matt Bates, Bruce Pritchard and Paul Romer. 

1. Call to order. Mayor Marion Grayson called the workshop meeting to order at 4:32 
p.m. 

2. Update on South Belton Wastewater Line. 

Director of Internal Services/City Engineer Angellia Points discussed proposed 
alignment changes to the South Belton Sewer Project as shown on Exhibit A, 
brought about due to difficulty in securing right-of-way (ROW) in the original 
alignment. Councilmember Jerri Gauntt asked why the design did not locate the 
sewer line on the Leon River. Mayor Pro Tern David K. Leigh said he believed that it 
was due in large part to the terrain. Mrs. Gauntt said that it should be the developer's 
responsibility to bring their internal sewer lines to the City's trunk sewer. Mrs. Points 
explained that the timeline for development is unknown, and the City wants the 
sewer line to serve as many properties as possible without the added cost of 
easements, if possible. City Manager Sam Listi said that the sewer line needs to be 
designed to facilitate development along IH-35. 

Mrs. Points discussed some issues that Staff encountered especially with property 
owners along Toll Bridge Road related to right of entry. She explained that due to 
the resistance, the sewer line will not be extended to that area. If development 
occurs in that area, the developer will have to bring the sewer from that area to tie 
into the trunk line. As a result, two IH35 bores will be reduced to one. 

Councilmember Paul Sanderford asked what properties would be served by adding 
the additional 2,000 linear feet on the west side of the Interstate. Mrs. Points 
explained that the sewer line would be extended to the intersection of IH-35 and 
Shanklin Road because Staff believes that development will occur first at that 
intersection. She said that it is not critical to add this part to the project, and it is 
possible that a cost sharing agreement could be entered into with the future 
developer for getting sewer service to that area. City Manager Sam Listi suggested 
that section be bid as an alternate to give the Council the option to include or 
exclude it at the time of contract award. 

3. Overview of Possible Local Historical Tax Exemption. 

Director of Planning Erin Smith explained that there are over 30 cities in Texas that 
incentivize historic preservation through local property tax exemptions. Most historic 
tax exemption programs in Texas offer tax incentives for major renovation and 



Belton City Council Workshop 
June 14, 2016 - Page 2 

restoration of historic properties or ongoing maintenance to prevent or address blight 
and deterioration. Please see Exhibit B. 

Mrs. Smith said that the City currently has a Fa9ade Improvement Grant Program for 
downtown commercial buildings and a tax abatement policy for properties in the 
Downtown Development District. However, there are currently no incentives in place 
for historic residential properties. She added that there are over 300 historic 
residential properties in the City of Belton that could benefit from an historic 
preservation tax exemption. 

Mayor Pro Tern Leigh asked if it is a value freeze or a freeze based on the cost of 
the improvements. Director of Finance Brandon Bozon said that it is a value freeze, 
and explained that the City will provide the Tax Appraisal District with a statement 
that the property has qualified for the historic preservation tax exemption for five 
years. Mrs. Smith explained that the property is only exempt from an increase in City 
ad valorem taxes, based on the Appraisal District's determination of increased value. 
The other taxing entities are not a part of this program. 

Councilmember Jerri Gauntt asked how Staff will define historic properties. Mrs. 
Smith said the definition will be properties located within an historic district and/or 
properties that are 50+ years old . Councilmember Dan Kirkley said that the City has 
an existing ordinance requiring property owners to maintain their property as if it is a 
historic property if it is within an historic district. He said that we will need to "clean 
up" language in that ordinance. 

Mrs. Smith said that the proposed policy is being written to encourage renovations 
and improvements to historic residential properties. Mayor Marion Grayson said that 
she could see some other areas of town that could benefit from something like this. 
Mrs. Smith said that there are properties throughout town that may be 50 years or 
older that could benefit from this. First, though , Staff would need to designate them 
as a historic structure. Councilmember Gauntt asked if that would be a City 
designation only. Mrs. Smith responded that it would be only a City designation. 

Mrs. Smith said that she will prepare an ordinance for Council 's review at a future 
Council meeting. 

4. Presentation/Discussion on the Belton Fire Corps program. 

Fire Chief Bruce Pritchard explained that the Volunteer Fire Department was 
disbanded in January of 2016, leaving the Fire Chief and the Assistant Fire Chief as 
the only two members. Additionally, the Volunteer Fire Department assigned all their 
assets to the Belton Fire Department. Since that time, the Assistant Fire Chief 
resigned which leaves the Fire Chief as the only member. 

The Fire Chief held a meeting and voted to change the name of the entity to the 
Belton Fire Corps. The Belton Fire Corps will be a group of citizens who volunteer to 
help the paid department with all types of activities except fire suppression. A Fire 



Belton City Council Workshop 
June 14, 2016- Page 3 

Corps committee of six members was established, and these existing firefighters are 
working on developing and creating class schedules, brochures and other 
documents necessary for the program. Chief Pritchard explained that the Fire Corps 
Committee planned to use the July 4th parade to advertise the program. 

Chief Pritchard discussed the three bank accounts and land donated by the 
Volunteer Fire Department. The three accounts include a general account, a Santa 
Pal account and a Bingo account. The land that was donated is located at Loop 121 
just south of Avenue 0 and US 190, and is currently being marketed for $650,000. 
Mayor Pro Tern Leigh and City Manager Listi pointed out that the survey was 
incorrect. The survey shows the property as being along Highway 190, but it should 
say Avenue 0 . 

Mayor Pro Tern Leigh asked if the Corps would retain the 501 (c)3 to continue to 
receive the bingo funds. Chief Pritchard responded that they would . City Manager 
Listi said that Chief Pritchard has worked with City Finance Director and Neale Potts 
to ensure that everything has been handled properly and the transition will be 
smooth from the Volunteer Fire Department to the Fire Corps. 

Councilmember Sanderford asked if the program will be limited to Belton citizens. 
Chief Pritchard responded that at least at the start it will be. Councilmember Gauntt 
pointed out that if there was a desire to include students, Belton ISO boundaries will 
need to be included, thus extending to some non-Belton residents. 

5. Adjourn. There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5: 15 p.m. 

Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



S
ou

th
 B

el
 to

n
 

S
e

w
e

r 
S

ys
te

m
 

D
es

ig
n 

U
pd

at
e:

 A
lig

n
m

e
n

t 
M

o
d

ifi
ca

tio
n

 

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

W
or

ks
ho

p 

Ju
ne

 1
4,

 2
01

6 

~
 

~
 =-.... er
 .... ~ .... >
 

.... .... 



0 

S
O

U
T

H
 B

E
LT

O
N

 
S

E
W

E
R

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

 

••
• 

Il
l 

H
A

L
FF

 
M

A
Y

 2
0

1
6

 



N
O

T
T

O
 S

C
A

L
E

 

S
O

U
T

H
 B

E
L

T
O

N
 

S
E

W
E

R
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
 

iii
 H

A
L

F
F

. 
M

A
Y

 2
0

1
6

 



A
p

ri
l 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
A

lig
n

m
e

n
t 

./
 

Tw
o 

bo
re

s 
u

n
d

e
r 

IH
-3

5 

./
 

O
ne

 l
if

t 
st

a
tio

n
 v

s.
 t

w
o

 

~
 

M
in

im
iz

es
 c

os
ts

, 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y 
ac

qu
is

iti
on

, 
e

le
ct

ri
ca

l 
ne

ed
s,

 a
nd

 
st

a
rt

-u
p

 e
ff

o
rt

s 

./
 

M
ov

ed
 s

ou
th

er
n 

bo
re

 5
00

 f
e

e
t 

to
 t

h
e

 n
o

rt
h

; 
m

in
im

iz
in

g
 

d
e

p
th

 o
f 

g
ra

vi
ty

 s
ew

er
 l

in
e

 f 
ra

m
 B

as
in

 A
 to

 B
 b

y 
20

 f
e

e
t 

~
 

R
ed

uc
es

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
re

a 
by

 2
0 

ac
re

s 
(c

an
 b

e 
se

rv
ed

 w
it

h
 s

m
al

l 
li
ft

 
st

a
tio

n
 o

r 
g

ri
n

d
e

r 
pu

m
p)

 

./
 

A
pp

ro
x.

 $
6,

63
5,

00
0 

in
 T

ot
al

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

os
ts

 

·:·
 

E
ve

nt
s 

an
d 

A
ct

io
ns

 S
in

ce
 A

p
ri

l 

·:·
 

R
ig

ht
 o

f 
E

nt
ry

 R
eq

ue
st

s 
fo

r 
S

ur
ve

y 

·:·
 

D
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 w
it

h
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

O
w

ne
rs

 

·:·
 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

ev
al

ua
tio

ns
 o

f 
lin

e
 s

iz
in

g 
an

d 
ca

pa
ci

tie
s 

·:·
 

O
ff

lo
ad

in
g 

o
f 

ex
is

tin
g 

li
ft

 s
ta

tio
ns

· 

iii
 H

A
L

F
F

 



N
O

T
T

O
 S

C
A

LE
 

S
O

U
T

H
 B

E
LT

O
N

 
S

E
W

E
R

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

 

iii
 H

A
L

F
F

 
M

A
Y

 2
01

6 



N
ew

 A
lig

n
m

e
n

t 
• 

O
N

E 
bo

re
 u

nd
er

 I
H

-3
5 

• 
S

til
l o

ne
 l

if
t 

st
a

tio
n

 

• 
R

em
ov

ed
 g

ra
vi

ty
 li

n
e

 s
ou

th
 o

f 
li
ft

 s
ta

tio
n

 t
o

 L
am

pa
sa

s 
R

iv
er

 
fr

o
m

 s
co

pe
; 

ho
w

ev
er

, 
th

e
 l

if
t 

st
a

tio
n

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
si

gn
ed

 t
o

 
a

llo
w

 f
o

r 
th

is
 f

lo
w

 in
 t

h
e

 f
u

tu
re

 (
D

ed
uc

t 
o

f 
-$

1 
,2

55
,0

00
) 

• 
A

dd
ed

 2
,0

00
 L

F 
o

f 
se

w
er

 l
in

e
 o

n 
w

es
t 

si
de

 o
f 

IH
-3

5 
up

 t
o

 
S

ha
nk

lin
 R

oa
d 

-
fi

n
a

l 
a

lig
n

m
e

n
t 

on
 t

h
is

 s
eg

m
en

t 
is

 T
B

D
 

(A
d~

Ht
io

n 
o

f 
-$

57
0,

00
0)

 

• 
A

pp
ro

x.
 $

5,
 9

50
,0

00
 in

 T
ot

al
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
os

ts
 

• 
N

e
t 

C
os

t 
S

av
in

gs
 o

f 
a

p
p

ro
x.

 $
68

5,
00

0 

• 
S

ta
ff

 r
ec

om
m

en
ds

 u
pd

at
ed

 a
lig

n
m

e
n

t 
to

 m
ov

e 
fo

rw
a

rd
 i

n
to

 
th

e
 F

in
al

 D
es

ig
n 

P
ha

se
. 

iii
 H

A
L

F
F

 



M
ov

in
g 

F
or

w
ar

d 
1. 

D
ec

is
io

n 
on

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
a

lig
n

m
e

n
t 

A
. 

R
ev

is
e 

re
p

o
rt

 

11
. 

D
es

ig
n 

P
ha

se
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
. 

S
ur

ve
yi

ng
 

Ju
n

e
 2

01
6 

Ju
n

e
 2

01
6 

-
N

o
ve

m
b

e
r 

20
16

 

Ju
n

e
 2

01
6 

B.
 

P
la

ns
 a

nd
 s

pe
cs

, 
O

P
C

C
, 

p
e

rm
it

ti
n

g
, 

S
U

E
's

, 
g

e
o

te
ch

n
ic

a
l,

 
e

n
vi

ro
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
&

 a
rc

h
a

e
o

lo
g

ic
a

l 
e

va
lu

a
tio

n
s 

c. 
S

u
b

m
itt

a
ls

: 
30

%
, 

60
%

, 
95

%
, 

an
d 

F
in

a
l 

D
es

ig
n 

S
et

s,
 w

it
h

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 
O

PC
C

 's
 a

t 
ea

ch
 s

ta
ge

 

D
. 

P
ar

ce
l 

e
xh

ib
it

s 
fo

r 
ri

g
h

ts
-o

f-
w

a
y 

I e
as

em
en

ts
 

11
1. 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 D

es
ig

n 
to

 C
ou

nc
il 

A
. 

S
ec

ur
e 

F
un

di
ng

 

B
id

 P
ha

se
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 P
ha

se
 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
20

16
 

TB
D

 (
1 

M
o

n
th

) 
-~. 

TB
D

 (
8-

12
 M

on
th

s)
 

iii
 H

A
L

F
F

 



Exhibit "B" 

~ 
0 

'"""° rJ:l 

~ \.0 
H .,....-4 

~ 0 
N 

~ 
..... 

• l"""1 ~ u 
0 

.,....-4 

~ ~ 
0 0 
u ~ 
~ 

~ 
µ 
• 1"""1 u 



B
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

O
v

er
 3

0
 c

it
ie

s 
in

 T
ex

as
 i

n
ce

n
ti

v
iz

e 
h

is
to

ri
c 

p
re

se
rv

at
io

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 l

o
ca

l 

p
ro

p
er

ty
 t

ax
 e

x
em

p
ti

o
n

s,
 s

u
ch

 a
s:

 

• 
A

u
st

in
 

• 
G

ra
n

b
u

ry
 

• 
D

al
la

s 
• 

H
o

u
st

o
n

 

• 
F

o
rt

W
o

rt
h

 
• 

N
ac

o
g

d
o

ch
es

 

• 
F

re
d

er
ic

k
sb

u
rg

 
• 

R
o

u
n

d
 R

o
ck

 

• 
G

al
v

es
to

n
 

• 
S

an
 A

n
to

n
io

 

• 
G

ar
la

n
d

 
• 

T
em

p
le

 

M
o

st
 h

is
to

ri
c 

ta
x

 e
x

em
p

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
in

 T
ex

as
 o

ff
er

 t
ax

 i
n

ce
n

ti
v

es
 f

o
r 

th
e 

fo
ll

ow
in

g:
 

• 
M

aj
o

r 
re

n
o

v
at

io
n

/r
es

to
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
h

is
to

ri
c 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

; 

• 
O

n
g

o
in

g
 m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 t
o

 p
re

v
en

t 
o

r 
ad

d
re

ss
 b

li
g

h
t 

o
r 

d
et

er
io

ra
ti

o
n

; 
o

r 

• 
H

is
to

ri
c 

de
si

gn
at

io
ns

. 



C
ur

re
nt

 In
ce

nt
iv

es
 

• 
T

h
e 

C
it

y
 o

f 
B

el
to

n
 c

u
rr

en
tl

y
 h

as
 t

h
e 

fo
ll

ow
in

g 
in

ce
n

ti
v

es
 i

n
 

pl
ac

e:
 

• 
F

a9
ad

e 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

G
ra

n
t 

P
ro

gr
am

 f
or

 d
o

w
n

to
w

n
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 

b
u

il
d

in
gs

 

• 
T

ax
 a

b
at

em
en

t 
p

ol
ic

y 
fo

r 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 f
ac

il
it

ie
s 

in
 t

h
e 

D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

D
is

tr
ic

t 

• 
T

h
er

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tl
y

 
n

o
 

in
ce

nt
iv

es
 

in
 

pl
ac

e 
fo

r 
h

is
to

ri
c 

re
si

d
en

ti
al

 p
ro

p
er

ti
es

. 

• 
B

o
th

 t
h

e 
F

IG
 p

ro
g

ra
m

 a
n

d
 t

ax
 a

b
at

em
en

t 
p

o
li

cy
 h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 

ex
tr

em
el

y
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l 
in

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 i
n

v
es

tm
en

t 
d

o
w

n
to

w
n

. 



H
is

to
ric

 T
ax

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

P
ro

gr
am

 
• 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
 

cr
ea

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

a 
ta

x
 

ab
at

em
en

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

 
fo

r 

d
es

ig
n

at
ed

 
lo

ca
l 

la
n

d
m

ar
k

s 
an

d
 

hi
st

or
ic

al
ly

 
si

gn
if

ic
an

t 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

 w
it

h
in

 l
oc

al
 h

is
to

ri
c 

di
st

ri
ct

s 
th

at
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 m

aj
o

r 

re
n

ov
at

io
n

s.
 

• 
T

h
e 

th
re

sh
o

ld
 f

o
r 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

im
p

ro
v

em
en

ts
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e 
25

%
 o

f 

th
e 

p
re

-i
m

p
ro

v
em

en
t 

as
se

ss
ed

 v
al

ue
 o

f 
th

e 
st

ru
ct

u
re

. 

• 
A

d
 v

al
o

re
m

 t
ax

 e
x

em
p

ti
o

n
 w

il
l 

cr
ea

te
 a

n
 a

b
at

em
en

t 
fo

r 
u

p
 t

o
 

fi
ve

 
ye

ar
s 

o
n

 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

in
 

C
it

y
 

o
f 

B
el

to
n

 
p

ro
p

er
ty

 
ta

xe
s 

re
su

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 a
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
ed

 r
en

o
v

at
io

n
 t

o
 a

 h
is

to
ri

c 
bu

il
di

ng
. 

• 
T

h
e 

ex
em

p
ti

o
n

 w
o

u
ld

 o
n

ly
 a

pp
ly

 t
o

 C
it

y
 t

ax
es

, 
it

 w
il

l 
n

o
t 

ap
pl

y 
to

 B
el

l 
C

o
u

n
ty

, 
C

le
ar

w
at

er
 U

.W
C

.D
.,

 o
r 

B
IS

D
 s

ch
o

o
l 

ta
xe

s.
 



B
en

ef
its

 
• 

T
h

e 
ov

er
al

l 
go

al
 

is
 

to
 

en
co

u
ra

g
e 

in
v

es
tm

en
t 

in
 

h
is

to
ri

c 
p

ro
p

er
ti

es
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

a 
ta

x
 

ex
em

p
ti

o
n

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

 
w

it
h

o
u

t 
cr

ea
ti

n
g

 a
 l

ar
ge

 t
ax

 b
u

rd
en

 o
n

 t
h

e 
C

it
y.

 

• 
C

it
y

 t
ax

es
 

w
il

l 
st

il
l 

b
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 
o

n
 

th
e 

p
re

-i
m

p
ro

v
em

en
t 

as
se

ss
ed

 v
al

ue
, 

an
d

 t
h

e 
p

ro
p

er
ty

 o
w

n
er

 w
il

l 
b

en
ef

it
 b

y
 n

o
t 

pa
yi

ng
 t

ax
es

 o
n

 t
h

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 i

n
 t

h
ei

r 
p

ro
p

er
ty

 v
al

ue
 f

o
r 

fi
ve

 
ye

ar
s.

 

• 
T

hi
s 

h
is

to
ri

c 
p

re
se

rv
at

io
n

 
ta

x
 

ex
em

p
ti

o
n

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

 
w

il
l 

p
ro

m
o

te
 r

ep
ai

r 
an

d
 m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 
to

 
h

is
to

ri
c 

p
ro

p
er

ti
es

 
to

 
p

re
se

rv
e 

B
el

to
n

's
 h

is
to

ri
c 

b
u

il
d

in
g

 s
to

ck
. 

• 
B

y 
p

re
se

rv
in

g
 B

el
to

n
's

 h
is

to
ri

c 
b

u
il

t 
en

v
ir

o
n

m
en

t,
 t

h
e 

en
ti

re
 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

be
ri

ef
it

s 
fr

o
m

 
im

p
ro

v
ed

 
p

ro
p

er
ty

 
va

lu
es

, 
n

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
 r

ev
it

al
iz

at
io

n,
 a

n
d

 o
ve

ra
ll

 q
ua

li
ty

 o
f 

li
fe

. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2016 - 5:30 P.M. 

The Belton City Council met in regular session in the Wright Room at the Harris 
Community Center with the following members present: Mayor Marion Grayson, Mayor 
Pro Tern David K. Leigh and Councilmembers Guy O'Banion, Dan Kirkley, Jerri Gauntt 
and Paul Sanderford. Councilmember Craig Pearson was absent. Staff present included 
Sam Listi, John Messer, Gene Ellis, Amy Casey, Brandon Bozon, Erin Smith, Bruce 
Pritchard, Chris Brown, Aaron Harris, Byron Sinclair, Angellia Points, Matt Bates, Susan 
Allamon, Ed Bandas, Paul Romer and Cynthia Hernandez. 

The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag was led by Councilmember Jerri Gauntt, the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag was led by Fire Chief Bruce Pritchard, and the 
Invocation was given by Mayor Pro Tern David K. Leigh. 

1. Call to order. Mayor Marion Grayson called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

2. Public Comments. There were none. 

3. Proclamations and Recognitions: 

A. Receive recognition from Leadership Belton for Generous Guardian 
sponsorship of the Belton Police Memorial. Angellia Points presented Mayor 
Grayson with a plaque recognizing the City as a major donor to the Belton 
Police Memorial. 

B. Texas Association of Municipal Information Officer's TAMI Award for the 
RUOK? Program. Public Information Officer Paul Romer presented the TAMI 
award, received by the City for the Police Department's RUOK? Program video, 
to Assistant City Manager/Police Chief Gene Ellis. 

4. Receive a presentation on the budget process and offer input on key policies 
and initiatives. 

Director of Finance Brandon Bozon provided an overview of the FY 2017 budget 
process and policy as shown in Exhibit "A." Mr. Bozon explained that personnel 
represents 67% of the City's budget. He reviewed changes made in the personnel 
structure over the last few years. He added that six full-time positions have been 
requested in FY2017, but only three of the requests are being recommended for 
funding . 

Mr. Bozon discussed the City's Capital Equipment Replacement Funds that will 
fund replacement of vehicles, computers and HVAC systems. He is recommending 
$421 ,325 in FY2017 as the initial amount for the General Fund for this key initiative. 
He is also recommending $388,636 for the Water & Sewer Fund. 

He stated that fund balance at September 30, 2016, for the General Fund is 
estimated at $1.5M-$1.6M in excess of the minimum required. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2016- Page 2 

The Water & Sewer Fund FY2017 budget includes adjustments to the water and 
sewer rates as outlined in the five year rate plan adopted by the Council. Water 
rates will increase $0.50 on the base rate and will increase $0.21 on the volumetric 
rate. Sewer rates will increase $0.50 on the base rate and will increase $0.50 on 
the volumetric rate. Mr. Bozon reviewed water and sewer projects on the horizon 
and the estimated costs for each. 

Mr. Bozon said there is no change to the drainage rate proposed for FY2017. 

Mayor Grayson asked what Mr. Bozon thought was the highest priority of the items 
discussed. Mr. Bozon said that he felt that the Capital Equipment Replacement 
Fund will put the City in a better position by planning for replacement instead of just 
replacing or trying to repair equipment as equipment breaks. Councilmember 
O'Banion said that he felt it was important to fully implement the Capital Equipment 
Replacement Plan as quickly as possible. He asked if the plan was initiated using 
fund balance in FY2016. Mr. Bozon said that $250K of fund balance was used to 
replace public works, parks and police vehicles. Mr. O'Banion said he feels it is 
important to fund the plan fully each year, even if some of the money comes from 
fund balance. 

City Manager Listi complimented Mr. Bozon and the Department Heads for all the 
effort they put into creating the Capital Equipment Replacement Plan. He said it is 
an important step forward in planning and funding our needs. 

Mr. Listi pointed out the utility rate adjustment, and said that staying true to the five 
year plan will help fund the important utility projects that are in the works. 

Mayor Pro Tern Leigh asked about the debt funding levels. He asked if Bell County 
WCID will come back to us for additional funding . Mr. Bozon said that they have 
discussed it with Bell County WCID who has assured City Staff that they do not 
have any plans to do that. There may possibly be some smaller projects coming 
forward in 2-3 years, but the City should have the ability to fund them. 

Mr. Leigh asked about sales tax projections. Mr. Bozon said that the City should 
end the year about where it budgeted for sales tax revenues. He said that the 
proposed FY2017 Budget includes a 1.9% sales tax growth. 

Consent Agenda 

Items 5-6 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and 
may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item 
may be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 

5. Minutes of the May 24, 2016, City Council Meeting. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2016- Page 3 

6. Consider appointments/reappointments to the following boards and 
commissions: 

A. Parks Board. Josh Pearson and Daniel Bucher were reappointed. 

B. Zoning Board of Adjustment. David Jarrat and Lewis Simms were 
reappointed. 

Upon a motion by Councilmember Dan Kirkley and a second by Councilmember 
Guy O'Banion, the Consent Agenda items were unanimously approved upon a vote 
of 6-0. 

Planning and Zoning 

The Mayor read items 7 and 8 to be discussed together. 

7. Consider authorizing the purchase of 3.546 acres of land from Don and Billie 
Cameron for Lake-to-Lake Road right-of-way. 

8. Consider a preliminary/final plat for Cameron Hills II, a 19.393 acre tract of 
land, located on the north side of Sparta Road, west of Lake to Lake Road 
right-of-way and west and south of Dawson Ranch, Phases 5 and 6. 

City Manager Sam Listi reminded Council that these items were tabled at the June 
14, 2016, City Council meeting. He said that the Council expressed a couple of 
concerns which were addressed in a revised offer letter to the Camerons dated May 
26, 2016. Mr. Listi met with the Camerons who agreed to the proposed changes 
and signed the revised offer letter. 

Mr. Listi stated that revisions included clarifying that the City will construct Spur 
2271 and the looped water line when needed in conjunction with Lake to Lake Road 
construction. Additionally, if the remaining Cameron property is redeveloped before 
the Spur 2271 connector road is needed for access between the Lake to Lake Road 
and Sparta Road, the connector road and water line extensions will be the 
responsibility of the developer. He said that within 90 days of closing, the City will 
set two water meters on Sparta Road, extend a 2-inch water line for Cameron 
domestic service, and relocate a gate to the new Cameron property line. Total 
acquisition cost is $103,239. 

Mr. Listi also recommended approval of the Cameron Hills II subdivision plat with 
the two conditions recommended by the Planning and Zoning Commission. The 
conditions include: (1) a variance for public street access for the interior lot which 
does not abut a public street and will be served by an access easement, and (2) a 
variance to the park fee since no additional lots are being created. 

Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tern Leigh and a second by Councilmember Kirkley, 
item 7 was approved upon a vote of 6-0. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2016- Page 4 

Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tern Leigh and a second by Councilmember Kirkley, 
item 8 was approved upon a vote of 6-0. 

9. Consider authorizing a Facade Improvement Grant to Libery Church of Bell 
County, 302 East Central Avenue. 

Director of Planning Erin Smith stated that Liberty Church of Bell County has 
submitted a Fac;ade Improvement Grant (FIG) application to complete exterior 
repairs and renovations on the primary fac;ade facing East Central Avenue and the 
northern fac;ade facing the alley at 302 East Central Avenue. 

The proposed improvements include: 

Primary Facade (facing Central Avenue): 
• Install 3 metal awnings; 
• Replace the existing glass doors and windows; 
• Install Liberty Church wall sign; 
• Lime wash the existing brick fac;ade; and 
• Install two sconces and five gooseneck lights. 

Rear Facade (facing rear alley): 
• Paint the existing stucco; 
• Replace the siding around the door with hardi board; 
• Install a metal awning above the door; and 
• Install two sconces. 

Mrs. Smith said that the total projected cost is $24, 168 ($19, 195 for primary fac;ade 
and $4,973 for rear fac;ade). The FIG application requests the maximum match 
amount of $12,084. 

Upon a motion by Councilmember Kirkley and a second by Councilmember 
O'Banion, item 9 was approved upon a vote of 6-0. 

10. Consider authorizing a Facade Improvement Grant to Cedon Realty, 209 East 
Central Avenue. 

Director of Planning Erin Smith stated that the building located at 209 East Central 
Avenue was built in 1930 and is located in the Downtown Belton Commercial 
Historic District. Don Ringler has submitted a Fac;ade Improvement Grant (FIG) 
application to complete exterior repairs and renovations on the rear exterior fac;ade 
of the building located at 209 East Central Avenue. 

The proposed improvements include: 

• Construct a limestone fac;ade on the western wall; 
• Install cedar siding and trim on two framed walls; 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2016 - Page 5 

• Paint the exterior cedar walls and storage building; and 
• Install new electrical wiring and plugs. 

Mrs. Smith explained that the applicant is proposing other exterior renovations that 
are not eligible for FIG funding, but did require Historic Preservation Commission 
(HPC) approval. At their June gth meeting, the HPC recommended approval of the 
FIG request and the other proposed exterior renovations. 

Mrs. Smith said that the total projected cost on the application is $8, 7 49. The FIG 
application requests the maximum match amount of $4,37 4. 

Upon a motion by Councilmember Paul Sanderford and a second by Mayor Pro 
Tern Leigh, item 10 was approved upon a vote of 5-0. (Councilmember O'Banion 
had stepped out of the room during this item, and returned shortly after the vote.) 

Miscellaneous 

11. Consider a Resolution establishing a policy regarding annexation of land into 
the Belton city limits. 

Director of Planning Erin Smith said that at a recent Texas Municipal League (TML) 
Annexation Conference, TML recommended that each city adopt an annexation policy 
prior to beginning any annexation proceedings. Adoption of an annexation policy is not 
a legal requirement, but Mrs. Smith explained that, from a policy perspective, it is 
important to have a clear purpose for annexation. The annexation policy provides 
background on issues, objectives, and policies to be considered when determining 
areas to annex into the Belton city limits. 

She pointed out that one of the goals of the FY2016 Strategic Plan is development of a 
growth management strategy, and she said that Staff is working on that at this time. 

Mrs. Smith stated that the City has the authority to annex areas within its ET J that are 
contiguous with the existing city limits. As required by law, the City adopted an 
annexation policy in 1999 that states the City will not annex areas that contain more 
than 100 residentially developed tracts. 

She reviewed the components of the proposed policy including: 

• Purpose and Intent 
• Annexation Authority 
• History 
• Strategies 
• Policy Statements 

Councilmember Gauntt stated that the policy seems to be common sense questions 
the Council would ask whether or not this policy is in place. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2016- Page 6 

Councilmember Sanderford asked if Mrs. Smith was asking for direction to prepare 
a policy, or if what had just been presented was the policy. Mrs. Smith responded 
that what had been presented is the recommended policy. Mr. Sanderford said that 
he did not feel that he had enough of an understanding of what needs to be in the 
policy to be able to vote on it at this time. 

Mayor Pro Tern Leigh suggested that Staff schedule a work session to discuss the 
proposed policy, and he made a motion to table the item to the June 28, 2016, 
Council workshop and meeting. The motion was seconded by Councilmember 
Sanderford and was approved upon a vote of 6-0. 

12. Consider a resolution authorizing the Citv Manager to sign an Advance 
Funding Agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation for Phase II 
of the Chisholm Trail Hike and Bike Facility funded through the 
Transportation Alternatives Program, and authorize a local funding share. 

Grants and Special Projects Coordinator Aaron Harris reminded the Council that 
the Texas Department of Transportation allocated $2, 136,492 in federal funding to 
Belton for the Chisholm Trail Hike and Bike project. This project will extend the 
City's hike and bike network and provide a north-south connection. 

Mr. Harris stated that the City's match for this grant is $534, 123. In May 2015, the 
original City match was increased from $333,000 to $534, 123 due to BNSF's 
position indicating it would not permit an "at-grade" crossing but would support an 
"underpass" crossing. This revision increased the total project cost by $1, 185,615. 
Mr. Harris reminded Council that Staff had been instructed to seek community 
financial support for the increased match. He stated that UMHB and Mayor Pro 
Tern Leigh had each generously pledged $100,000 for the project. 

Mr. Harris said that the next step is to procure an engineering firm. He added that 
the planning process is estimated to take 24 months with the construction beginning 
in approximately the summer of 2018. He added that no action on a budget 
amendment is needed at this time; an amendment to dedicate the City's portion of 
the local match will go before the Council later this fiscal year. 

Mayor Grayson thanked Mayor Pro Tern Leigh and UMHB for their contributions. 

Councilmember Sanderford asked if the Hike and Bike Trail would extend down 
Sparta as a part of the improvements being made to Sparta Road. Mr. Harris said 
that the Sparta Road project will be completed before this project will be under 
construction. 

Councilmember Gauntt said that she hasn't been supportive of the project in the 
past because of the funding requirements, but she said that it is hard not to support 
it now when there is such support from the community. She made a motion to 
authorize the City Manager to sign the Advance Funding Agreement and authorize 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2016- Page 7 

the City's local share. Councilmember O'Banion seconded the motion which passed 
upon a vote of 6-0. 

13. Consider award of bid and authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
construction contract for the River Fair Road Widening Project, and any 
change orders associated with the contract, not to exceed the amount 
authorized under state law. 

Director of Internal Services/City Engineer Angellia Points said that the River Fair 
Road Widening Project has been on the TIRZ project list for some time, and funding 
became available this fiscal year. She pointed out that River Fair Drive is a collector 
street, but the lanes are too narrow. There is also a drainage issue causing water to 
pond with any measurable precipitation. 

Mrs. Points explained that the City contracted with Clark and Fuller to design 
improvements to River Fair Road. These improvements include widening the lanes, 
correcting the drainage issue, and improving the aesthetics of the median. 

She stated that on May 19, 2016, the City received five (5) bids for this project. The 
low bidder was Holy Contractors from Hewitt, Texas, in the amount of $136,288.87. 
Mrs. Points explained that the road would be closed during construction. However, 
construction will not commence until the start of school, since traffic volumes to 
restaurants and businesses in the area will be less after the summer break. 

This project will be paid with TIRZ Capital Project Funds. 

Mayor Pro Tern Leigh stated that he agrees with the need for a longer median. He 
suggested a brick pocket for the median that allows for the contrast of the brick 
against the concrete. He also suggested using the same light poles as are used in 
the downtown area and recommended including conduit for the light poles as a part 
of this project. 

Upon a motion by Councilmember O'Banion and a second by Councilmember 
Kirkley, item 13 was approved upon a vote of 6-0. 

14. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an amended professional 
services agreement to design Phase I and Phase II improvements to the 
Temple .. Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

Director of Internal Services/City Engineer Angellia Points reminded the Council 
that the Cities of Belton and Temple have shared ownership of the Temple Belton 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (TBWWTP). She stated that, in the Fall of 2015, KPA 
Engineers was contracted to design Phase I of the improvements to the plant. 
Phase I addressed the condition of the older units at the plant including the 
headworks and the Orbal unit. Phase II has not been authorized at this time, but it 
addresses adding additional treatment capacity to the plant. Mrs. Points added that 
Phase 111 addresses items downstream from the plant. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2016- Page 8 

Mrs. Points discussed changes that are proposed to the original design contract 
authorized on October 15, 2015. The original scope of services consisted of three 
tasks organized as follows: 

• Task 1: Basis of Design - Hydraulic analysis, Orbal aeration design, phosphorus 
removal, and geotechnical 

• Task 2: Ptiase I Final Design - Headworks, odor control , address Orbal capacity 
• Task 4: Phase I Bid Services 

Mrs. Points said , that after further discussions between the Cities of Temple and 
Belton and KPA, an amendment to the design contract is recommended to modify 
Task 2 to remove the Orbal improvements and add design of an equalization basin, 
include Task 3 Phase II design, and add Task 5 to bid Phase II improvements. (See 
attached Exhibit "B") 

This amended contract costs are: 

Task Description Original Contract Amendment No. 1 Total Revised 
Amount Changes Contract 

Task 1 - Basis of Design $244,200 $50,358 $294,558 
Task 2 - Final Design Phase I $1 ,065,290 $(132,745) $932,545 

Task 3 - Final Design Phase II (Additional Services: Move to be authorized: $2,086,947 
$943,205) $2,086,947+ 

Task 4 - Bidding Phase I $32,065 No change $32,065 
Task 5 - Bidding Phase II Not in scope $32.550 $32 550 

TOTAL 
$1,341,555* +$2,037,110 $3,378,665 

(25% = $335,388.75) (25% = $509,277 .50) (25% = $844,666.25) 
*Total amount does not include Task 3. Total for the Additional Services (Task 3) was not authorized in Original 
Contract. See Page 2 of KPA Contract Dated September 18, 2015. 
+i"he amount shown is the total amount requested to perform Task 3. Additional funding for the Additional Services 
amount of $943,205 is $1 ,143,742 to equal $2,086,947. However, Task 3 was not yet authorized in the original 
contract. 

The fiscal impact of this amendment is $509,277, which represents Belton's share 
of the increase in the professional services contract with KPA from its current 
amount of $335,389 to $844,666. 

Mrs. Points said that we have reached 85% of plant capacity. Mayor Grayson asked 
if the increased flows are due to the heavy rains that we have experienced lately. 
Mrs. Points said that the weather was a contributing factor, but Temple and Belton 
are growing which is the main reason for the increased flows. 

Councilmember Sanderford asked if there was a limit on the amount of a contract 
amendment similar to the 25% limit on a construction contract change order. Mr. 
Listi and City Clerk Amy Casey said that they are not aware of a limit to a 
professional design contract amendment. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 14, 2016- Page 9 

Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tern Leigh and a second by Councilmember Kirkley, 
item 14 was approved upon a vote of 6-0. 

15. First Reading - Set Public Hearing - Consider ordinances granting a one year 
extension with two additional one-year automatic extensions, unless 
rescinded by City, of a franchise to operate and maintain a non-emergency 
ambulance transfer service within the public streets and highways of the City 
of Belton: 

A. Acadian EMS 
B. Scott & White EMS 
C. Serenity EMS, LLC, dba Ameristat Ambulance 

Fire Chief Bruce Pritchard told the Council that there are currently four non
emergency ambulance services operating in our City with a franchise agreement. 
They are Skyline EMS, Acadian EMS, Scott & White EMS and Serenity EMS. To 
simplify the management of these franchises, Staff requested all agencies renew 
their franchise agreements at the same time. Additionally, we are proposing to 
extend the term of the agreements from one year, to one year with two automatic 
one-year extensions, unless the City rescinds the franchise. Chief Pritchard added 
that Skyline and Serenity EMS have not made runs in Temple in the past year; 
however, Serenity has requested another franchise in order to keep the option 
available to them, and Skyline did not return our multiple calls regarding renewal. 

Upon a motion by Councilmember Kirkley and a second by Councilmember Gauntt, 
item 15 was approved upon a vote of 6-0. 

Executive Session 

16. Executive Session pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, 
Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance 
with the authority contained in Section 551.071, consultation with attorney. 

The Mayor announced that the Executive Session was not needed, and there being no 
further business, she adjourned the meeting at 7:20 p.m. 

Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



P
R

O
C

E
S

S
 &

 P
O

LI
C

Y
 

F
Y

 2
01

7 
B

ud
ge

t 
D

is
cu

ss
io

n 



20
17

 B
ud

ge
t C

a
le

n
d

a
r 

• 
M

ar
ch

 -
M

ay
 

• 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
bu

dg
et

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
• 

R
ev

en
ue

 p
ro

je
ct

io
n 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
·

Ju
ne

 
• 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

bu
dg

et
 r

ev
ie

w
 w

ith
 C

ity
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

an
d 

F
in

an
ce

 
• 

C
ou

nc
il 

in
pu

t 
on

 p
ol

ic
y 

di
re

ct
iv

es
 

• 
Ju

ly
 -

A
u

g
u

s
t 

• 
B

ud
ge

t 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 to

 C
ou

nc
il 

• 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
e 

• 
P

ro
po

se
d 

bu
dg

et
 fi

lin
g 

• 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
• 

P
ub

lic
 h

ea
ri

ng
s 

• 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n 
ad

op
tio

n 
• 

B
ud

ge
t 

ad
op

tio
n 



F
Y

 2
01

6 
R

ev
ie

w
 

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
&

 D
e

b
t 

S
er

vi
ce

 F
u

n
d

 

$
1

4
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
 

$
1

2
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
 

s 1
0,

 0
0

0
 ,0

0
0

 

$
8

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 

$
6

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 

$
4

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 

$
2,

0
0

0
,0

0
0

 

FY
20

16
 

• 
C

ap
ita

l 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n 

•
C

on
ti

ng
en

cy
 

•
E

m
pl

oy
ee

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

O
ut

si
de

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

•
S

up
pl

ie
s 

•
R

ep
ai

rs
 &

 M
ai

nt
 

•
P

er
so

nn
el

 

•
T

ra
ns

fe
rs

 

• 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 

• 
U

til
iti

es
 &

 I
ns

ur
an

ce
 

• 
R

ef
us

e 
C

on
tr

ac
t 

fl
 B

el
l C

ou
nt

y 

•
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
 



P
er

so
nn

el
 R

ev
ie

w
: 

F
Y

 1
5 

-
F

Y
 1

6 
• 

C
re

at
ed

 S
ch

oo
l 

R
es

ou
rc

e 
O

ff
ic

er
 S

er
ge

an
t 

po
si

tio
n 

• 
C

re
at

ed
 t

w
o 

P
at

ro
l 

O
ff

ic
er

 p
os

iti
on

s 

• 
C

re
at

ed
 F

ire
 M

ar
sh

al
/T

ra
in

in
g 

O
ff

ic
er

 p
os

iti
on

 

• 
C

re
at

ed
 A

ss
is

ta
nt

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
In

sp
ec

to
r 

po
si

tio
n 

• 
C

re
at

ed
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 W
or

ke
r 

po
si

tio
n 

• 
C

re
at

ed
 R

et
ai

l 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

 p
os

iti
on

 (
T

IR
Z

) 

• 
C

re
at

ed
 t

hr
ee

 p
ar

t-
tim

e 
po

si
tio

ns
 

• 
P

ub
lic

 W
or

ks
 a

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
as

si
st

an
t 

• 
P

ol
ic

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
cu

st
od

ia
n 

• 
B

E
D

C
 a

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
as

si
st

an
t 

• 
U

til
iz

ed
 U

M
H

B
 W

or
k 

S
tu

dy
 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
te

d 
re

su
lts

 o
f C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

S
tu

dy
 



P
er

so
nn

el
 R

ev
ie

w
: 

F
Y

 1
5 

-
F

Y
 1

6 
• 

E
lim

in
at

ed
 f

ul
l-

tim
e 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

 p
os

iti
on

 

• 
E

lim
in

at
ed

 f
ul

l-
tim

e 
C

ou
rt

 C
le

rk
 p

os
iti

on
 

• 
E

lim
in

at
ed

 f
ul

l-
tim

e 
H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 A

ss
is

ta
nt

 p
os

iti
on

 

• 
E

lim
in

at
ed

 M
et

er
 R

ea
de

r 
po

si
tio

n 

• 
R

ed
ef

in
ed

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 D
ir

ec
to

r 
po

si
tio

n 
• 

N
et

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
o

f o
ne

 f
ul

l-
tim

e 
po

si
tio

n 
• 

W
or

kl
oa

d 
di

vi
si

on
 a

m
on

g 
pa

rk
s,

 i
nt

er
na

l 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 w
or

ks
 

• 
R

ev
am

pe
d 

F
ire

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

ra
nk

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
 

• 
C

la
rif

ie
d 

C
ap

ta
in

 v
 L

ie
ut

en
an

t 
du

tie
s;

 s
ca

la
bl

e 
m

od
el

 

• 
R

es
tr

uc
tu

re
d 

H
ea

lth
 I

ns
ur

an
ce

 B
en

ef
its

 
• 

R
em

ov
ed

 z
er

o-
de

du
ct

ib
le

 p
la

n 



P
er

so
nn

el
 P

re
ss

ur
es

: 
F

Y
 2

0
1

7
 

• 
N

e
w

 p
er

so
nn

el
 r

eq
ue

st
 

• 
A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
P

la
n

n
e

r 
• 

C
ri

m
e

 S
ce

n
e

 T
ec

hn
ic

ia
n 

• 
F

le
et

 M
e

ch
a

n
ic

 
• 

Li
br

ar
ia

n 
A

ss
is

ta
n

t(
 s)

 -
P

a
rt

 T
im

e 
• 

P
ar

ks
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
 W

o
rk

e
r 

• 
P

ol
ic

e 
C

a
d

e
t 

• 
P

ay
-S

ca
le

 r
eq

ue
st

s 
• 

B
as

e 
p

a
y 

in
cr

e
a

se
s 

• 
E

va
lu

at
io

n 
o

f a
ss

ig
n

m
e

n
t 

p
a

y 

• 
B

en
ef

it 
co

st
s 

• 
T

M
R

S
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
tio

n
 r

at
e 

in
cr

e
a

se
 o

f 
10

°/o
 

• 
A

n
tic

ip
a

te
 1

0°
/o

+ 
in

cr
e

a
se

 in
 h

ea
lth

 i
n

su
ra

n
ce

 f
ro

m
 2

01
6 

ra
te

s 



G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
In

iti
at

iv
es

 

• 
G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

C
ap

ita
l 

R
e

p
la

ce
m

e
n

t 
P

la
ns

 
• 

P
ub

lic
 W

o
rk

s 
&

 P
ar

ks
 v

e
h

ic
le

s 
an

d 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 

• 
P

ol
ic

e 
D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

ve
h

ic
le

s 

• 
F

ir
e 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
ve

h
ic

le
s 

an
d 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

• 
C

o
m

p
u

te
rs

 a
nd

 M
D

T
s 

• 
H

V
A

C
 

• 
P

la
n 

C
os

ts
: 

F
Y

 2
01

7 
• 

F
ul

l 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n:

 
$

5
9

9
,3

4
5

 

• 
P

h
a

se
d

-I
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

tio
n

: 
$

4
2

1
,3

2
5

 

• 
P

re
ve

nt
at

iv
e 

S
tr

ee
t 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 P
la

n 
• 

Y
ea

rs
 1

 &
 2

 o
u

t f
o

r 
bi

d 

• 
E

st
im

at
ed

 o
ng

oi
ng

 a
nn

ua
l 

co
st

 o
f $

1
.5

 m
ill

io
n 



G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
B

u
d

g
e

t F
or

ec
as

t 

• 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

• 
E

st
im

at
ed

 i
nc

re
as

e 
o

f $
67

7,
51

3 
o

ve
r 

FY
16

 (
5.

37
°/

o)
 

• 
4°

/o
 t

ax
 b

as
e 

gr
ow

th
; 

1.
9°

/o
 s

al
es

 t
ax

 g
ro

w
th

; 
3°

/o
 f

ra
nc

hi
se

 t
ax

 g
ro

w
th

 

• 
$2

00
,0

00
 in

 r
ev

en
ue

s 
fr

om
 e

ff
lu

en
t 

sa
le

s 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 

$
1

0
4

,0
0

0
 

S
er

vi
ce

 
C

ha
rg

es
 

$
1

1
8

,0
0

0
 

F
ra

nc
hi

se
 T

ax
 

$
3

5
,0

0
0

 

R
ev

en
ue

 
G

ro
w

th
 

E
ff

lu
e

n
t S

al
es

 
$

2
0

0
,0

0
0

 

A
d

V
a

lo
re

m
 

T
ax

 $
1

6
0

,0
0

0
 



G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
F

or
ec

as
t 

• 
E

xp
en

se
s T

yp
e

 
In

it
ia

l 
R

e
q

u
e

st
 

D
ra

ft
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
R

e
d

u
ct

io
n

s 
N

e
w

 P
er

so
nn

el
 

$ 
25

8
,4

68
 

$ 
95

,5
70

 
$ 

16
2

,8
98

 
O

th
e

r 
O

p
e

ra
tin

g
 

$ 
12

,7
64

,8
67

 
$ 

12
,6

95
,5

52
 

$ 
6

9
,3

1
5

 
C

ap
ita

l 
$ 

1
,0

70
,9

88
 

$ 
51

0
,2

7
3

 
$ 

56
0

,7
15

 
$ 

14
,0

94
,3

23
 

$ 
13

,3
01

,3
95

 
$ 

79
2,

92
8 

• 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
C

om
pa

ri
so

n 
. 

• 
P

er
so

nn
el

 a
nd

 O
th

e
r 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
• 

F
Y

 2
0

1
6

 -
$1

2
,4

5
3

,0
0

7
 

• 
F

Y
 2

01
7 

-
$1

2,
79

1 
,1

22
 (

2
.7

°/o
 G

ro
w

th
) 

• 
T

ot
al

 
• 

F
Y

2
0

1
6

-$
1

2
,6

2
1

,5
07

 
• 

F
Y

 2
0

1
7

 -
$1

3,
30

1
,3

95
 (

5
.3

8°
/o

 G
ro

w
th

) 



G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
P

ol
ic

y 
D

ire
ct

io
n 

• 
F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

 
• 

E
nd

ed
 F

Y
 2

01
5 

w
ith

 f
un

d 
ba

la
nc

e 
o

f $
4,

 7
7 

4,
57

1 
• 

B
al

an
ce

 in
 e

xc
es

s 
o

f m
in

im
um

 $
1,

69
7,

06
7 

at
 9

/3
0/

15
 

• 
F

Y
 2

01
6 

us
es

 to
 d

at
e 

• 
C

om
m

itm
en

t 
to

 T
ra

il 
pr

oj
ec

t 
• 

$5
7,

91
5 

-
La

ke
 to

 L
ak

e 
R

O
W

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
(S

en
de

ro
 E

st
at

es
) 

• 
F

Y
 2

01
6 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 r
ev

en
ue

s 
ov

er
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

• 
$3

00
,0

00
 -

E
ff

lu
en

t s
al

es
 

• 
$1

00
,0

00
 -

S
tr

on
g 

fr
an

ch
is

e 
ta

x 
re

ce
ip

ts
 a

nd
 c

ha
rg

es
 f

o
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

• 
E

st
im

at
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

in
 e

xc
es

s 
o

f m
in

im
um

 o
f $

1.
5M

 -
$1

.6
M

 a
t 

9/
30

/1
6 

• 
La

st
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

us
e 

o
f f

un
d 

ba
la

nc
e 

w
as

 in
 F

Y
 2

0
1

4
 

• 
$1

00
,0

00
 f

o
r 

ca
pi

ta
l 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
• 

$1
36

,8
17

 f
o

r 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

 e
le

m
en

ts
 



F
Y

 2
01

6 
R

ev
ie

w
 

W
a

te
r 

&
 S

ew
er

 F
un

d 

$
7

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 

•
C

ap
it

al
 O

ut
la

y 

$
6

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 
•

C
ap

 it
al

 P
ro

je
ct

s 

•
C

on
ti

ng
en

cy
 

$
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 
E

m
pl

oy
ee

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

•
O

ut
si

de
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

•
S

up
pl

ie
s 

$
4

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 
•

R
ep

ai
rs

 &
 M

ai
nt

 

•
P

er
so

nn
el

 

$
3

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 
•

O
pe

ra
ti

ng
 T

ra
ns

fe
rs

 

•
U

til
iti

es
 &

 I
ns

ur
an

ce
 

$
2

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 
•

se
w

er
ag

e 
T

re
at

m
en

t 

•
W

at
er

 P
ur

ch
as

es
 

• 
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
 

$
1

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 

FY
 2

0
1

6
 



W
a

te
r 
&

 S
e

w
e

r 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
In

iti
at

iv
es

 

• W
at

er
 &

 S
e

w
e

r 
ca

pi
ta

l 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t 
pl

an
s:

 
• 

W
at

er
 &

 S
e

w
e

r 
ve

hi
cl

es
 

• 
W

at
er

 &
 S

e
w

e
r 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

• 
W

at
er

 M
et

er
s 

·C
os

ts
: 

• 
O

ng
oi

ng
 I

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n:
 

·
Y

ea
r 

1 
(F

Y
17

) 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n:

 

• D
eb

t 
F

un
de

d 
C

ap
ita

l 
P

ro
je

ct
s 

$2
28

,6
00

 

$3
88

,6
36

 



P
ro

je
ct

 

W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r 

P
la

n
t 

R
e

h
a

b
ili

ta
ti

o
n

 P
ha

se
 I

 

N
o

la
n

 C
re

ek
 S

ew
er

 T
ru

n
k 

Li
ne

 R
e

p
la

ce
m

e
n

t 

S
ou

th
 B

e
lt

o
n

 S
ew

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 

A
M

I 

T
im

e
fr

a
m

e
 

20
15

 

20
15

 

20
15

-2
01

6 

20
15

 

C
os

t 

$2
,8

00
,0

00
 

$1
,2

00
,0

00
 

$5
,0

00
,0

00
 

$4
,3

00
,0

00
 

W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r 

P
la

nt
 R

eh
ab

/E
xp

an
si

on
 P

ha
se

 I
I 

-
IV

 
I 

20
17

 -
20

19
 

$8
,0

00
,0

00
 

--
--

··-
···

···
--

···
·-

--
-·

·-
--

···
--

--
--

--
--

·-
·-

-·
·-

-·
--

--
--

--
-·

·-
--

--
--

··
--

--
--

··
--

--
-·

··
·-

··
·-

-·
·-

--
--

--
--

--
--

-·
--

··
--

·-
-
·-

-·
--

··
--

--
-

-
-
~
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
·
·
-
-
-
-
-
-
·
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
1
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
·
·
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
·
·
-
·
·
·
·
·
·
-
-
·
-
-
-
·
-
-
·
-
-
-
-

M
 a

 in
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

 
_ 

__ 
__

 
_ 

_ -
~0

15
-2

0~
~ 

-4
-_

__
__

__
_ 

$1
,2

50
,0

00
 

_ 
_ 

__
 

I 
-··-··

--··-·
···---

-··-··
----··

··--·-
--·---

-~-~
~~

!-.
!~

-~-~
-~--

-~-~
EJ

 .. ~-~
~--'

!1-~
~~

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
-

---
---

---
~Q_

!_!
_ ___

____
____

___ J
_ _

___
___

___
___

___
___

 ~3
5_

Q_~
_Q

Q __
____

____
____

____
____

____
____

_ _
 

N
o

rt
h

 W
a

te
r 

T
an

k 
20

17
 

$3
,0

00
,0

00
 

$2
5,

90
0,

00
0 



Th
e 

Pl
an

: 
U

pd
at

e 
D

eb
t 

F
u

n
d

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 C
o

st
 

F
Y

 2
01

7 
F

Y
 2

01
8 

S
o

u
th

 B
e

lto
n

 S
e

w
e

r 
$ 

6
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
 

$ 
6

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 
$ 

-
N

o
rt

h
 B

e
lto

n
 W

a
te

r 
T

a
n

k 
$ 

3
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
 

$ 
3

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 
$ 

-
W

a
co

 R
oa

d 
S

e
w

e
r 

M
ai

n 
R

e
p

la
ce

m
e

n
t 

$ 
3

0
0

,0
0

0
 

$ 
3

0
0

,0
0

0
 

L
ift

 S
ta

tio
n

 M
ai

n 
R

e
p

la
ce

m
e

n
ts

 
$ 

7
0

0
,0

0
0

 
$ 

7
0

0
,0

0
0

 
W

W
T

P
 P

h
a

se
s 

II 
$ 

7
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
 

$ 
-

$ 
7

,5
0

0
,0

0
0

 
W

W
T

P
 P

h
a

se
s 

Ill
-I

V
 

$ 
3

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 
Is

su
e

 C
o

st
s 

(2
0

1
7

) 
$ 

1
3

5
,0

0
0

 
$ 

1
3

5
,0

0
0

 
$ 

-
Is

su
e

 C
o

st
s 

(2
0

1
8

) 
$ 

1
2

5
,0

0
0

 
$ 

-
$ 

1
2

5
,0

0
0

 
Is

su
e

 C
o

st
s 

(2
0

1
9

) 
$ 

4
5

,0
0

0
 

T
o

ta
l 

$ 
20

,8
05

,0
00

 
$ 

9,
13

5,
00

0 
$ 

8,
62

5,
00

0 

A
n

ti
ci

p
at

ed
 D

e
b

t 
S

er
vi

ce
 C

o
st

 
$3

,0
00

,0
00

 
,
.
.
.
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$2
,5

00
,0

00
 
r
-
-
-
=
=
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
=
=
=
=
=
-
=
=
=
~
::

=:
:=

..
.-
-
-


$2
,0

00
,0

00
 

$1
,5

00
,0

00
 

$1
,0

00
,0

00
 

$5
00

,0
00

 

so
 

B
C

W
C

I D
 

E
xi

st
in

g
 

FY
 2

0
1

7
 Is

su
e 

FY
 2

0
1

8
 I

ss
ue

 
FY

 2
0

1
9

 Is
su

e 

F
Y

 2
01

9 
$ 

-
$ 

-

$ 
-

$ 
3

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

 
$ 

-
$ 

-
$ 

4
5

,0
0

0
 

$ 
3,

04
5,

00
0 



P
ol

ic
y 

D
ire

ct
io

n 
-

U
til

ity
 R

at
e 

P
la

n 
T

a
b

le
 1

: 
R

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 W

a
te

r 
R

a
te

s 

(P
er

 T
ho

us
an

d 
G

al
lo

ns
) 

T
a

b
le

 2
: 

R
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r 

R
a

te
s 

(P
er

 T
ho

us
an

d 
G

al
lo

ns
) 

• 
A

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 F

Y
 1

7 
R

ev
en

ue
 I

m
pa

ct
 -

$4
20

,0
00

 



P
ol

ic
y 

D
ire

ct
io

n 
-

U
til

ity
 R

at
e 

P
la

n 

F
Y

 2
01

7 
M

on
th

ly
 C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

Im
pa

ct
 

W
a

te
r 

20
16

 
20

17
 

In
cr

ea
se

 
5,

00
0 

$
2

5
.9

7
 

$ 
27

.1
0 

$ 
1.

13
 

15
,0

00
 

$
6

0
.8

7
 

$ 
64

.1
0 

$ 
3.

23
 

W
a

te
r 

&
 S

ew
er

 
20

16
 

20
17

 
In

cr
ea

se
 

25
,0

00
 

$
9

5
.7

7
 

$
1

0
1

.1
0

 
$ 

5.
33

 
5,

00
0 

$ 
51

.9
7 

$ 
55

.1
0 

$ 
3.

13
 

15
,0

00
 

$
1

3
1

.8
7

 
$

1
4

2
.1

0
 

$
1

0
.2

3
 

S
ew

er
 

20
16

 
20

17
 

In
cr

ea
se

 
25

,0
00

 
$

1
6

6
.7

7
 

$
1

7
9

.1
0

 
$

1
2

.3
3

 
5,

00
0 

$
2

6
.0

0
 

$ 
28

.0
0 

$ 
2.

00
 

15
,0

00
 

$
7

1
.0

0
 

$ 
78

.0
0 

$ 
7.

00
 

25
,0

00
 

$
7

1
.0

0
 

$ 
78

.0
0 

$ 
7.

00
 



F
Y

 2
01

6 
R

ev
ie

w
 

D
ra

in
ag

e 
F

u
n

d
 

$
4

0
0

,0
0

0
 

$
3

5
0

,0
0

0
 

$
3

0
0

,0
0

0
 

$
2

5
0

,0
0

0
 

$
2

0
0

,0
0

0
 

$
1

5
0

,0
0

0
 

$
1

0
0

,0
0

0
 

$
5

0
,0

0
0

 

$
0

 
FY

 2
0

1
6

 

•
C

ap
 it

al
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

•
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n 

•
su

p
p

li
es

 

•
O

u
ts

id
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s 

•
R

ep
ai

rs
 &

 M
ai

nt
 

•
P

er
so

nn
el

 

•
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
 



D
ra

in
ag

e 
F

un
d 

• 
C

on
ne

ll 
S

tr
ee

t 
P

ro
je

ct
 n

ea
rin

g 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 

• 
M

as
te

r 
P

la
n 

U
pd

at
e 

in
-p

ro
gr

es
s;

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
u

n
d

e
r 

re
vi

ew
 

• 
N

o 
ch

an
ge

 in
 r

at
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

t t
hi

s 
tim

e 



R
ec

ap
 

• 
B

ud
ge

t 
In

iti
at

iv
es

 &
 C

ou
nc

il 
D

ire
ct

io
n 

• 
R

es
po

ns
e 

to
 P

er
so

nn
el

 P
re

ss
ur

es
 

• 
C

ap
ita

l 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

P
la

ns
 

• 
W

at
er

 a
nd

 S
ew

er
 C

ap
ita

l 
P

ro
je

ct
s 

• 
W

at
er

 a
nd

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 R
at

e 
P

la
n 















P
H

A
S

E
 I

 
P

H
A

 
E

 II
 

F
U

T
U

R
E

 E
X

P
A

 



P
ha

se
 I

 E
ng

in
ee

ri
ng

 a
n

d
 B

id
 P

ha
se

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

P
ha

se
 I

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

os
t E

st
im

at
e 

P
ha

se
 I

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
E

st
im

at
e 

P
ha

se
 I

I 
E

ng
in

ee
ri

ng
 a

n
d

 B
id

 P
ha

se
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
el

to
n'

s 
E

st
im

at
ed

 2
5%

 S
ha

re
 

20
14

 C
O

 F
un

di
ng

 

R
ev

is
ea

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

$2
94

,5
58

 

$9
64

,6
10

 

$7
,2

90
,0

00
 

$4
85

,0
00

 

$2
,1

19
,4

97
 

$1
1,

15
3,

66
5 

$2
,7

88
,4

16
 

$2
,7

60
,0

00
 

-$
28

,4
16

 

$7
3,

64
0 

$2
41

,1
52

 

$1
,8

22
,5

00
 

$1
21

,2
50

 

$5
29

,8
74

 









P&Z Agenda Item 
June 21, 2016 

Page 1 of 3   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
          
         Date:  June 28, 2016
         Case No.: Z-16-07 
         Request: CH to C-1  
         Applicant: Neil Bufkin 
 
Agenda Item #5 
 
Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Commercial Highway to 
Commercial-1 Zoning District for a minor auto repair shop at 501 East Avenue I, a 0.33 acre 
tract of land, located on the southeast corner of South Beal Street and East Avenue I. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Erin Smith, Director of Planning 
 
Case Summary 
 
The applicant has submitted this request for a zone change to Commercial-1 to allow for a 
minor auto repair shop. To the north are single family homes zoned Commercial Highway 
and Baird & Hunter Electric; to the east and south are single family homes zoned Commercial 
Highway; and to the west is L&N Auto Sales. 
 
Current Zoning    Proposed Zoning  
    
Commercial Highway   Commercial-1  
 
Design Standards Type Area :    2 Recommended Type Area:  2 
 
This property is in the identified Type Area 2 in the Design Standards. If approved, a 
Commercial-1 District use would be required to comply with all the Design Standards for 
Type Area 2. 
 
Land Use Table/Allowable Uses 
 
The Commercial-1 Zoning District with the Specific Use Permit will allow for mini-storage 
warehouses. The uses allowed in the base Commercial-1 Zoning District include: 
 

• Any use permitted in the Retail District (i.e. Gasoline or service station) 
• Auto sales 
• Consumer repair services 
• Food sales 



P&Z Agenda Item 
June 21, 2016 

Page 2 of 3   
 

• Home improvement Center with outside storage 
• Hotel or motel 
• Pawn Shop 
• Trailer Rental 
• Tool and Light Equipment Rental 
• Wholesale club or department store 

 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
This vacant property is 0.33 acres and is currently zoned Commercial Highway. The applicant 
is proposing a zoning change to Commercial-1 to allow for a minor auto repair shop. The 
applicant owns L&N Auto Sales located directly west of this property. The applicant would like 
to construct a building to complete minor repair services to the vehicles for resale at the L&N 
Auto Sales lot. The applicant is also proposing to have a paint booth for touch-ups needed to 
the vehicles for resale, but the principal use will be minor vehicle repair.    
 
In 2009, the applicant rezoned the L&N Auto Sales property to Commercial Highway with a 
Specific Use Permit for a full service auto repair, wrecker service, and caretaker’s quarters in 
the existing residence. At that time, the applicant planned to have the minor auto repair 
service at the L&N Auto Sales location. The business has grown since 2009 and the auto 
sales lot is fully utilized, so the applicant purchased this property due to the close proximity to 
L&N Auto Sales. The applicant stated that only vehicles for resale at the L&N Auto Sales lot 
will receive service at this minor auto repair shop.  
 
Transitions will be needed to the east until such time that the existing residential property 
converts to a business use. Staff recommends construction of a 6 feet tall wooden or metal 
fence. If a metal fence is installed, recommend it contain a baked-on color. The vehicles 
scheduled for repair should be screened from public view.         
       
After careful review of the City’s Design Standards and the applicability of this use among 
surrounding properties, this requested zone change appears to be reasonable in this location.  
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of zone change from Commercial Highway to Commercial-1 Zoning 
District for a minor auto repair shop, with development regulated under the Design Standards 
for Type Area 2 standards as follows: 
 

1. The allowable uses of the property shall conform to the Commercial-1 Zoning District 
in all respects.  
 

2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 2 Design 
Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
including: 
 



P&Z Agenda Item 
June 21, 2016 

Page 3 of 3   
 

a. Site Development Standards  
b. Building Design Standards 
c. Landscape Design Standards 

 
3. Sign Standards shall conform to Ordinance 2008-11.  

 
4. A 6 feet tall metal (with baked-on color) or solid wooden fence shall be constructed 

along the eastern and southern property lines to provide screening between this use 
and the adjacent single family residences.  In addition, this screening shall be provided 
along the northeastern property line extending to the proposed driveway.  The fencing 
directly adjacent to the driveway and roadway shall be reduced in height to ensure 
there is adequate visibility for vehicles and pedestrians.    
 

5. All outside storage of repair vehicles will be screened from public view.  
 
Attachments: 
 
Zoning application 
Property Location Map 
Zoning map 
Zoning notice to owners 
Property owners list 
P&ZC Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance 

 





S IH 35 SERVICE RD

E AVE H

SW
AL

KE
R

ST

E AVE K

S INTERSTATE 35

S M
AIN

 ST

E AVE M

S B
EA

L S
T

W AVE I

S IH
35

SE
RVICE RD

E AVE H

S B
EA

L S
T

E AVE I

W AVE H

E AVE J

S W
AL

L S
T

S W
AL

L S
T

E AVE M

E AVE J

E AVE I

ON
RA

MP

EXIT 293B

S INTERSTATE 35

MU
EL

HA
US

E S
T

CA
RL

A 
CIR

SA
MU

EL
 DR

S P
EN

EL
OP

E S
T

CA
RL

A
KA

Y
DR

§̈¦35

0 140 28070
Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-07\Z-16-07 Location.mxd    -    Date: 6/23/2016

W AV E I

S P
EA

RL
 ST

SU
RG

HN
OR

 ST

HOLLAND RD

E AV E H

S W
AL

L S
T

E AV E K

W AV E D

TR
EM

ON
T S

T

E AV E M

W AV E C

S
HE

AD
S T

W AV E O

SHA RO N RD

W AV E J

BR
OO

KIN
G S

T
JO

RD
AN

 ST

S W
AL

L S
T

E AV E I

E AV E E

E AV E J

E AV E M
E AV E N

W AV E E

S D
AV

IS 
ST

W AV E J

S
IH

3 5
S E

RV
IC

E
RD

WATER ST

S
EA

S T
S

T

S M
AI

N S
T

C A
R L

A
CI

R

E A V E R

E AV E J

RAMP

E A V E C

FA
IRW

AY
 DR

MI
LL

ER
 ST

FA IRWA Y DR

E A V E P

E AV E I

E AV E JON
RA

MP

JA
CK

SO
N 

ST

HU
GH

ES
 ST

EX
IT 

29
2

FA
IRW

AY
 DR

R A
Y

S T

E AV E O

SH ADY LN

S INTERSTATE 35

LI

NDS AY C IR

S W
AL

L S
T

S P
EN

EL
OP

E S
T

S P
EA

RL
 ST

S B
EA

L S
T

S B
IRDWELL

 ST

CA
RLA K AY

DR

§̈¦35

£¤190

LEGEND
Z_16_07

´

Zoning Location
Zoning Case  #   Zoning Case  #    Z-16-07 Location Z-16-07 Location

ZONING CHANGE:
Commercial Highway 
to Commercial-1

LEE, BLOCK 016,
 LOT PT BLK, 
(W 110' OF N 126' OF BLK), 
ENHANCED LIFE EST,

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:

501 E Ave I
ADDRESS/LOCATION:
WALL STREET 
PROPERTIES LLC



S P
EA

RL
 ST

W AVE I

W AVE H

E AVE C

W 190 HWY

E AVE Q

W AVE D

E AVE O

FLYOVER RAMP

W US HWY 190 SERVICE RD

HA
LE

S
T

E AVE H

MU
EL

HA
US

E
ST

E AVE K

W US HWY 190 SERVICE RD

S IH 35 SERVICE RD

SPRING ST

E AVE B

E AVE M

S H
EA

D S
T

FLYOVER RAMP

MA
YS

 ST

E AV E P

S IH
35

SE
RV

ICE
RD

SHARON RD
E AVE P

CO
NN

EL
L S

T

W AVE J

E AVE H

SW
AL

KE
R

ST

S W
AL

L S
T

E AVE I

HOLLAND RD

SPRING ST

E AVE J
S W

AL
L S

T

E AVE D

S M
AIN

 ST

E AVE F

SU
RG

HN
OR

 ST

HU
GH

ES
 ST

S D
AV

IS 
ST

S D
AV

IS 
ST

SA
UN

DE
RS

 ST

E AVE E

E AVE N

S D
AV

IS 
ST

S IH 35 SERVICE RD

W AVE I

W AVE J

W AVE O

SE
AS

T
ST

HIG
HL

AN
D D

R

S I
H 3

5 S
ER

VIC
E RD

FA
IR

WA
Y D

R

E AVE J

S B
EA

L S
T

E AVE N

W AVE O

E AVE C

HU
GH

ES
 ST

JA
CK

SO
N 

ST

FA
IR

WA
Y D

R

SU
RG

HN
OR

 ST

S INTERSTATE 35

IH 35 SERVICE RD

E AVE P

E AVE I

E AVE J

E AVE E

ON RAMP

MAGNOLIA RD

ON
RA

MP

EX
IT

292

FA
IRW

AY
 DR

RA
Y 

ST

E AVE O

EXIT 293B

SHADY LN

S INTERSTATE 35

ON RAMP

EXIT 294A

S W
AL

L S
T

S P
EN

EL
OP

E S
T

S BEAL ST

S P
EA

RL
 ST

S B
EA

L S
T

SHADY LN

CO
NN

EL
L S

T

CA
RL

A
CI

R

S B
EA

L S
T

SA
MU

EL
 DR

RAMP

CARLA KAY DR

FL
YO

VE
R RA

MP SUP-R Produce,SUP-R Produce,
Firewood,Firewood,

Lawn MowersLawn Mowers

SUP-CH-AutoSUP-CH-Auto
SalesSales

SUP-SF-1SUP-SF-1
PrivatePrivate
SchoolSchool

SUP-MobileSUP-Mobile
HomeHome

CH w/SUPCH w/SUP
Private ClubPrivate Club

SUP-DaySUP-Day
CareCare

SUP-AutoSUP-Auto
Detail ShopDetail Shop

SUP CHSUP CH
- Auto- Auto
RepairRepair

CH-SUP-94CH-SUP-94
Used CarUsed Car

SalesSales

SUP -SUP -
City-CountyCity-County

YardsYards

C-1 w/SUPC-1 w/SUP
OutsideOutside
StorageStorage

SUP -SUP -
Used CarUsed Car

SalesSales

CH w/SUP OpenCH w/SUP Open
Storage ofStorage of

Landscape MaterialsLandscape Materials

SUP -SUP -
CemeteryCemetery

SUP- CitySUP- City
Yard andYard and
BuildingBuilding

SUP-95SUP-95
SUP- RodeoSUP- Rodeo
Grounds NoGrounds No

Longer ExistsLonger Exists
SF-2 /SUPSF-2 /SUP
CafetoriumCafetorium

SUP-3SUP-3SUP-3SUP-3

SUP-3SUP-3
SUP-3SUP-3

SUPSUP

CH w/SUPCH w/SUP
New TrailerNew Trailer

SalesSales

C-1 w/C-1 w/
SUPSUP

SUP CHSUP CH
- Used- Used

Car SalesCar Sales

SF-2 w/ SUP Church &SF-2 w/ SUP Church &
Ancillary BuildingsAncillary Buildings

SF-2 w/ SUPSF-2 w/ SUP
Church & AncillaryChurch & Ancillary

BuildingsBuildings

PD Low IncomePD Low Income
HousingHousing

PD - UsedPD - Used
Car SalesCar Sales

PD-RPD-R
- Used- Used
Car LotCar Lot

PD-R - UsedPD-R - Used
Car LotCar Lot

PD-R UsedPD-R Used
Car LotCar Lot

PD- SF2PD- SF2
InfillInfill

DevelopmentDevelopment

PD-RPD-R
UsedUsed
CarsCars

PD- OfficePD- Office
andand

ResidentialResidential

PD-R UsedPD-R Used
Car SalesCar Sales

APD-RAPD-R

§̈¦35£¤190

0 325 650162.5 Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Zoning Location

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-07\Z-16-07 Zoning.mxd    -    Date: 6/23/2016

Legend
CityLimits
Z_16_07

Current_Zoning
Agricultural
Commercial Highway
Commercial-1
Commercial-2
Conservation Revitalization Overlay
Multi Family
Office-1
Planned Development
Redevelopment District
Retail
Single Family-2
Single Family-3
Specific Use Permit
Two Family

´

Zoning Case  #   Zoning Case  #    Z-16-07 Zoning Z-16-07 Zoning

ZONING CHANGE:
Commercial Highway 
to Commercial-1

LEE, BLOCK 016,
 LOT PT BLK, 
(W 110' OF N 126' OF BLK), 
ENHANCED LIFE EST,

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:

501 E Ave I
ADDRESS/LOCATION:
WALL STREET 
PROPERTIES LLC



S W
AL

KE
R S

T

S W
AL

L S
T

S IH
35

SERVICE RD

S B
EA

L S
T

E AVE I

E AVE J

0 30 6015
Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-07\Z-16-07 Aerial.mxd    -    Date: 6/23/2016

LEGEND
Z_16_07

´

Zoning Case  #   Zoning Case  #    Z-16-07 Aerial Z-16-07 Aerial

ZONING CHANGE:
Commercial Highway 
to Commercial-1

LEE, BLOCK 016,
 LOT PT BLK, 
(W 110' OF N 126' OF BLK), 
ENHANCED LIFE EST,

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:

501 E Ave I
ADDRESS/LOCATION:
WALL STREET 
PROPERTIES LLC



E AVE H

E AVE K

S IH 35 SERVICE RD

S INTERSTATE 35

S W
AL

KE
R S

T
CARLA KAY DR

S B
EA

L S
T

E AVE I

S B
EA

L S
T

E AVE I

EXIT 293B

S W
AL

L S
T

S IH
35

SER
VIC

E RD

ON
 RA

MP

E AVE J

S INTERSTATE 35

S P
EN

EL
OP

E S
T

SA
MU

EL
 DR

51 43

5142

63012

96835

10
51

37

9776576511

102728

44934

76
5 0

3

17649

66
50

3

97 5 4 4

97543

40
22

40

1 1
8 0

61

3476

61441

§̈¦35

0 90 18045 Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-07\Z-16-07.mxd    -    Date: 6/23/2016

200' Property Owner
Notification Area

Legend
Z_16_07
200' Property Owner
Notification Area
Tax Appraisal Parcels

Zoning Case  #   Zoning Case  #    Z-16-07 Z-16-07

´

ZONING CHANGE:
Commercial Highway 
to Commercial-1

LEE, BLOCK 016,
 LOT PT BLK, 
(W 110' OF N 126' OF BLK), 
ENHANCED LIFE EST,

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:

501 E Ave I
ADDRESS/LOCATION:
WALL STREET 
PROPERTIES LLC



NOTICE OF APPLICATION 
FOR AN 

AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
OF THE 

CITY OF BELTON 
 
THE CITY OF BELTON HAS RECEIVED A REQUEST FROM:  NEIL BUFKIN , 
TO CHANGE THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY:        501 EAST AVENUE I  , 
FROM A(N)  COMMERCIAL HIGHWAY  __________ZONING DISTRICT, 
TO A(N)              COMMERCIAL-1  ZONING DISTRICT. 
    

THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS WILL HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING 
PURSUANT TO THIS REQUEST AT 5:30 P.M., Tuesday, June 21, 2016 IN THE WRIGHT ROOM AT THE T.B. HARRIS 
CENTER, 401 N. ALEXANDER, BELTON, TEXAS. 

 
IF APPROVED BY THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION, THIS ITEM WILL BE PLACED ON THE AGENDA FOR 

A PUBLIC HEARING BY THE CITY COUNCIL.  THAT MEETING WILL BE AT 5:30 P.M., Tuesday, June 28, 2016, AT 
THE T. B. HARRIS COMMUNITY CENTER, 401 ALEXANDER STREET, BELTON, TEXAS. 
 

AS AN INTERESTED PROPERTY OWNER, THE CITY OF BELTON INVITES YOU TO MAKE YOUR VIEWS KNOWN 
BY ATTENDING THESE HEARINGS.  YOU MAY SUBMIT WRITTEN COMMENTS ABOUT THIS ZONING CHANGE BY 
COMPLETING THIS FORM AND RETURNING IT TO THE ADDRESS BELOW. 
 

IF YOU REQUIRE INTERPRETER SERVICES FOR THE DEAF OR HEARING IMPAIRED, PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY 
CLERK AT CITY HALL AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE THESE MEETINGS. 
  
                                                   circle one 

AS AN INTERESTED PROPERTY OWNER, I (PROTEST) (APPROVE) THE REQUESTED ZONING AMENDMENT PRESENTED IN 
THE APPLICATION ABOVE FOR THE REASONS EXPRESSED BELOW: 
 
1.   
 
2.   
 
3.   
 (FURTHER COMMENTS MAY BE EXPRESSED ON A SEPARATE SHEET OF PAPER) 
 
DATE:       SIGNATURE:    
 
                                                         PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
                                                         CITY OF BELTON 
                                                         P. O. BOX 120 
                                                         BELTON, TEXAS  76513  
                                                                                                                                                                              254-933-5812 



3476 

JOHNSON, CATHY LUCKY 

502 E AVENUE I 

BELTON, TX 76513-3904 
 

 
5142 

BAIRD & HUNTER ELECTRIC 

PO BOX 875 

BELTON, TX 76513-0875 
 

 
5143 

BAIRD & HUNTER ELECTRIC 

PO BOX 875 

BELTON, TX 76513-0875 
 

17649 

CARRASCO, RANDY DELGADO 

2010A S 15TH ST 

TEMPLE, TX 76504-7305 
 

 
44934 

HALE, CORDELIA 

1028 S WALL ST 

BELTON, TX 76513-3949 
 

 
61441 

BUFKIN, NEIL 

2033 SOUTHWINDS DR 

LORENA, TX 76655-3736 
 

63012 

PARKINSON, JACK DAVID 

2813 STRATFORD DR 

TEMPLE, TX 76502 
 

 
66503 

LUCKY, LAVETA P 

202 E MOUNT VERNON ST 

MABANK, TX 75147-2343 
 

 
76503 

GONZALEZ, ANDRES 

PO BOX 653 

ROGERS, TX 76569-0653 
 

76511 

GUERRERO, ANDREA 

611 HOLLAND RD 

BELTON, TX 76513 
 

 
96835 

BUFKIN, NEIL 

2033 SOUTHWINDS DR 

LORENA, TX 76655-3736 
 

 
97543 

JACK-O-LANTERN LTD 

PO BOX 1786 

BELTON, TX 76513-5786 
 

97544 

REGIAN, FRANK ETUX NETTIE 

504 E AVENUE I 

BELTON, TX 76513-3904 
 

 
97765 

LUNA, JESSE ETAL 

504 E AVENUE J 

BELTON, TX 76513-3906 
 

 
102728 

BUFKIN, NEIL M 

2033 SOUTHWINDS DR 

LORENA, TX 76655-3736 
 

105137 

JACK-O-LANTERN LTD 

PO BOX 1786 

BELTON, TX 76513-5786 
 

 
118061 

WALL STREET PROPERTIES LLC 

1020 SOUTH WALL STREET 

BELTON, TX 76513-2052 
 

 
402240 

KILLEEN MAJESTIC HOMES INC 

PO BOX 340 

TROY, TX 76579-0340 
 

 
SUPERINTENDENT 
DR. SUSAN KINCANNON  
BELTON I.S.D.  
P O BOX 269 

  BELTON TEXAS 76513 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 







1 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, June 21, 2016 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Chair John Holmes, Ben Pamplin, Joel Berryman, 
Eloise Lundgren, Mat Naegele, Brett Baggerly, Rae Schmuck, Jason Morgan and Frank Minosky. The 
following staff members were present: City Manager, Sam Listi, Director of Planning, Erin Smith, 
Parks and Recreation Director, Matt Bates, and Planning Clerk, Laura Livingston. 
 
3. Z-16-07  Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Commercial Highway to 

Commercial-1 Zoning District for a minor auto repair shop at 501 East Avenue I, a 0.33 acre 
tract of land, located on the southeast corner of South Beal Street and East Avenue I.  
 
Ms. Smith presented the staff report. 
 
Chair Holmes opened the public hearing.  
 
Nettie Regian, 504 E. Avenue I, asked the Commission to take into consideration the potential  for 
increased traffic into the area. She also stated the noise of the vehicles could be an issue. She’s 
lived on that street for almost 30 years. With no one else requesting to speak, Chair Holmes closed 
the public hearing.  
 
Mr. Minosky asked the difference between the Commercial Highway and Commercial-1 Zoning 
District. Ms. Smith said a car repair shop making minor repairs is not permitted for Commercial 
Highway zoning and Commercial-1 will allow for this proposed use. Ms. Smith said a 6-foot tall 
fence will be constructed along the eastern property line to provide screening between this 
proposed use and the adjacent residents. Also, all outdoor storage of vehicles will be screened. 
Chair Holmes asked for clarification. Ms. Smith said the eastern side of the property will be 
fenced-in. Chair Holmes suggested screening on the northern side as well. The applicant Neil 
Bufkin, 1020 S. Wall St., said he intends to construct a fence along the southern property line, but 
he would like to have a driveway along East Avenue I and South Beal Street for circulation. Mr. 
Naegele asked about the noise concern. Mr. Bufkin said he didn’t believe the extra work would 
create more noise, adding that the highway noise will be more dominant than the shop’s noise. He 
will not be soliciting public work and it will not expand into a large operation. Mr. Pamplin asked 
if the change is to mostly include overflow work. Mr. Bufkin said yes, and then spoke to Ms. 
Regian and said if she has any concerns, she can come to him.  

Mr. Naegele made the motion to approve item Z-16-07 a zoning change from Commercial 
Highway to Commercial-1 Zoning District for a minor auto repair shop at 501 East Avenue I, a 
0.33 acre tract of land, located on the southeast corner of South Beal Street and East Avenue I. Mr. 
Pamplin seconded the motion, which was approved unanimously with 9 ayes, 0 nays.  
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2016-22 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BEL TON BY 
CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM COMMERCIAL HIGHWAY TO 
COMMERCIAL-1 ZONING DISTRICT ON A 0.33 ACRE TRACT, WITH DEVELOPMENT 
TO BE REGULATED UNDER TYPE AREA 2 DESIGN STANDARDS. 

WHEREAS, Neil Bufkin, owner of the following described property has presented a 
petition duly signed, to the City Planning & Zoning Commission and filed said petition with 
the City Clerk of the City of Belton, and due notice of filing of said petition and hearing on 
said petition has been given as required by the City Zoning Ordinance and by law, and a 
hearing on said petition before the City Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Belton 
was set for the 21st day of June, 2016, at 5:30 p.m. for hearing and adoption, said district 
being described as follows: 

501 East Avenue I, a 0.33 acre tract of land, Belton, Texas 
(location map attached as Exhibit "A") 

WHEREAS, said application for such amendment was duly recommended by the 
said City Planning & Zoning Commission and the date, time and place of the hearing on 
said application by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 28th day of June, 
2016, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the application by the City Council of the City 
of Belton at the time, place and date herein before set forth and no valid objection to said 
amendments was presented. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Belton, 
Texas, that the said district located on a tract of land as more fully and completely 
described above, be and is hereby changed from a Commercial Highway Zoning District to 
Commercial-1 Zoning District, in accordance with Section 24 - Commercial-1 Zoning 
District, and the Design Standards in Ordinance No. 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning 
Ordinance. The Zoning Ordinance of the City of Belton is hereby amended, subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. The allowable uses of the property shall conform to the Commercial-1 Zoning 
District in all respects. 

2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 2 Design 
Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
including: 

a. Site Development Standards 
b. Building Design Standards 
c. Landscape Design Standards 



3. Sign Standards shall conform to Ordinance 2008-11. 

4. A 6 feet tall metal (with baked-color) or solid wooden fence shall be constructed 
along the eastern property line to provide screening between this use and the 
adjacent single family residence. 

5. All outside storage of repair vehicles will be screened from public view. 

This ordinance was presented at the stated meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Belton and upon reading was passed and adopted by the City Council on the 281

h day of 
June, 2016, by a vote of ayes and nays. 

SIGNED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk on this the 
28th day of June, 2016. 

Marion Grayson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

H
ig

h
w

a
y 

to
 C

om
m

er
ci

al
-1

 

E
G

A
L

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
: 

LE
E

, B
L

O
C

K
 0

16
, 

L
O

T
 P

T
 B

L
K

, 
0/

11
11

 O
' O

F
 N

 1
2

6'
 O

F
 B

LK
) 

E
N

H
A

N
C

E
D

 L
IF

E
 E

S
T,

 

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 O
W

N
E

R
: 

W
A

LL
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
IE

S
 L

LC
 

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
/L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

: 

50
1 

E
A

ve
 I

 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 1 of 3   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
        Date:  June 28, 2016 
        Case No.: Z-16-08 
        Request: HI to LI 
        Applicant: City of Belton  
Agenda Item #6 
     
Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Heavy Industrial to Light Industrial 
on a 36.326 acre tract of land, located on the north side of East 6th Avenue/FM 93, south of 
Taylors Valley Road, and east of Interstate Highway 35. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Erin Smith, Director of Planning 
 
Case Summary 
 
This is a City-initiated proposal to rezone this property from Heavy Industrial to Light 
Industrial, in conjunction with redevelopment of the former Rockwool property. The principal 
reason is to provide for compatible commercial and light industrial uses along FM 93 (East 6th 
Avenue), at the entrance to the City at Council’s recommendation. Permitted Heavy Industrial 
uses, in contrast to Light Industrial uses, are listed in the attached Zoning Ordinance 
excerpts, as well as Specific Use Permit opportunities.  
 
The City has submitted this request for a zone change to provide for light industrial 
development. To the north are APAC Texas Inc. and ECS Environmental Solutions; to the 
northeast are Belco Manufacturing, Tarco of Texas, and American Spincast; to the west is 
the Belton Police Department outdoor shooting range; and to the south is the Temple-Belton 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (TBWWTP).  
 
Current Zoning     Proposed Zoning  
    
Heavy Industrial     Light Industrial  
 
Design Standards Type Area:  10   Recommended Type Area: 10 
 
This property is in Type Area 10 in the Design Standards. If approved, a Light Industrial District 
use would be required to comply with all the Design Standards for Type Area 10. 
 
Land Use Table/Allowable Uses 
 
The Light Industrial Zoning District allows the following land uses, and would accommodate 
this request: 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 2 of 3   
 

• Apparel and other products assembled from finished textiles 
• Contractor’s yard 
• Electronic products manufacturing 
• Facilities for the manufacturing, fabrication, processing or assembly of products 

provided that such facilities are completely enclosed and provided that no effects from 
noise, smoke, glare, vibration, fumes or other environmental factors are measurable at 
the property line. 

• Farm implement manufacturing 
• Industrial and manufacturing plants including the processing or assembling of parts for 

production or finished equipment where the process of manufacturing or treatment of 
materials is such that no dust, odor, gas, smoke or noise is emitted and not more than 
twenty percent (20%) of the lot or tract is used for the open storage of products, 
materials, or equipment 

• Newspaper printing 
• Plastic products manufacture, but not including the processing of raw materials 
• Sporting and athletic equipment manufacture 

 
A number of uses would also be possible with consideration of a Specific Use Permit.  
 
Some Heavy Industrial uses that would not be allowed if this zone change is approved are: 

• Fat Rendering 
• Fertilizer Manufacturing 
• Meat Packing Plant 
• Petroleum Refining/Storage 
• Smelting 
• Stockyards 
• Wrecking Yards 

 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
This property is located amidst other industrial uses. The applicant is proposing this zone 
change to allow for light industrial development. The Future Land Use Plan identifies this 
area as Heavy Industrial and it is staff’s judgment that heavy and light industrial uses are 
compatible.  
 
This property is a portion of the former 100-acre Rockwool Industries, Inc. site, a mineral 
wool insulation manufacturing plant that operated on site from 1950 to 1987. The EPA has 
put remedies in place to protect public health and the environment. The EPA gave a 
Superfund Redevelopment planning grant to the City of Belton to support the site’s return to 
beneficial use. The environmental remedies have been completed and this property may now 
be developed in compliance with EPA and TCEQ conditions.   
 
The Belton Economic Development Corporation (BEDC) will acquire this 36.326 acre site and 
market the property for industrial development. The ECS Environmental Solutions property is 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 3 of 3   
 

located directly north of this site in the rezoning proposal. BEDC staff have been working with 
the owner regarding possible purchase of the northern 5 acres of this property for a parking 
lot expansion. ECS Environmental Solutions is an industrial use that develops, designs and 
manufactures equipment for the treatment of odorous compounds in air-streams.  This zoning 
change will not affect the proposed parking lot expansion.  
 
After careful review of the City’s Design Standards and the applicability of this use among 
surrounding properties, this proposed zone change appears to be reasonable in this location.  
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of zone change from Heavy Industrial to Light Industrial District with 
development regulated under the Design Standards for Type Area 10 standards as follows: 
 

1. The allowable uses of the property shall conform to the Light Industrial Zoning District 
in all respects. 
 

2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 10 Design 
Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
including: 
 

a. Site Development Standards discussed above 
b. Building Design Standards 
c. Landscape Design Standards 

 
3. Sign Standards shall conform to Ordinance 2008-11. 

 
4. A subdivision plat is required.  

 
Attachments: 
Zoning application 
Property Location Map 
Zoning map 
Aerial photo 
Map with zoning notice boundary (200’) 
Zoning notice to owners 
Property owners list 
Light Industrial and Heavy Industrial District Zoning Ordinance Standards 
SUP, Specific Use Permit Standards Allowable in the Light Industrial District 
P&ZC Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance 





E 6TH AVE

TAYLORS VALLEY RD

E CENTRAL AVE

ON RAMP
EXIT 293A

HU
BB

AR
D L

N

RO
CK

 W
OO

L R
D

IH 35 SERVICE RD

TAYLORS VALLEY RD
L E O N R I V E R

N
O

L
A

N
C

R
E

E
K

§̈¦35

0 280 560140
Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-08\Z-16-08 Location.mxd    -    Date: 5/25/2016

CO
LL

EG
E S

T

E 4 T H AV EE 3R D AV E

W AV E J

CO
RI

DR

W A C O R D

E 6T HAVE

W 1 4 T H A V E

HO LLAND
R D

W AVE I S H
EA

D S
T

N B
LA

IR 
ST

H A S T IN G S R D

JO
RD

AN
 ST

SPR ING ST

WA
RR

EN
 ST

E 1 7 T H A V E

N W
AL

L S
T

HI
GH

LA
ND

 D
R

E A
VE

 A

MAGNOLIA ST

HU
BB

ARD
LN

E 1 9T H AV E

N B
EA

L S
T

N M
AI

N S
T

S BEAL ST

S D
AV

IS  
ST

S B
EA

L S
T

E
AV

E
S

C A R L A KA
Y

DR

FM 436

PA
RKS

IDE

FM 93

GENERAL
BRUCE

TW
IN

CI
TY

GENERAL

BRUCE

DUSTY

CHARTER

OAK

WI
TT

ER

GENERAL

BRUCE

CHARPING

LUKERBUTLER

SH
ALLO

W
FO

RD

TAYLORSVALLEY

DECKER
UV121

§̈¦35

LEGEND
Z_16_08

´

Zoning Location
Zoning Case  #   Zoning Case  #    Z-16-08 Location Z-16-08 Location

ZONING CHANGE:
Heavy Industrial
to 
Light Industrial

A0020BC O T TYLER, 
ACRES 36.326

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
CITY OF BELTON TRUSTEE

E 6th Ave
ADDRESS/LOCATION:



W FM 93

TAYLORS VALLEY RD

S GENERAL BRUCE DR

S GENERAL BRUCE DR

CHARPING LN

TAYLORS VALLEY RD

HA
LE

ST

N B
LA

IR 
ST

E CENTRAL AVE

E 6TH AVE

N M
AIN

 ST

N B
EA

L S
T

E AVE H

E 11TH AVE
S W

AL
KE

R S
T

WATER ST

E AVE B

E AVE M

E 1ST AVE

N E
AS

T S
T

N B
LA

IR 
ST

MA
YS

 ST

SHARON RD

PECAN DR

N W
AL

L S
T

CO
NT

INENTAL ST

JO
RD

AN
 ST

ELL EN
PL

E 9TH AVE

E 1ST AVE

N B
EA

L S
T

N 
HE

AD
 ST

E 3RD AVE

TAYLORS VALLEY RD

S IH 35 SERVICE RD

E7TH AVE

CA
RL

A
CIR

E A
VE

 A

E AVE N

ELM DR

N H
EA

D S
T COMAY ST

E AVE C

N H
EA

D S
T

E AVE J

HU
BB

AR
D LN

FA
IRW

AY
 DR

RA
Y

ST

E AVE O

ON RAMPEXIT 293A

SH
AD

Y L
N

EXIT 293B

E 10THAVE

ON RAMP

SHADY LN

TAYLORS VALLEY RD

MAGNOLIA RD

S INTERSTATE 35

RO
CK

WO
OL

RD

SH
AD

Y L
N

NE
IL 

ST

CO
RI

 DR

LIVE O AK DR

LINDSAY CIR
LINDSAY CIR

EA
VE

S

PA
LMETTO

DR

FOREST DR

CARLA KAY
DR

E COMAYCIR

CIRCLE DR

SHADY
LN

SUP - TXSUP - TX
HWY DeptHWY Dept

Yard and BldgYard and Bldg

SUP-CH-AutoSUP-CH-Auto
SalesSales

SUP-MobileSUP-Mobile
HomeHome

SUP-DaySUP-Day
CareCare

SF-1 w/ SUPSF-1 w/ SUP
Mobile HomeMobile Home

SUP - UsedSUP - Used
Car SalesCar Sales

CH w/SUP OpenCH w/SUP Open
Storage ofStorage of

Landscape MaterialsLandscape Materials

SUP -SUP -
CemeteryCemetery

SUP-95SUP-95SUP- RodeoSUP- Rodeo
Grounds NoGrounds No

Longer ExistsLonger Exists

SUP-SUP-
PrivatePrivate

ClubClub

C-2 SUP MobileC-2 SUP Mobile
ConcessionConcession

StandStand

SUP-SUP-
PrivatePrivate

ClubClub

SUPSUP
PersonalPersonal
ServiceService

SUP-3SUP-3

SUP-3SUP-3

O-2 w/SUPO-2 w/SUP
Bail BondBail Bond

C-1 w/C-1 w/
SUPSUP

SF-2 w/SUPSF-2 w/SUP
CharitableCharitable

OrganizationOrganization

PD-RPD-R
ChurchChurch

PD-RPD-R
Mixed UseMixed Use

PD-SF-2PD-SF-2
Tea RoomTea Room

PD -PD -
2Family2Family
DuplexDuplex

PD-NSPD-NS

PD- 2 FamilyPD- 2 Family
DuplexDuplex

PD-2FPD-2F

PD-SF-3PD-SF-3
ManufacturedManufactured

HomesHomes

PD-HI RegionalPD-HI Regional
Firearms TrainingFirearms Training

FacilityFacility

PD-CBD RetailPD-CBD Retail
Gun StoreGun Store

§̈¦35

0 700 1,400350 Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Zoning Location

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-08\Z-16-08 Zoning.mxd    -    Date: 5/25/2016

Legend
Z_16_08

Current_Zoning
Agricultural
Central Business District
Commercial Highway
Commercial-1
Commercial-2
Conservation Revitalization Overlay
Heavy Industrial
Light Industrial
Mobile Home
Multi Family
Neighborhood Service
Office-1
Planned Development
Redevelopment District
Retail
Single Family-1
Single Family-2
Single Family-3
Specific Use Permit
Two Family

´

Zoning Case  #   Zoning Case  #    Z-16-08 Zoning Z-16-08 Zoning

ZONING CHANGE:
Heavy Industrial
to 
Light Industrial

A0020BC O T TYLER, 
ACRES 36.326

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
CITY OF BELTON TRUSTEE

E 6th Ave
ADDRESS/LOCATION:



TAYLORS VALLEY RD

E 6TH AVE

N
O

L
A

N
C

R
E

E
K

0 140 28070
Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-08\Z-16-08 Aerial.mxd    -    Date: 5/25/2016

LEGEND
Z_16_08

´

Zoning Case  #   Zoning Case  #    Z-16-08 Aerial Z-16-08 Aerial

ZONING CHANGE:
Heavy Industrial
to 
Light Industrial

A0020BC O T TYLER, 
ACRES 36.326

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
CITY OF BELTON TRUSTEE

E 6th Ave
ADDRESS/LOCATION:



TAYLORS VALLEY RD

E 6TH AVE

E CENTRAL AVE

ON RAMP
EXIT 293A

HU
BB

AR
D L

N

IH 35 SERVICE RD

TAYLORS VALLEY RD

§̈¦35

80
16

100107

346700

396788

171401

52436

39 93 10

460599

460600

71208

100108

100106

71208

0 250 500125 Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\Z Cases\Z-16-08\Z-16-08.mxd    -    Date: 5/25/2016

200' Property Owner
Notification Area

ZONING CHANGE:
Heavy Industrial
to 
Light Industrial

A0020BC O T TYLER, 
ACRES 36.326

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROPERTY OWNER:
CITY OF BELTON TRUSTEE

E FM 93
ADDRESS/LOCATION:

Legend
Z_16_08
200' Property Owner
Notification Area
Tax Appraisal Parcels

Zoning Case  #   Zoning Case  #    Z-16-08 Z-16-08

´



NOTICE OF APPLICATION 
FOR AN 

AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
OF THE 

CITY OF BELTON 
 
THE CITY OF BELTON HAS RECEIVED A REQUEST FROM:  CITY OF BELTON  , 
TO CHANGE THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY:        36.326 ACRES, EAST 6TH AVENUE , 
FROM A(N)  HEAVY INDUSTRIAL   __________ZONING DISTRICT, 
TO A(N)              LIGHT INDUSTRIAL   ZONING DISTRICT. 
    

THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS WILL HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING 
PURSUANT TO THIS REQUEST AT 5:30 P.M., Tuesday, June 21, 2016 IN THE WRIGHT ROOM AT THE T.B. HARRIS 
CENTER, 401 N. ALEXANDER, BELTON, TEXAS. 

 
IF APPROVED BY THE PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION, THIS ITEM WILL BE PLACED ON THE AGENDA FOR 

A PUBLIC HEARING BY THE CITY COUNCIL.  THAT MEETING WILL BE AT 5:30 P.M., Tuesday, June 28, 2016, AT 
THE T. B. HARRIS COMMUNITY CENTER, 401 ALEXANDER STREET, BELTON, TEXAS. 
 

AS AN INTERESTED PROPERTY OWNER, THE CITY OF BELTON INVITES YOU TO MAKE YOUR VIEWS KNOWN 
BY ATTENDING THESE HEARINGS.  YOU MAY SUBMIT WRITTEN COMMENTS ABOUT THIS ZONING CHANGE BY 
COMPLETING THIS FORM AND RETURNING IT TO THE ADDRESS BELOW. 
 

IF YOU REQUIRE INTERPRETER SERVICES FOR THE DEAF OR HEARING IMPAIRED, PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY 
CLERK AT CITY HALL AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE THESE MEETINGS. 
  
                                                   circle one 

AS AN INTERESTED PROPERTY OWNER, I (PROTEST) (APPROVE) THE REQUESTED ZONING AMENDMENT PRESENTED IN 
THE APPLICATION ABOVE FOR THE REASONS EXPRESSED BELOW: 
 
1.   
 
2.   
 
3.   
 (FURTHER COMMENTS MAY BE EXPRESSED ON A SEPARATE SHEET OF PAPER) 
 
DATE:       SIGNATURE:    
 
                                                         PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
                                                         CITY OF BELTON 
                                                         P. O. BOX 120 
                                                         BELTON, TEXAS  76513  
                                                                                                                                                                              254-933-5812 



8016 

BELL CO COLORED CEMETERY ASSN 

719 E 10TH AVE 

BELTON, TX 76513-2737 
 

 
52436 

SMA FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 

908 CRESCENT DR 

BELTON, TX 76513-6722 
 

 
71208 

BELL MM ENTERPRISES LLC 

9060 W FM 93 

BELTON, TX 76513-8322 
 

100106 

CITY OF BELTON TRUSTEE 

PO BOX 120 

BELTON, TX 76513-0120 
 

 
100107 

SMA FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 

908 CRESCENT DR 

BELTON, TX 76513-6722 
 

 
100108 

CITY OF BELTON TRUSTEE 

PO BOX 120 

BELTON, TX 76513-0120 
 

171401 

CITY OF BELTON & CITY OF TEMPLE 

2 N MAIN ST 

TEMPLE, TX 76501-7659 
 

 
346700 

SMA FAMILY LTD 

908 CRESCENT DR 

BELTON, TX 76513-6722 
 

 
396788 

RATLIFF READY-MIX LP 

7901 FISH POND RD STE 1 

WACO, TX 76710-1013 
 

399310 

BELCO MANUFACTURING  COMPANY INC 

2303 E TAYLOR'S VALLEY RD 

BELTON, TX 76513 
 

 
460599 

CITY OF BELTON TRUSTEE 

PO BOX 120 

BELTON, TX 76513-0120 
 

 
460600 

CITY OF TEMPLE ETAL 

2 N MAIN ST 

TEMPLE, TX 76501-7659 
 

 
SUPERINTENDENT 
DR. SUSAN KINCANNON  
BELTON I.S.D.  
P O BOX 269 
BELTON TEXAS 76513 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

















1 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, June 21, 2016 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Chair John Holmes, Ben Pamplin, Joel Berryman, 
Eloise Lundgren, Mat Naegele, Brett Baggerly, Rae Schmuck, Jason Morgan and Frank Minosky. The 
following staff members were present: City Manager, Sam Listi, Director of Planning, Erin Smith, 
Parks and Recreation Director, Matt Bates, and Planning Clerk, Laura Livingston. 
 
4. Z-16-08  Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Heavy Industrial to Light 

Industrial Zoning District on a 36.326 acre tract of land, located on the north side of East 6th 
Avenue/FM 93, south of Taylors Valley Road, and east of Interstate Highway 35.   
 
Ms. Smith presented the staff report. 
 
Chair Holmes opened the public hearing and with no one requesting to speak, closed the public 
hearing. 
 
Mr. Morgan asked about acquiring acreage for a parking lot addition. Cynthia Hernandez, 
Executive Director of Economic Development, said she cannot sell the property until that’s been 
acquired by BEDC, but that is in process. She said once BEDC acquires the property, she will 
market the property for a minimum of 30-days, and then she may entertain offers.  Mr. Morgan 
asked if it would need to be rezoned for the intended use. Ms. Smith answered no, since this 
expansion is a parking lot addition.  

Mr. Minosky made the motion to approve item Z-16-08 a zoning change from Heavy Industrial to 
Light Industrial Zoning District on a 36.326 acre tract of land, located on the north side of East 6th 
Avenue/FM 93, south of Taylors Valley Road, and east of Interstate Highway 35. Mr. Morgan 
seconded the motion, which was approved unanimously with 9 ayes, 0 nays.  



ORDINANCE NO. 2016-23 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BEL TON BY 
CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM HEAVY INDUSTRIAL TO LIGHT 
INDUSTRIAL ZONING DISTRICT ON A 36.326 ACRE TRACT, WITH DEVELOPMENT 
TO BE REGULATED UNDER TYPE AREA 10 DESIGN STANDARDS. 

WHEREAS, City of Belton, owner of the following described property has presented 
a petition duly signed, to the City Planning & Zoning Commission and filed said petition 
with the City Clerk of the City of Belton, and due notice of filing of said petition and hearing 
on said petition has been given as required by the City Zoning Ordinance and by law, and a 
hearing on said petition before the City Planning & Zoning Commission of the City of Belton 
was set for the 21st day of June, 2016, at 5:30 p.m. for hearing and adoption, said district 
being described as follows: 

a 36.326 acre tract of land, being part of the O.T. Tyler Survey, 
Abstract No. 20, Belton, Texas 

(location map attached as Exhibit "A;" field notes attached as Exhibit "B") 

WHEREAS, said application for such amendment was duly recommended by the 
said City Planning & Zoning Commission and the date, time and place of the hearing on 
said application by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 28th day of June, 
2016, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the application by the City Council of the City 
of Belton at the time, place and date herein before set forth and no valid objection to said 
amendments was presented. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Belton, 
Texas, that the said district located on a tract of land as more fully and completely 
described above, be and is hereby changed from a Heavy Industrial Zoning District to Light 
Industrial Zoning District, in accordance with Section 27 - Light Industrial Zoning District, 
and the Design Standards in Ordinance No. 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
The Zoning Ordinance of the City of Belton is hereby amended, subject to the following 
conditions: 

1. The allowable uses of the property shall conform to the Light Industrial Zoning 
District in all respects. 

2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 10 
Design Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, including: 

a. Site Development Standards discussed above 
b. Building Design Standards 



c. Landscape Design Standards 

3. Sign Standards shall conform to Ordinance 2008-11 . 

4. A subdivision plat is required. 

This ordinance was presented at the stated meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Belton and upon reading was passed and adopted by the City Council on the 28th day of 
June, 2016, by a vote of ayes and nays. 

SIGNED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk on this the 
28th day of June, 2016. 

Marion Grayson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



H
ea

vy
 I

nd
us

tr
ia

l 
to

 
Li

gh
t 

In
du

st
ri

al
 

E
G

A
L

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
: 

A
0

0
2

0
B

C
 0

 T
 T

Y
L

E
R

, 
A

C
R

E
S

 3
6

.3
2

6
 

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 O
W

N
E

R
: 

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 B

E
LT

O
N

 T
R

U
S

T
E

 

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
/L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

: 

E
 6

th
 A

ve
 



I '• . ' 
f . . .. 

Exhibit "B" 

CllJI qf B1lt0117lwot C 

FIELD NOTES ~REPARED BY ALL COUNTY SURVEYING, INC. 

March 28, 2012 

Surveyor's Fllld Notes for the CITY OF BEL TON, for: 

as.an ACID, being part of the o. T. TYLl!R IURVllY, AllTltACT NO. 20, Jn Bell 
County, Teae and being• portion or that oertiln called 100.02 an traot deacr1bed In a 
deed to THE CITY OF Bl!LTON, of raoord ln Doo. No. 2009-00008089 of the Oftlclal 
Pubtro ReOOC'd8 of Real Property of Bell County, Texaa, uld 88.329 aore tract wae 
aurwyad by All County 8Urvayfng, Inc, and I• more parttculatfy daacrlbed by these 
rnetee and bOunda aa follows: 

BEGINNING at • 611' h'on R>d found In the eouth rfaht-of-way llne ·or the 
GEORGETOWN RAl~OAD, and being In the east llne of eafd 100.02 acre tract. belrv 
the nQrthwlat comer or ~t certatn oanecJ 18.862 aoreJraot de.eor1b8d.., a deed .to tMA . 
FAMllN. t TD.,· .or record In. Volume 831t, 'Page 898 of the Official PubHo R•Oorda <:I 
Real Property of BeH Coun~, Texas and being the ~Of thla tra.aa. . 
tHl!NCE In a eoutharfy direction, with the well Una of U1d 18.952 acra tract. same 
being the east llna d said 10Ct02 acre tract (l9001d cl/I of S 11deg30 min 00 880 w, 
1888.91 feet}· 80UTH 14deg08min11 no WEIT, .. a cllttanoe of 10M.20 Mt to a 
SfB• Iran R>d found In the north rtgM-o~ay llne Of a publlc roadway known•• F. M. 
ROAD NO. 93, 88ld r1ght-of..way la Of reoord In a deed to the STATE OF TSXAS, In 
Volume 2690, Pase 3S8 cl .the omotat. PubHo Records of Real Propet"tJ of Bell Count,, 
Texa1t being the •oul?Nelt oomer of aald 18.862 eore tract and being the aoutheeet 
comer of thla tract. · 

THINCI! In a genetaily northweaterty dlniollon. wJlh the north rfght·of-Way Una 'Of 98ld 
F. M. ff9AD"NO. 93 and ctOllfng eaki 100.02acn1rlot, for the~ THREE (8). 
courna and dlltancae: · 

1). 

2). 

I). 

NORTH 88 d8t 10 min 40 MO Wl!8T, a dlltano• of aes.aa feet to. 
618" Iron rod With p1altlc oap marked "AU county1f set. 

With a curve to the rlgh~ having a radius of 1347.U feet. an arc length d 
IN.IS feet, 1 central angle of 41 deg oo mrn 18 a1c and a chord that 
beara NORTH 48 deg 18 min 32 HO Wl!ST, a cOetanoe of 9".01 feet 
tD a aononne rfght·ofo.way marker found; and 

NORTH ~•deg 80 min 13 eec WEST, • dlatance of 249.M fee.t ~to a 
.... braea rtgttt,.of-way· marker foµnd, ~lrla~ ~.~ · ~-~ ;.90'ns ·.Of ~at · 
·'··-·oertatn oalled 11 .·acrenct de8crlbed a TRACT·Z fn·a dried to WlWAM 

LEE MCGUIRE INVESTMENTS, . LLC, of ricotd In Volume 50$3, .Page 
683 of the Offtclal PubUo Reoorda of Real Property of Bell County, Texaa 
and being the aouthweat comw of thla tracl. 

THENCE tn a northerly direction, with the eut Hne of eafd 11 acre traot end oroeafng 
eald 100.02 acre traot NORTH 11 deg 27 min 48 •• EAST, a dletance of 878.34 
feet to a W Iron rod found fn the south right-of.way Jina of aafd GEORGETOWN 

~lii6it J) 

,, 
t . 
I 
I 



City o/Bslt0117lraot C 2 

Surwyor'a Field Notel'forthe CITY OF BELTON, for: 

RAtLROAD, aarne being the north lfne of uld 100.02 acre tract and being the norttwveet 
comer of thle tract. 

'THE!NCI! In an easterly dlrlotton, wllh the aouth rtght-or..W.y llne or eald 
GEORGETOWN RAil.ROAD, eame being the north lln• of aald 100.02 acr& traot. 
(raaord aall d s IJ9 dsg a min ao "° £ 2177.IU r.et) for the fORowlng FOUR (4), 
coura11 and dl1tanoea: 

1). SOUTH II deg 14 min 10 HO IA8T, a dlatance of NU4 feet to. a 
818• Iron rod with prlltfo oap· marked "Al County" eet; 

2). SOUTH D deg 07 min 4S ac. EMT, I dlatance of tlL74feet to a 
.~~e~~nrcafound;- - - - - · ,_ - - - - -- - - ~ - - --

3). 

4). 

IOUTH .. deg 18 min 34 HO EAST~ a dletanoe of 440.17 feet to • 
518" Iron rod foLmd: and 

SOUTH 12 deg 21 min U .-o IABT, a cletance of 18UI feet to the 
Point of Beg'nnJng, .Contarnlng 81.821 ACRU. 

Thie project I• rvferenaed to the City of Temple Coordinate SY.tam, an extanelon or the 
Texas Coordinate Byatem of 1988, Central Zone. All dlltlncea are hortzontal aurfece 
dJatancee unleee noted and an beaJfnga are gnq bearings. All coordinates are 
referenced to City Monument No. 133. The theta angle at City- Monument No. 133 II 
01°29'23". The oomblned coneotlon factor (CCF) la 0.999887. Grid dlltanoe .. Surface 
distance X OCF. Geod&fto north • Ortd nOfth + theta angle. Reference tie from Ctty 
manumn No. 133 te \he northweaf comer of thll 88.328 an traot II N &r09'23" W, 
618.88 feet. PubHahid City coorctlnatea for project refet8nC8 pofnt 133 111 N. • 
·10,358,468.27 E. • S.'202.085.92. Thia deecrfptlon ~to accompany a Surveyor'& 
Sketch 8howtng the herein dtacrlbed 38'.328 acre traat. Thie document la not vaUd for 
any purpoee unleas algned Ind seated by a Regleterect Profeaalonal Land Surveyor. 

Surveyed March 2012 

ALL COUNTY SURVEYING, INC. 
1-800·749-PLAT .. 
8llV9lfpl'cjtall/pnt120000f120000ft20100/1201i2/120t12J.do0 

Charlee C. Lucko 
Regtetered Pf'Ofeaetonar Land surveyor 
Reglatratron No. 4686 

· .. 
. " ' 

- ·' . . 

esaouJ 
Law Offices of 

MESSER, POTTS & MESSER, P.C. 
P.O. Box969 

Belton, Texas 76513 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 1 of 2   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
        Date:  June 28, 2016 
        Case No.: P-16-18 
        Request: Replat 
        Applicant: Belton Engineering 
 
Agenda Item #7 
 
Hold a public hearing and consider a re-plat for 93 Quarters Place, a 0.576 acre tract of land, 
located on the southwest corner of West 2nd Avenue and Alexander Street.  
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Erin Smith, Director of Planning 
 
Case Summary 
 
This is a 3-lot subdivision for the construction of two new duplexes. 
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
This is a 3-lot subdivision plat proposed as 93 Quarters Place subdivision. This property is 
zoned Single Family-2 Zoning District with a Conservation and Revitalization Overlay. The 
Conservation and Revitalization Overlay District allows single family, duplex, and patio 
homes. There is an existing house on proposed Lot 1 and proposed Lots 2 and 3 are 
currently vacant. The applicant would like to construct new duplexes on the two vacant lots 
that are compatible with this neighborhood. The existing house and proposed duplexes are 
required to comply with the Single Family-2 Zoning District area requirements. The Single 
Family-2 District requires a minimum lot area of 7,500 square feet, minimum lot width of 60 
feet, and minimum lot depth of 100 feet. The proposed lots all comply with the Single Family-
2 area requirements in all respects. The existing house on proposed Lot 1 complies with the 
Single Family-2 Zoning District setback requirements as well. 
 
TXDOT has also reviewed the plat and stated that only one driveway is permitted on FM 
93/West 2nd Avenue. The existing house has a driveway access to Alexander Street. Lot 3 
will have driveway access to FM 93/West 2nd Avenue and Lot 2 will be required to have 
driveway access to Alexander Street. TXDOT will review the driveway request on FM 
93/West 2nd Avenue and the City of Belton will review the driveway request on Alexander 
Street.    
 
According to the Subdivision Ordinance, any residential subdivision within the City of Belton, 
or within the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction, is required to set aside and dedicate to the 
public sufficient and suitable lands for the purpose of parkland and/or make a financial 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 2 of 2   
 

contribution for the acquisition and development of such parkland for each dwelling unit 
proposed. These requirements may be satisfied through parkland dedication or payment of 
fees-in-lieu of required parkland or a combination of the two. This subdivision requires 
parkland dedication of 0.04 acres or $800 parkland fee for the additional lot. An $800 
parkland fee could be readily used at nearby parks. 
 
City staff have reviewed the plat and find it acceptable, subject to conditions contained in the 
letter to the applicant’s engineer. 

Recommendation 

Recommend approval of a replat for 93 Quarters Place, a 0.576 acre tract of land, located on 
the southwest corner of West 2nd Avenue and Alexander Street, subject to: 
 

1. Park fee of $800 in lieu of land dedication in satisfaction of the developer’s obligation 
for 4 additional units.  

2. Letter to the Applicant’s Engineer dated June 8, 2016.  
 
Attachments 
 
Final Plat Application 
Final Plat 
Location Map 
Letter to the Applicant’s Engineer dated June 8, 2016 
P&ZC Minutes Excerpt 

 
 
 







N P
EA

RL
 ST

S M
AI

N 
ST

E 6TH AVE

CO
LL

EG
E S

T

S S
PA

RK
S ST

W AVE F

N M
AI

N S
T

E 3RD AVE

HA
LE

S
T

N E
AS

T S
T

N
BL

AI
R

ST

N P
EN

EL
OP

E S
T

S D
AV

IS 
ST

E 4TH AVE

N B
EA

L S
T

W 2ND AVE

W AVE H

W 7TH AVE

E 4TH AVE

W AVE C
E CENTRAL AVE

E 1ST AVE

W AVE B

E AVE C

E 7TH AVE

W 7TH AVE

N 
BU

RN
ET

 S
T

MU
EL

HO
US

E S
T

W AVE F

N B
LA

IR
 ST

E 5TH AVE

RICHARDSO
NC

IR
W 5TH AVE

MI
TC

HE
LL

 ST

E 1ST AVE

WATER ST

S B
UR

NE
T S

T E 2ND AVE

W 10TH AVE

N S
PA

RK
S S

T

SU
RG

HN
OR

 ST

E 9TH AVE

S D
AV

IS 
ST

W 8TH AVE

WA
RR

EN
 ST

S P
EA

RL
 ST

N E
AS

T S
TAL

EX
AN

DE
R 

ST

KE
GL

EY
 ST

N 
SM

ITH
 S

T

W AVE E

W 8TH AVE

W CENTRAL AVE

E 3RD AVE

W 3RD AVE

E 10TH AVE

W 1ST AVE

WATER ST

S E
AS

TS
T

CL
IF

FD
R

SA
UN

DE
RS

 ST

N 
SP

AR
KS

 S
T

S S
PA

RK
S S

T

CO
NN

EL
L

ST

E FLAT ST

E AVE C

HA
RR

IS 
ST

BO
YL

ES
 ST

ON RAMP

E AVE E

E 10TH AVE

JA
CK

SO
N 

ST

HU
GH

ES
 ST

MA
RY

JA
NE

ST

W AVE B

EXIT 294A

CONFEDERATE PARK DR

W AVE A

MA
RS

HA
LL

DR

W 1ST AVE

S BEAL ST

SHINE ST

S D
AV

IS
 ST

S W
AL

L S
T

WE
LL

S S
T

DU
ST

Y T
RL

S B
IRDWELL

ST

MI
TC

HELL CIR

W AVE E

§̈¦35
0 370 740185 Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Proposed 93 Quarters Place

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\P Cases\P-16-18\P-16-18.mxd    -    Date: 6/17/2016

´
Legend

P-16-18

Final Plat
93 Quarters Place
0.576 Acres

HSIA, K J ETUX I LU
PROPERTY OWNER:

PROPOSED PLAT:

 P-16-18  |  93 Quarters  Place P-16-18  |  93 Quarters  Place



N 
SM

ITH
 S

T
W 2ND AVE

AL
EX

AN
DE

R 
ST

0 30 6015 Feet For informational purposes only. Boundaries are approximate and not legally binding.

Proposed 93 Quarters Place

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\Zoning\Zoning Cases 2016\P Cases\P-16-18\P-16-18.mxd    -    Date: 6/17/2016

´
Legend

P-16-18

Final Plat
93 Quarters Place
0.576 Acres

HSIA, K J ETUX I LU
PROPERTY OWNER:

PROPOSED PLAT:

 P-16-18  |  93 Quarters  Place P-16-18  |  93 Quarters  Place



           333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 
 

       
 

 
 
June 8, 2016 
 
Applicant: KJ Hsia / Belton Engineering Inc.    
Date Submitted: 06-02-16 
Project: 93 Quarters Place – Final Plat  
Location: 0.576 Acres, 111 Alexander Street, Belton, Texas 76513 

 
Please address these comments from the City of Belton following review of your submittal.  
 

***Please comment back in red under the comments submitted on this sheet.*** 
 

Public Works/KPA: 
1.  Please change the utility easement to a dedicated City of Belton Utility Easement. 
2.  The sewer main needs to be a 6-inch and must be extended across the entire property with 

a 6-inch cleanout installed at the end. Please provide a detail for the cleanout. 
3.  The 4-inch sewer service needs to be shown if this location is known. This must be placed 

where it does not end up in the driveway, in a place that it can be easily damaged or 
where it cannot be serviced. 

4.   Note for the developer/home builder: The new water service and meter may not be placed 
in the driveway or in a place that it can be easily damaged. 

       
Note: Acceptance by the City of Belton of a plat, zoning change, conceptual drawing, construction 
drawing, or other development submittal complying with City of Belton minimum standards for 
drainage does not provide approval beyond what the City may authorize.  Approval is limited, and 
this approval does not limit any obligations you may have under applicable state statutes, such as 
the Texas Water Code, or federal statutes.  You should consult with your own professionals as you 
continue to pursue this development project. 

City of Belton 

 

 

  Planning Department 



1 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, June 21, 2016 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Chair John Holmes, Ben Pamplin, Joel Berryman, 
Eloise Lundgren, Mat Naegele, Brett Baggerly, Rae Schmuck, Jason Morgan and Frank Minosky. The 
following staff members were present: City Manager, Sam Listi, Director of Planning, Erin Smith, 
Parks and Recreation Director, Matt Bates, and Planning Clerk, Laura Livingston. 
 
5. P-16-18     Hold a public hearing and consider a re-plat for 93 Quarters Place, a 0.576 acre 

tract of land, located on the southwest corner of West 2nd Avenue and Alexander Street.   

Ms. Smith presented the staff report.   
 
Chair Holmes opened the public hearing and with no one requesting to speak closed the public 
hearing.  
 
Chair Holmes asked if there is ample parking for the duplexes. Ms. Smith said they are required to 
provide a minimum of two off-street parking spaces per unit, a total of four spaces.  

Mr. Minosky made the motion to approve the item P-16-18 a re-plat for 93 Quarters Place, a 0.576 
acre tract of land, located on the southwest corner of West 2nd Avenue and Alexander Street. Ms. 
Schmuck seconded the motion, which was approved unanimously with 9 ayes, 0 nays, subject to 
the letter to the applicant’s engineer and parkland fee.  

 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 1 of 3   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #8 
 
Hold a public hearing and consider an amendment to Section VI, Tree Protection, 
Preservation, and Mitigation, of the Design Standards in the Zoning Ordinance, 
regarding the heritage tree replacement fee and ratio inches.  
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Erin Smith, Director of Planning 
 
Summary Information 
 
According to Section VI, Tree Protection, Preservation, and Mitigation, of the Design 
Standards, removal of a heritage tree requires a 3:1 replacement.  When it is 
determined by the City that mitigation for heritage tree removal by replanting trees on 
site is not feasible, an applicant is required to provide payment of $50 per diameter inch 
of Belton Heritage Tree removed for replanting elsewhere. The following is a list of tree 
species with heritage tree recognition (sizes vary due to tree species):  
 

• American Elm - 38” DBH  
• Bald Cypress - 34” DBH  
• Bur Oak - 32” DBH  
• Cedar Elm - 25” DBH  
• Live Oak -  36” DBH  
• Mexican Sycamore - 37” DBH  
• Monterrey (Mexican White) Oak - 28” DBH  
• Pecan - 34” DBH  
• Post Oak - 24” DBH  
• Shumard Red Oak - 21” DBH 

 
The 2009 Design Standards required a tree replacement fee of $200 per diameter inch 
for removal of a heritage tree.  Replacement in 2009 was triggered for all trees on the 
list over 30 inches regardless of tree species. Copperas Cove, Harker Heights, and 
Killeen have no tree mitigation requirements.  The City of Temple I-35 corridor overlay 
district seeks trees in the floodplain to be protected or a contribution of $100 per caliper-
inch fee is recommended; however, there are no other tree replacement requirements.  
 
Staff presented tree mitigation recommendations to Council on March 8th for possible 
future consideration, given the changes from 2009 to present – $200 to $50 per 
diameter inch – and questions raised about the current replacement ratio of 3:1.  At this 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 2 of 3   
 

meeting, Council recommended researching the City of Flower Mound.  The table below 
summarizes the landscape requirements for Belton and Flower Mound. 
 

Belton Flower Mound 
Protected Trees: 8 inches and above 

Protected Trees (SF & MF): 20 inches and 
above 
Heritage Trees: See list 

Protected Trees: 6 inches to 12 inches 

Specimen Trees: 13 inches and above 

Historic Trees: Designated by the Town Council 

Site Clearing Permit Fee: No permit fee. Tree Removal Permit Fee: No permit fee unless 
tree removal request for more than 10 protected 
trees or 4 specimen trees, then the permit fee is 
$1,000. 

Permit Reviewed and Approved by: Director of 
Planning 

Permit Reviewed by: Tree Preservation and 
Enforcement Officer 

Tree Removal Permit Approved By:  

a) Protected Tree Removal: Tree 
Preservation and Enforcement Officer 

b) Specimen or Historic Tree Removal: 
Environmental Conservation Commission 
and Town Council 

Tree Removal 

a) Protected Trees: 50% of the protected 
trees shall remain. If more than 50% 
removed, each replacement tree must be a 
minimum of 3 inches caliper and a minimum 
of 10 feet in height.  

1) Each replacement tree shall be 
planted on the same subdivision or 
development. If replacement trees 
are unable to survive, the owner of 
the site can: 

• Make a cash payment into 
the tree fund; or  

• Plant trees on public 
property. 

b) Heritage Trees: 3:1 replacement or $50 
per diameter inch for heritage trees.   

Tree Removal 

a) Protected Trees:  
1) Tree replacement is 1.5 times 

that of the tree removed. 
2) Tree removal permit is $100.00 

per tree not to exceed $2,000.00 
per permit application.   

b) Specimen Trees: 
1) Tree replacement is 2 times that 

of the tree removed. 
2) Tree removal permit is $250.00 

per tree.  
c) Historic Trees: 

1) Tree replacement is 2.5 times 
that of the tree removed. 

2) Tree removal permit is $250.00 
per tree.  

 
In most instances, a developer has chosen to remove a heritage tree and pay the fee-
in-lieu of mitigation due to a lack of space needed on a site to plant the required number 
of trees.  For example, if a 40” live oak tree is removed, the developer now has the 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 3 of 3   
 

option to either replace the heritage tree with 120 inches of trees, in addition to the 
landscape requirements, or pay a $2,000 fee-in-lieu of mitigation.  To encourage 
heritage tree mitigation, staff recommends changing the tree mitigation fee to $100.00 
per diameter inch.  In addition to changes to the tree mitigation fee, we recommend 
changing the 3:1 replacement to a 1:1 replacement to encourage the option to replace 
the trees instead of paying the fee.  
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
None. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of an amendment to Section VI, Tree Protection, Preservation, 
and Mitigation, of the Design Standards in the Zoning Ordinance, regarding the heritage 
tree replacement fee and ratio inches as follows: 
 

1. Increase the tree replacement fee when triggered from $50 to $100 per diameter 
inch.  

2. Reduce the tree replacement ratio when triggered from 3:1 to 1:1.  
 
Attachments 
 
Section VI, Tree Protection, Preservation, and Mitigation, of the Design Standards 
P&ZC Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance 



Section VI, Tree Protection, Preservation, and Mitigation, of the Design Standards  

VI.A.3.a.  General requirements.  
 
VI.A.3.a.i.  Except as otherwise provided, it is unlawful to remove a Belton Heritage Tree designated as 
  such on a tree survey as required by Section VI - Tree Protection, Preservation, and Mitigation, 
  without a Belton Heritage Tree removal permit.  
 
VI.A.3.a.ii.  The location of all proposed buildings and improvements shall be oriented by the applicant, to 
  the greatest extent in a manner which allows for the preservation of heritage trees.  
 
VI.A.3.a.iii.  No heritage trees shall be removed unless specifically approved by the Planning Director.  
 
 
VI.A.3.e.  Mitigation by payment.  
 
VI.A.3.e.i.  When it is determined by the City that mitigation for heritage tree removal by replanting trees on 
  site is not feasible (i.e., planting capacity has been reached on site) an applicant, in lieu of 
  replanting on site, shall provide payment of $50.00 per diameter inch of Belton Heritage Tree 
  removed into the city tree program or account for use by the city for the planting, pruning, 
  irrigation, and other activities associated with trees on public property. 
 
VI.A.3.e.ii.  If an applicant demonstrates to the City Council that removal of a heritage tree is the only 
  feasible and appropriate alternative, and if the applicant chooses to mitigate by payment, the 
  City Council may, in its sole discretion, reduce the payment per diameter inch that would  
  otherwise be due.  
 
VI.C.2.b.  Tree Replacement Fee  
 
VI.C.2.b.i.  Fees are based on the ratios in the table above. Payment is calculated as currently established 
  or as hereafter adopted by resolution of the City Council from time to time.  
 
VI.C.2.b.ii.  The tree replacement fee shall be tendered in the form of a cashier’s check or other form of 
  payment acceptable by the City, payable to the City.  
 
VI.C.2.b.iii. The cashier’s check or other form of payment acceptable by the City shall be submitted to the 
  Planning Director at the time of site plan approval; prior to subdivision construction plan  
  acceptance; prior to plat recordation; or upon the tree removal permit approval, depending on 
  the applicable review process.  
 

Diameter of Existing Tree  Tree Replacement Ratio 
inches  

Tree Replacement Fee (per 
inch)  

BHT and larger  3.0  $50.00  
 
  
 



1 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, June 21, 2016 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Chair John Holmes, Ben Pamplin, Joel Berryman, 
Eloise Lundgren, Mat Naegele, Brett Baggerly, Rae Schmuck, Jason Morgan and Frank Minosky. The 
following staff members were present: City Manager, Sam Listi, Director of Planning, Erin Smith, 
Parks and Recreation Director, Matt Bates, and Planning Clerk, Laura Livingston. 
 
7. Hold a public hearing and consider an amendment to Section VI, Tree Protection, 

Preservation, and Mitigation, of the Design Standards in the Zoning Ordinance, regarding 
the heritage tree replacement fee and ratio inches.  

Ms. Smith presented the staff report. 
 
Chair Holmes opened the public hearing and with no one requesting to speak, closed the public 
hearing.  
 
Mr. Pamplin said Ms. Smith is correct, replacing 120 inches of trees is much more expensive than 
paying a $2,000 fee. The objective is that the City is encouraging people to replace the trees rather 
than pay a fee. Chair Holmes commented that park funding would go to the park fund.  Ms. Smith 
stated that the funds are utilized for landscaping in parks and other public spaces., as allowed   
 
Mr. Pamplin said he believed this to be an improvement to the plan currently in place. This 
amendment will increase the tree replacement fee, when triggered, from $50 to $100 per diameter 
inch and reduce the tree replacement ratio when triggered from 3:1 to 1:1.  
 
Chair Holmes asked if anyone in the public reviewed it because he did not want to send it to the 
City Council to receive criticism from people who aren’t aware of the proposed changes. Ms. 
Smith answered that she conducted a public workshop at the March 8th Council meeting, the 
amendments were posted in the local newspaper, and the agenda was emailed to the Temple Area 
Builder’s Association (TABA).  

Ms. Schmuck made the motion to approve the amendment to Section VI, Tree Protection, 
Preservation, and Mitigation, of the Design Standards in the Zoning Ordinance, regarding the 
heritage tree replacement fee and ratio inches. Mr. Minosky seconded the motion, which was 
approved unanimously with 9 ayes, 0 nays.  
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2016-25 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
AMENDING SECTION 37, BELTON DESIGN STANDARDS, OF THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF BELTON; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the amendments proposed herein have been presented to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and due notice of said amendments and hearing on 
said amendments has been given as required by law, and a hearing on said 
amendments before the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Belton was 
set for the 21st day of June, 2016, at 5:30 p.m. for hearing and adoption; and  
 

WHEREAS, said amendments were duly recommended by the said City 
Planning and Zoning Commission and the date, time and place of the hearing on said 
amendments by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 28th day of June, 
2016, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and  
 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the amendments by the City Council of the 
City of Belton of the time, place and date herein before set forth; and    

 
WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes heritage trees increase quality of life 

and are an important component to the Belton community; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City’s primary objective is to update the Tree Mitigation 

Requirements as a component of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, to ensure heritage trees 
are mitigated when properties are developed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, these standards recognize that Belton heritage trees take several 
years to grow before they reach full maturity; and  
 

WHEREAS, the proposed amendments will provide more opportunity for 
mitigation on-site; 

 
WHEREAS, changing the 3:1 replacement to a 1:1 replacement will encourage 

the option to replace the trees instead of paying the fee; 
 
WHEREAS, the tree mitigation requirements serve as a reference guide during 

review of new developments; and 
 
WHEREAS, the standards contained within this ordinance are intended to ensure 

consistent practices in new development or in redevelopment; and 
 



 2 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the proposed Tree Mitigation 
Requirements are reasonable. 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELTON, TEXAS: 
 

PART 1:  The existing “Section 37, Belton Design Standards,” of the Zoning 
Ordinance for the City of Belton, Texas, is hereby amended as follows: 

 
VI.A.3.d.  Mitigation by tree replacement on site. 

 
VI.A.3.d.ii. The mitigation plan must be a plan for planting replacement trees at 

a 1:1 ratio for each heritage tree removed, or a plan for alternative     
landscaping, if approved by the City.  

 
VI.A.3.e.  Mitigation by payment.  

 
VI.A.3.e.i. When it is determined by the City that mitigation for heritage tree 

removal by replanting trees on site is not feasible (i.e., planting 
capacity has been reached on site) an applicant, in lieu of 
replanting on site, shall provide payment of $100.00 per diameter 
inch of Belton Heritage Tree removed into the city tree program or 
account for use by the city for the planting, pruning, irrigation, and 
other activities associated with trees on public property.  

 
VI.C.2.b.  Tree Replacement Fee 
 

Diameter of Existing Tree Tree Replacement Ratio Inches Tree Replacement Fee      
(per inch) 

BHT and larger 1.0 $100.00 
 

PART 2:  If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to 
any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions 
or applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision 
or application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be 
severable. 

 
PART 3: This ordinance shall take effect June 28, 2016, after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Belton, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

PART 4: The Zoning Ordinance of the City of Belton, Texas, as amended, shall 
remain in full force and effect, save and except as amended by this ordinance. 
 

PART 5:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 



 3 

time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 28th day of June, 2016. 
 
 

__________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
       
______________________________   
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk     



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #9 
 
Hold a public hearing and consider an amendment to Section 41, Screening, Fence and 
Wall Standards, of the Zoning Ordinance, regarding the maximum height of a fence 
within the front yard of a single family- duplex, or patio home.   
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Erin Smith, Director of Planning 
 
Summary Information 
 
According to Section 41, Screening, Fence and Wall Standards, of the Zoning 
Ordinance, maximum height of a fence or wall in a required front yard of a single-family, 
duplex, or patio home may not exceed 3 feet. Staff has received several permit requests 
for 4 feet tall fences in the front yard. A majority of fencing sold at home improvement 
stores is 4 feet, 6 feet, and 8 feet tall. It is difficult to find fencing that is 3 feet tall. The 
table below summarizes area cities’ maximum front yard fence height requirements. 
     

 
Copperas Cove 

 

 
No fences are allowed in the required front yard.  

Salado 
 
No fence or wall permitted in front yards of any SF residence that is 
adjacent to a public street.  
 

Belton 
 
3 feet maximum  
 

Temple 

• 4 feet maximum.  
• Applies to SF 1&2.  
• If 3 feet or less it can be solid wood.  
• Higher than 3 feet must have open design with minimum 50 

percent visibility and cannot impede visibility within 10 feet of curb 
or edge of pavement. 

Killeen 
• 5 feet maximum.  
• Front yard fences higher than 4 feet cannot be solid wood and 

cannot be chain link. 

Harker Heights 

• 5 feet maximum. 
• Applies to premises 5 acres or less and within the 25-foot setback.  
• Property that is 5 acres or larger can have a front yard fence 

higher than 5 feet. 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 2 of 2   
 

The reason for the front yard fence height requirement is to achieve open space, 
attractive neighborhoods, and site visibility for drivers and pedestrians. There is a desire 
for personal fence design flexibility and the height of available fencing is often 4 feet and 
taller.  
 
Staff recommends amending the current fence height requirements to allow a front yard 
fence not to exceed 4 feet above the grade of the adjacent property. Combinations of 
berms and fences shall not exceed 4 feet in height. Front yard fences are not permitted 
in the right-of-way or sight distance triangle areas. Any front yard fence that measures 
greater than 3 feet in height shall not be of an opaque character (e.g. solid wood).  
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
None. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of an amendment to Section 41, Screening, Fence and Wall 
Standards, of the Zoning Ordinance, regarding the maximum height of a fence within 
the front yard of a single family- duplex, or patio home.  
 
Attachments 
 
Section 41, Screening, Fence and Wall Standards, of the Zoning Ordinance 
P&ZC Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance  

 





1 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, June 21, 2016 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Chair John Holmes, Ben Pamplin, Joel Berryman, 
Eloise Lundgren, Mat Naegele, Brett Baggerly, Rae Schmuck, Jason Morgan and Frank Minosky. The 
following staff members were present: City Manager, Sam Listi, Director of Planning, Erin Smith, 
Parks and Recreation Director, Matt Bates, and Planning Clerk, Laura Livingston. 
 
8. Hold a public hearing and consider an amendment to Section 41, Screening, Fence and Wall 

Standards, of the Zoning Ordinance, regarding the maximum height of a fence within the 
front yard of a single family- duplex or patio home.  

Ms. Smith presented the staff report. 
 
Chair Holmes opened the public hearing and with no one requesting to speak closed the public 
hearing.  
 
Chair Holmes asked if he could put a 4-foot-tall chain link fence in his front yard. Ms. Smith said 
yes, if this amendment is approved by Council. Chair Holmes suggested changing the language to 
“decorative fence” adding that a 4-foot-tall chain link fence in his neighborhood would not be very 
attractive.  
 
Mr. Pamplin said that many HOAs restrict front yard fences. Ms. Smith said this is also taking into 
consideration the standpoint of affordability for Belton residents.  
 
Ms. Lundgren asked about the color requirements of the chain link fence. Ms. Smith said the 
Design Standards require black chain link fences along local roadways.  
 
Chair Holmes asked about setback requirements for fences. Ms. Smith said fences are permitted to 
be placed along the property line. Mr. Morgan and Mr. Minosky discussed that the grade elevation 
between neighbors may cause an issue by allowing fences much taller than 4 feet above the 
property grade if the adjacent grade is much higher. Ms. Smith said the intent is for uniformity and 
design. Mr. Morgan said he’s concerned with the potential loophole to install a taller fence. Mr. 
Morgan asked about the enforcement when the black coating of a chain link fence falls apart. Ms. 
Smith said it would be a code enforcement issue at that point.  
 
Ms. Smith said she’s been told by residents that a 3-feet tall fence is more decorative than it is 
effective. Ms. Smith added if a property requires a 1-foot-tall retaining wall, the fence may only be 
3-feet high; therefore, a combination of a berm and fence cannot exceed 4-feet high.  

Mr. Berryman made the motion to approve the amendment to Section 41, Screening, Fence and 
Wall Standards, of the Zoning Ordinance, regarding the maximum height of a fence within the 
front yard of a single family- duplex or patio home. Mr. Pamplin seconded the motion, which was 
approved with 6 ayes, 3 nays by Ms. Schmuck, Chair Holmes and Mr. Baggerly.  
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2016-27 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BEL TON, TEXAS, 
AMENDING SECTION 41, SCREENING FENCE AND WALL STANDARDS, OF THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF BEL TON; PROVIDING A SAVINGS 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

WHEREAS, the amendments proposed herein have been presented to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and due notice of said amendments and hearing on 
said amendments has been given as required by law, and a hearing on said 
amendments before the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Belton was 
set for the 21st day of June, 2016, at 5:30 p.m. for hearing and adoption; and 

WHEREAS, said amendments were duly recommended by the said City 
Planning and Zoning Commission and the date, time and place of the hearing on said 
amendments by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 28th day of June, 
2016, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the amendments by the City Council of the 
City of Belton of the time, place and date herein before set forth ; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes the need for front yard fence height 
requirements for single family, duplex, or patio homes; and 

WHEREAS, the City's primary objective is to update the front yard fence height 
requirements as a component of the City's Zoning Ordinance, to ensure to achieve 
open space, attractive neighborhoods, and site visibility for drivers and pedestrians; and 

WHEREAS, there is a desire for personal fence design flexibility and the height 
of available fencing is often 4 feet and taller; and 

WHEREAS, the Screening, Fence and Wall Standards include a provision that 
any front yard fence measuring 3 feet in height or greater shall not be of an opaque 
character; 

WHEREAS, front yard fences are not permitted in the right-of-way or sight 
distance triangle areas; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the proposed front yard fence 
requirements are reasonable. 



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BEL TON, TEXAS: 

PART 1: The existing "Section 41, Screening Fence and Wall Standards," of the 
Zoning Ordinance for the City of Belton, Texas, is hereby amended as follows: 

H. In any residential district or along the common boundary between any 
residential and non-residential district where a wall, fence, or screening 
separation is erected, the following standards for height, location, and design 
shall be observed: 

1. Any fence or wall located to the rear of the minimum required front yard 
line except as determined by the provisions of Section 35.2 shall not 
exceed eight feet (8') in height above the grade of the adjacent property. 

2. The maximum height of a fence or wall in a required front yard of a 
single-family, duplex, or patio home shall not exceed four (4) feet above 
the grade of the adjacent property. Combinations of berms and fences 
shall not exceed four (4) feet in height. Front yard fences are not 
permitted in the right-of-way or sight distance triangle areas. Any front 
yard fence that measures greater than three (3) feet in height shall not be 
of an opaque character (e.g. solid wood). 

3. Where a corner lot is platted with two front yards, and a house is 
constructed facing one of the front yards, the second front yard shall be 
deemed to be a side yard, which may be fenced in the same manner as 
any other side yard adjacent to a street, except that the fence shall be 
constructed on an angle beginning at the intersection of the building line 
with the lot line and ending at a point on the street right-of-way located a 
minimum of ten feet (1 O') from the lot line. (See Illustration 9.) 

PART 2: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to 
any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions 
or applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision 
or application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be 
severable. 

PART 3: This ordinance shall take effect June 28, 2016, after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Belton, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

PART 4: The Zoning Ordinance of the City of Belton, Texas, as amended, shall 
remain in full force and effect, save and except as amended by this ordinance. 

PART 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 

2 



time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 28th day of June, 2016. 

Marion Grayson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 

3 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 1 of 3   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #10 
 
Hold a public hearing and consider an amendment to Section 502, Street Standards and Policy 
of the Subdivision Ordinance, regarding the maximum cul-de-sac length and means of access 
into a subdivision. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Erin Smith, Director of Planning 
 
Summary Information 
 
According to Section 502 (F), Cul-de-Sacs and Dead-End Streets, of the Subdivision Ordinance, 
the maximum length of a cul-de-sac or dead-end street with a permanent turnaround should 
usually not exceed six hundred feet (600’), except under unusual conditions with the approval of 
the Planning and Zoning Commission. The 2009 International Fire Code requires a second 
means of access when subdivisions contain more than 30 lots. Recently, multiple subdivision 
plats have requested a variance to the maximum cul-de-sac length requirement and to allow 
one means of access for subdivisions exceeding 30 lots. Due to the amount of variances 
requested and approved, staff began researching area cities’ maximum cul-de-sac length and 
means of access requirements. The tables below summarize area cities’ maximum cul-de-sac 
length and means of access requirements: 
 

Killeen 
 
Cul-de-sac streets shall be limited in length to 300 feet and shall provide a 
turnaround having an outside roadway diameter of at least 80 feet. 
 

Salado 
 
Cul-de-sacs can be no more than 600 feet in length. 
 

 
Belton 

 
Cul-de-sacs can be no more than 600 feet in length. 
 

Copperas Cove 

 
Cul-de-sacs can be no more than 600 feet in length. This minimum may be 
increased by the city engineer where conditions warrant. Dead-end streets 
cannot exceed 1,000 feet in length. 
 

Harker Heights 

 
For subdivisions with lots of less than 1 acre, cul-de-sac streets shall not 
exceed 800 feet in length. For single family subdivisions with lots greater 
than 1 acre, the length may not exceed 1,200 feet. 
 

Temple 
 
Cul-de-sacs can exceed 1,000 feet but intermediate turnarounds are 
required when it does. 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 2 of 3   
 

 

Area Cities Means of Access – Number of Lots 
 

Belton 
 

 
2 entrances – 30 lots 

 
Copperas Cove 

 

 
2 entrances – 30 lots 

 
Harker Heights 

 

 
2 entrances – 30 lots 

 
Killeen 

 

 
2 entrances – 50 lots 

 
Salado 

 

 
2 entrances – 50 lots 

 
Temple 

1 entrances – 1-75 lots 
2 entrances – 76-150 lots 
3 entrances – 151-300 lots 

N/A – 300 + lots 
 
Staff presented maximum cul-de-sac length and means of access recommendations to Council 
for possible future adoption on March 8th. At this meeting, Council recommended that staff meet 
with BISD to determine if the buses travel on cul-de-sacs to pick up students. City staff met with 
BISD transportation department staff that provided valuable insight in regard to bus pick-up 
practice. TEA State Law requirements regarding walking distance to bus stops for elementary 
school students is ¼ mile (1,320 feet) and for middle and high school students is ½ mile (2,640 
feet). The students must have a safe/clear walking path from the student’s home to the bus 
stop. In most instances, the buses will not travel into a cul-de-sac and the students are picked-
up/dropped-off where the cul-de-sac ties in with another street. At the March 8th meeting, 
Council also requested that staff provide a list of existing cul-de-sacs lengths and associated 
street widths in Belton. A table summarizing cul-de-sac lengths, street widths, and cul-de-sac 
radius in Belton is attached to this staff report.  
 
Staff recommends changing the maximum cul-de-sac length to 1,000 feet. If the cul-de-sac 
exceeds 1,000 feet, construction of an intermediate turnaround is required, similar to the City of 
Temple requirements. We also recommend amending the City’s Design Manual to include 
design criteria for cul-de-sacs. Attached is the City of Temple Design Criteria for cul-de-sacs 
which provides for intermediate turnarounds when the length of a cul-de-sac exceeds 1,000 
feet. 
 
Staff recommends changing the means of access requirements to the following: 

• 1 entrance – 1-50 lots 
• 2 entrances – 51-100 lots 
• 3 entrances – 101 + lots 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 3 of 3   
 

We recommend adding a means of access requirement to the Subdivision Ordinance so it may 
apply to Belton ETJ. There should also be a provision to allow a temporary emergency access 
road in the Subdivision Ordinance and Design Manual. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
None. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of an amendment to Section 502, Street Standards and Policy of the 
Subdivision Ordinance, regarding the maximum cul-de-sac length and means of access into a 
subdivision. 
 
Attachments 
 
Section 502 (F), Cul-de-Sacs and Dead-End Streets, of the Subdivision Ordinance  
Examples of Cul-de-Sac Lengths in Belton 
2009 Fire Code Means of Access Requirements 
City of Temple Cul-de-Sac Requirements and Means of Access Requirements 
P&ZC Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance 

 



Section 502: Street Standards and Policy 

F. Cul-de-Sacs and Dead-End Streets  
 

1. The maximum length of a cul-de-sac or dead-end street with a permanent turnaround 
shall usually be six hundred feet (600’), except under unusual conditions with the 
approval of the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 
2. Turnarounds are to have a minimum right-of-way width of one hundred feet (100’) and a 

minimum forty–foot (40’) outside radius for single-family and two-family uses, and a 
minimum right-of-way width of one hundred twenty feet (120’) and a minimum fifty-foot 
(50’) outside radius for all other uses. 

 
3. Temporary dead-end streets may be approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission if 

adequate, all-weather turnaround is provided.  “Adequate, all-weather turnaround” is 
defined as a turnaround that is of sufficient size to accommodate fire and sanitation 
vehicles and is of a construction quality comparable to standard road cross-sections. 

 



Examples of Cul-de-Sac Lengths in Belton 

Location Cul-de-Sac Length Street Width Radius 
SW Belton       
Independence Court  760 feet 31 40 

Lincoln Court 670 feet 31 40 

Madison Court – S 760 feet 31 40 

Madison Court – N 310 Feet 31 40 

Jefferson Court – S 685 feet 31 40 

Jefferson Court – N 330 feet 31 40 

SE Belton       

Colette Court 500 feet 31 40 

Carla Circle 375 feet 31 40 

Samuel Drive 425 feet 31 40 

Renee Spur 400 feet 34 45 

Ellen Place 215 feet 28 38 

East Avenue O 775 feet 31 40 

East Avenue M  760 feet 27 40 

West Central Belton       

Richardson Circle 200 feet 31 40 

Dusty Trail 690 feet 29 40 

Tubbleweed Drive 290 feet 29 40 

Sage Brush Drive 210 feet 29 40 

Point Court 150 feet 29 40 

Cliff Drive 1,175 feet 29 40 

Nolan Court 190 feet 29 40 

Business Park       

Kennedy Court 630 feet 45 75 

East Belton       

N. Wall Street (N of 15th)   345 feet  35 40 

Hallmark Circle 635 feet 28 40 

Atrium Circle 150 feet 28 40 

River Oak Drive 430 feet 33 40 

North Central Belton       

Neches Drive 615 feet 31 40 

Pecos Trail 380 feet 30 40 

Sundown Court 380 feet 30 40 

Legend Oaks Blvd 1125 feet 27 40 

West Belton       

Loving Cove 360 feet 31 40 

Casawa Cove 350 feet 30 40 

Matador Cove 340 feet 31 40 

Pitchfork Circle 525 feet 29 40 

Sarita Cove 540 feet 31 40 

Remuda Court 465 feet 28 40 



Location Cul-de-sac Length Street Width Radius 
West Belton Continued       

South Fork Circle 430 feet 29 39 

Wildcatter Cove 145 feet 28 40 

Greenhaven Drive 725 feet 28 39 

Spring Creek Court 120 feet 28 39 

De Leon Circle 410 feet 28 39 

Breakers Cove 935 feet 28 39 

Sanbar Circle 160 feet 28 38 

Amber Forest Trail (2500 Block) 260 feet 27 43 
Amber Forest Trail (3000-3100 
Block) 760 feet 28 44 

Twin Ridge Court 300 feet 28 39 

Gardenbrook Trail  525 feet 28 39 

Autumn Cove 250 feet 28 39 

Spinnaker Lane 830 feet 28 44 

Schooner Cove 340 feet 28 44 

Genoa Cove 150 feet 27 44 
 



2009 International Fire Code 

APPENDIX D: FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROADS 

ONE- OR TWO-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS 

D107.1 One- or two-family dwelling residential developments. 

Developments of one- or two-family dwellings where the number of dwelling units exceeds 30 shall be 
provided with separate and approved fire apparatus access roads and shall meet the requirements of 
Section D104.3. 

Exceptions: 

1. Where there are more than 30 dwelling units on a single public or private fire apparatus access 
road and all dwelling units are equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler 
system in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1, 903.3.1.2 or 903.3.1.3 of the International Fire 
Code, access from two directions shall not be required. 
 

2. The number of dwelling units on a single fire apparatus access road shall not be increased 
unless fire apparatus access roads will connect with future development, as determined by the 
fire code official. 

MULTIPLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENTS 

D106.1 Projects having more than 100 dwelling units.  

Multiple-family residential projects having more than 100 dwelling units shall be equipped throughout 
with two separate and approved fire apparatus access roads. 

Exception: Projects having up to 200 dwelling units may have a single approved fire apparatus access 
road when all buildings, including nonresidential occupancies, are equipped throughout with approved 
automatic sprinkler systems installed in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1 or 

D106.2 Projects having more than 200 dwelling units.  

Multiple-family residential projects having more than 200 dwelling units shall be provided with two 
separate and approved fire apparatus access roads regardless of whether they are equipped with an 
approved automatic sprinkler system. 

 













1 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, June 21, 2016 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Chair John Holmes, Ben Pamplin, Joel Berryman, 
Eloise Lundgren, Mat Naegele, Brett Baggerly, Rae Schmuck, Jason Morgan and Frank Minosky. The 
following staff members were present: City Manager, Sam Listi, Director of Planning, Erin Smith, 
Parks and Recreation Director, Matt Bates, and Planning Clerk, Laura Livingston. 
 
9. Hold a public hearing and consider an amendment to Section 502, Street Standards and 

Policy, of the Subdivision Ordinance, regarding the maximum cul-de-sac length and means of 
access into a subdivision.   

Ms. Smith presented the staff report. 

Chair Holmes opened the public hearing and with no one requesting to speak closed the public 
hearing.  

Mr. Minosky asked if the cul-de-sac that was approved for Mystic River, Phase II would be 
required to provide a turnaround. Ms. Smith said if it was approved by P&Z and City Council, an 
intermediate turnaround would be required for a cul-de-sac of that length. Mr. Morgan asked if a 
cul-de-sac extending from the primary cul-de-sac would meet the turnaround requirements for cul-
de0sac exceeding 1,000 feet, like existing Cliff Drive and Legend Oaks Blvd.  Ms. Smith stated 
that each proposal will be evaluated by staff members to determine if it achieves adequate traffic 
circulation and emergency access needs.    

Chair Holmes asked for the requirement for the radius. Ms. Smith answered 40 feet. Chair Holmes 
asked if it’s possible that homes would be built along a turnaround. Ms. Smith answered yes.  

Mr. Morgan asked about entrances into existing subdivisions. Ms. Smith stated the 2009 
International Fire Code addresses access to multi-family projects.  According to the Fire Code, a 
minimum of two separate and approved fire apparatus access roads are required for multi-family 
developments containing more than 100 units. Chair Holmes said it’s not very clear the 
requirements when it comes to a permanent road or a graded road for an emergency vehicle.  

Mr. Baggerly said there have been a lot of variances requested on this topic, so he believed this 
amendment is needed to reduce the number of variances requested.  

Mr. Naegele asked about the differences between multi-family and single-family residences in 
relation to means of access. The Commission discussed the means of access for an apartment 
complex. Ms. Smith said the Fire Marshal makes the final decision regarding the required number 
of access driveways, according to the Fire Code. This change is intended for single family homes, 
she said, since apartments are covered elsewhere.  

Mr. Baggerly made the motion to approve the amendment to Section 502, Street Standards and 
Policy, of the Subdivision Ordinance, regarding the maximum cul-de-sac length and means of 
access into a subdivision. Ms. Lundgren seconded the motion, which was approved unanimously 
with 9 ayes, 0 nays. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2016-26 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
AMENDING SECTION 502, STREET STANDARDS AND POLICY, OF THE 
SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF BELTON; PROVIDING A SAVINGS 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the amendments proposed herein have been presented to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and due notice of said amendments and hearing on 
said amendments has been given as required by law, and a hearing on said 
amendments before the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Belton was 
set for the 21st day of June, 2016, at 5:30 p.m. for hearing and adoption; and  
 

WHEREAS, said amendments were duly recommended by the said City 
Planning and Zoning Commission and the date, time and place of the hearing on said 
amendments by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 28th day of June, 
2016, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and  
 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the amendments by the City Council of the 
City of Belton of the time, place and date herein before set forth; and    

 
WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes the need to have means of access 

requirements for better traffic circulation and to alleviate congestion; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City’s primary objective is to include street access standards as 

a component of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance, to ensure connectivity, accessibility, 
and safety are evaluated for new residential subdivisions within the City of Belton and 
extraterritorial jurisdiction; and 
 
 WHEREAS, these standards will address emergency access needs; and 
 

WHEREAS, the number of street/entrance access streets requirements are 
determined by the number of lots in a new residential subdivision; 
 

WHEREAS, the cul-de-sac length requirements are amended to address 
challenges faced for new residential subdivisions; 

 
WHEREAS, the cul-de-sac length requirements include a provision to provide an 

intermediate turnaround for cul-de-sacs exceeding 1,000 feet; 
 
WHEREAS, these standards will serve as a reference guide in subdivision plat 

review in the City and Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) to ensure means of access 
needs and cul-de-sac length are addressed; and 



 2 

 
WHEREAS, the standards contained within this ordinance are intended to ensure 

consistent design practices in new development; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the proposed subdivision 
access standards and cul-de-sac length requirements are reasonable. 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELTON, TEXAS: 
 

PART 1:  The existing “Section 502, Street Standards and Policy,” of the 
Subdivision Ordinance for the City of Belton, Texas, is hereby amended as follows: 
 
 F.  Cul-de-Sacs and Dead-End Streets 
 

1. The maximum length of a cul-de-sac or dead-end street with a permanent 
turnaround shall usually be 1,000 feet, except under unusual conditions 
with the approval of the City Council. Intermediate turnarounds are 
required when a cul-de-sac exceeds 1,000 feet. Consideration of the 
number of intermediate turnarounds shall be based on the overall length.  

 
PART 2: The existing “Section 502, Street Standards and Policy,” of the 

Subdivision Ordinance for the City of Belton, Texas, is hereby amended as follows: 
 
J.  Subdivision Street Access Standards 
 

1. Pursuant to this ordinance, any single family residential subdivision within 
the City of Belton or the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction shall provide the 
number of subdivision entrance/access streets in accordance with the 
table below: 

 

Number of Lots Minimum Entrances 

1-50 1 

51-100 2 

101+ 3 

 
 

2. In cases where a future subdivision phase will be submitted within twelve 
(12) months from the date of Council action, a temporary vehicle access 
street may be constructed to serve as a second or third entrance. If a 
subdivision plat is not submitted within that time frame, the subdivider will 
be required to provide a permanent access/entrance street.   



 3 

 
PART 3:  If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to 

any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions 
or applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision 
or application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be 
severable. 

 
PART 4: This ordinance shall take effect June 28, 2016, after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Belton, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

PART 5: The Subdivision Ordinance of the City of Belton, Texas, as amended, 
shall remain in full force and effect, save and except as amended by this ordinance. 
 

PART 6:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 28th day of June, 2016. 
 
 

__________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
       
______________________________   
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk     



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #11 
 
Hold a public hearing and consider an amendment to Section 517, Requirements for 
Parkland, of the Subdivision Ordinance, regarding required parkland.   
 
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Erin Smith, Director of Planning 
 
Summary Information 
 
According to Section 517.01 Parkland Required, of the Subdivision Ordinance, any 
residential subdivision within the City of Belton, or within the City's extraterritorial 
jurisdiction, is required to set aside and dedicate to the public sufficient and suitable 
lands for the purpose of parkland and/or make a financial contribution for the acquisition 
and development of such parkland. For example, a 50-lot subdivision may dedicate 0.50 
acres or pay a $10,000 fee-in-lieu of parkland dedication, at the developer’s discretion.  
 
In some instances a developer will request to pay a fee-in-lieu of parkland dedication. It 
is important to ensure residential subdivisions have neighborhood parks. Open spaces 
in neighborhoods are important because they serve numerous purposes including 
preservation of natural areas and resources, preservation of scenic views, greater 
resident access to open areas and recreation, public health benefits, and enhancement 
of the quality of new development. 
 
The current parkland requirement states that the City only reserves the right to require 
the dedication of land for public park purposes when two or more acres of land would be 
required to satisfy the parkland dedication requirements. Staff recommends amending 
the current parkland requirements to provide Council with discretion in all circumstances 
when determining the need for satisfying application of the parkland requirement in new 
residential subdivisions. Staff recommends the following revisions to Section 517.01 
Parkland Required, of the Subdivision Ordinance: 
 

A. Pursuant to this ordinance, it shall be required that a subdivider of any residential 
subdivision within the City of Belton, or within the City's extraterritorial jurisdiction, 
set aside and dedicate to the public sufficient and suitable lands for the purpose 
of parkland and/or make a financial contribution for the acquisition and 
development of such parkland, in accordance with the provisions of this Section 
and these regulations generally. 

  
B. All plats receiving subdivision approval shall conform to the requirements of this 

Section. To satisfy the provisions of this Ordinance, conformance with these 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 2 of 2   
 

requirements may be through Parkland dedication or payment of fees-in-lieu of 
required Parkland, or a combination of the two, at the exclusive discretion of the 
City Council. 
 

C. In the event the subdivider offers to dedicate land for a public park classification 
that is defined in the Comprehensive Plan and/or Parks and Recreation Master 
Plan which meets the design standards of these regulations, and that is two or 
more acres in size, the City shall accept the parkland dedication, unless Parkland 
needs have been previously satisfied in that area, if in the City’s best interests. 
 

D. Where a subdivider proposes to pay an in-lieu-fee as provided for below, the 
Council may accept such payment as satisfying the parkland dedication 
requirements of this Code, except that the Councility reserves the exclusive right 
to require the dedication of land for public park purposes at its discretion in 
accordance with this Section when two or more acres of land would be required 
to satisfy the parkland dedication requirements of this Code.  

 
Fiscal Impact 
 
None. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of an amendment to Section 517, Requirements for Parkland, of 
the Subdivision Ordinance, regarding required parkland.   
 
Attachments 
 
Section 517.01 Parkland Required, of the Subdivision Ordinance 
P&ZC Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance 

 



Section 517: Requirements for Parkland  (Ordinance #2005-04) 
 
517.01    Parkland Required 
 

A. Pursuant to this ordinance, it shall be required that a subdivider of any residential subdivision within the City of 
Belton, or within the City's extraterritorial jurisdiction, set aside and dedicate to the public sufficient and suitable 
lands for the purpose of parkland and/or make a financial contribution for the acquisition and development of 
such parkland, in accordance with the provisions of this Section and these regulations generally.  

 
B. All plats receiving subdivision approval shall conform to the requirements of this Section.  To satisfy the 

provisions of this Ordinance, conformance with these requirements may be through Parkland dedication of 
payment of fees-in-lieu of required Parkland or a combination of the two. 

 
C. In the event the subdivider offers to dedicate land for a public park classification that is defined in the 

Comprehensive Plan and/or Parks and Recreation Master Plan which meets the design standards of these 
regulations, and that is two or more acres in size, the City shall accept the parkland dedication, unless Parkland 
needs have been previously satisfied in that area. 

 
D. Where a subdivider proposes to pay an in-lieu-fee as provided for below, the Council may accept such payment 

as satisfying the parkland dedication requirements of this Code, except that the City reserves the right to require 
the dedication of land for public park purposes in accordance with this Section when two or more acres of land 
would be required to satisfy the parkland dedication requirements of this Code.  

 



1 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, June 21, 2016 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Chair John Holmes, Ben Pamplin, Joel Berryman, 
Eloise Lundgren, Mat Naegele, Brett Baggerly, Rae Schmuck, Jason Morgan and Frank Minosky. The 
following staff members were present: City Manager, Sam Listi, Director of Planning, Erin Smith, 
Parks and Recreation Director, Matt Bates, and Planning Clerk, Laura Livingston. 

 
10. Hold a public hearing and consider an amendment to Section 517, Requirements for 

Parkland of the Subdivision Ordinance, regarding required parkland.  

Ms. Smith presented the staff report. 

Chair Holmes opened the public hearing and with no one requesting to speak, closed the public 
hearing.  

Mr. Pamplin said it could leave no choice in the matter for developers since the language would 
give the Council “exclusive right.” Ms. Smith said Council does have the right to require parkland, 
but the amended language makes this clear for this particular policy. Mr. Pamplin thinks it would 
be great to say “the City built this park here” instead of collecting park fees. Ms. Smith said the fee 
must be used within a one-mile radius of the subdivision and the City has 10 years to use the funds 
or it goes back to the developer. Ms. Smith said it would be better to have the parkland dedicated 
because buying land can end up costing more than is collected in fees.  

Mr. Morgan said this provides the City Council with a clear ability to require parkland in close 
proximity to new residences.  

Mr. Berryman asked about comparisons between other cities. Ms. Smith said the fees are 
consistent. He asked about the lots comparison, which Ms. Smith stated she would have to research 
other area cities’ land dedication requirements.  

Mr. Pamplin asked if memos will show that City Council is requiring parkland.  Ms. Smith stated 
yes, she will provide that information in the monthly P&ZC memos.   

Mr. Berryman asked if the developers are informed of the parkland requirements prior to plat 
submission. Ms. Smith said in most instances, subdivision developers do not come in to meet with 
her prior to plat submission. She stated that she includes parkland requirement comments in the 
initial and all letters to the applicant’s engineer.  Mr. Berryman said it should be very clear to them 
what’s expected when building in Belton. He added that this information should be sent out to the 
public, so when preliminary plats are looked at there is no question.  

Mr. Morgan said the Commission has the ability to disapprove plats that don’t meet the parkland 
requirements. Ms. Smith said she believes the City has been developer-friendly, but must 



2 
 

determine if the proposed parkland is adequate at the preliminary plat phase. Mr. Pamplin said if 
the information is out there and spread through the right channels, then it should be effective.  

Mr. Morgan said the goal is that developers are asking the right questions and getting clarification 
before they invest the time and money. Mr. Berryman said that’s why he asked about neighboring 
cities and it cannot be black and white every time, but the rules should match up with Belton’s 
neighbors.  

Ms. Schmuck commented that she would like to see the parkland with the preliminary plat 
submission.  

Mr. Pamplin made the motion to approve the amendment to Section 517, Requirements for 
Parkland of the Subdivision Ordinance, regarding required parkland. Chair Holmes seconded the 
motion, which was approved unanimously with 9 ayes, 0 nays.  



ORDINANCE NO. 2016-28 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
AMENDING SECTION 517.01, PARKLAND REQUIRED, OF THE SUBDIVISION 
ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF BELTON; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the amendments proposed herein have been presented to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and due notice of said amendments and hearing on 
said amendments has been given as required by law, and a hearing on said 
amendments before the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Belton was 
set for the 21st day of June, 2016, at 5:30 p.m. for hearing and adoption; and  
 

WHEREAS, said amendments were duly recommended by the said City 
Planning and Zoning Commission and the date, time and place of the hearing on said 
amendments by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 28th day of June, 
2016, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and  
 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the amendments by the City Council of the 
City of Belton of the time, place and date herein before set forth; and    

 
WHEREAS, the City Council recognizes the need to provide neighborhood parks 

in residential subdivisions; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City’s primary objective is to update the Parkland Requirements 

as a component of the City’s Subdivision Ordinance, to ensure parks are dedicated in 
new residential subdivisions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, open spaces in neighborhoods are important because they serve 
numerous purposes including preservation of natural areas and resources, preservation 
of scenic views, greater resident access to open areas and recreation, public health 
benefits, and enhancement of the quality of new development; and  
 

WHEREAS, amending the current parkland requirements will provide Council 
with discretion in all circumstances when determining the need for satisfying application 
of the parkland requirement in new residential subdivisions; 

 
WHEREAS, the Parkland Requirements serve as a reference guide in 

subdivision plat review in the City and Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) to ensure 
sidewalks needs are addressed; and 

 
WHEREAS, the standards contained within this ordinance are intended to ensure 

consistent practices in new development; and 



 2 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the proposed Parkland 

Requirements are reasonable. 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELTON, TEXAS: 
 

PART 1:  The existing “Section 517.01, Parkland Required,” of the Subdivision 
Ordinance for the City of Belton, Texas, is hereby amended as follows: 

 
A. Pursuant to this ordinance, it shall be required that a subdivider of any residential 

subdivision within the City of Belton, or within the City’s extraterritorial 
jurisdiction, set aside and dedicate to the public sufficient and suitable lands for 
the purpose of parkland and/or make a financial contribution for the acquisition 
and development of such parkland, in accordance with the provisions of this 
Section and these regulations generally.  
 

B. All plats receiving subdivision approval shall conform to the requirements of this 
Section. To satisfy the provisions of this Ordinance, conformance with these 
requirements may be through parkland dedication or payment fees-in-lieu of 
required Parkland, or a combination of the two, at the exclusive discretion of the 
City Council.  
 

C. In the event the subdivider offers to dedicate land for public park classification 
that is defined in the Comprehensive Plan and/or Parks and Recreation Master 
Plan which meets the design standards of these regulations, and that is two or 
more acres in size, the City shall accept the parkland dedication, unless Parkland 
needs have been previously satisfied in the area, if in the City’s best interests. 
 

D. Where a subdivider proposes to pay an in-lieu fee as provided for below, the 
Council may accept such payment as satisfying the parkland dedication 
requirements of this Code, except that the Council reserves the exclusive right to 
require the dedication of land for public park purposes at its discretion to satisfy 
the parkland dedication requirements of this Code.    
 
PART 2:  If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to 

any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions 
or applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision 
or application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be 
severable. 

 
PART 3: This ordinance shall take effect June 28, 2016, after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Belton, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 



 3 

PART 4: The Subdivision Ordinance of the City of Belton, Texas, as amended, 
shall remain in full force and effect, save and except as amended by this ordinance. 
 

PART 5:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 28th day of June, 2016. 
 
 

__________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
       
______________________________   
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk     



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 1 of 2   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #12 
 
Consider a Resolution establishing a Growth Management Framework for the City of Belton. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Erin Smith, Director of Planning 
 
Summary Information 
 
Texas Municipal League (TML) hosted the 2016 Texas Municipal League Annexation 
Conference on May 12-13 this year. At this two-day conference, legal experts, urban planners, 
and city leaders shared insight, knowledge, and practices that can help cities manage growth, 
expand services, and improve the quality of life for citizens. TML recommended that each city 
identify a growth management framework. While this is not a legal requirement, from a policy 
perspective it is important to have a clear growth management framework that may lead to 
annexation. The Framework will provide background on issues, objectives, and policies that will 
be considered when assessing these important growth issues.  
 
The proposed Growth Management Framework for the City of Belton includes the following 
components: 
 

• Purpose and Intent 
• Annexation Authority 
• History 
• Strategies 
• Policy Statements 

 
Growth Management Strategies demonstrate how the annexation process can be 
administered as an important tool for guiding development in a city’s ETJ. Potential 
strategies include: Promote Economic Development; Facilitate Long Range Planning; 
Protect Future Development; and Foster Intergovernmental Cooperation. 
 
Growth Management Policy Statements include evaluation of areas for annexation based 
on existing or planned level of development; service delivery needs; need to protect public 
health, safety, and welfare; intergovernmental regulations; fiscal considerations, and 
considerations for the issuance of non-annexation agreements.  
 
This comprehensive Growth Management Framework will set the stage for Council analysis 
and decision-making to determine if annexation is, on balance, the right choice for the City and 
affected property owners.  



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Fiscal Impact 
 
N/A 
   
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the Resolution establishing a Growth Management Framework for 
the City of Belton. 
 
Attachments 
Growth Management Framework 
Resolution 



City of Belton, Texas 

Growth Management Framework 
Adopted June 28, 2016 

I. PURPOSE AND INTENT 

The purpose of this Growth Management Framework is to provide the guidance and 
rationale for the consideration of areas within the City of Belton extraterritorial 
jurisdiction (ET J) for future growth and development with the potential for 
annexation. The intent of this Framework is to implement the Comprehensive Plan by 
providing City Council with specific, objective, and prescriptive guidance for making 
decisions about growth issues within Belton's extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ). 

II. ANNEXATION AUTHORITY 

The City of Belton has the authority to annex areas within its extraterritorial 
jurisdiction (ETJ) that are contiguous to the City limits, and not already part of an 
agreement with another city. The extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) is a legally 
designated area of land located a specific distance beyond a city's corporate 
boundaries that a city has authority to annex. State statute defines the size of the ETJ 
boundaries according to a city's population. The statute provides a one-mile ETJ for 
cities 5,000 to 24,999 inhabitants. Belton, with a population of 18,216 (per 2010 U.S. 
Census), has an one-mile ETJ. 

The State of Texas requires all cities to adopt an Annexation Plan on or before 
December 31 , 1999 that specifically identifies major annexations that are proposed 
for 2002 and beyond. The City Council adopted the Annexation Plan by resolution in 
1999 (Exhibit A), and established all future annexations in the ETJ would comply 
with allowed exceptions, making us exempt from a three year plan. Areas located 
within the Belton ETJ are exempt from the annexation plan requirements because the 
Plan indicates no future annexation will contain more than 100 residentially 
developed tracts. 

The Growth Management Framework applies to any annexation Belton may consider. 
Belton should consider Full Purpose annexation in a manner that is consistent with 
the strategies and policies contained in this document. Full Purpose annexation 
requires the City to provide City services in accordance with a Municipal Service 
Plan. Belton should also consider Voluntary annexation, upon request from property 
owners, when the request is consistent with this Growth Management Framework. 

1 



IDSTORY 

The City of Belton was established as a city in 1850. The map below contains City of 
Belton annexation history dating from the 1960's to current (Exhibit B). The current 
City limits contain 20.06 square miles. 

III. STRATEGIES 

Belton should demonstrate how a Growth Management Framework can be 
administered as a positive tool for guiding development in its ETJ and implementing 
its Comprehensive Plan. The strategies listed below will help the City achieve its goal 
of promoting orderly and sustainable growth. 

A. PROMOTE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Belton should use its Growth Management Framework, where appropriate, as a 
tool to facilitate public-private partnerships intended to stimulate local and 
regional economic growth and implement sound capital improvement 
programming. 

1. The City should use its ETJ area as a planning tool in developing its Growth 
Management Framework. Such areas would primarily consist of raw land, and 
be accessible to public utilities and services provided by Belton. 

2. The development review process will be important in revealing growth 
pressures, interests and opportunities. 

B. FACILITATE LONG RANGE PLANNING 

Belton should use its Growth Management Framework to manage development 
on the fringe of the City in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan. 

1. As unincorporated areas become more densely developed, the Comprehensive 
Plan should identify additional growth centers in the ETJ which should be 
considered for annexation. 

2. The Comprehensive Plan should address linkages to future growth centers in 
the ETJ. Consideration should be given to existing and planned thoroughfares 
and their impact on new development patterns as they extend into the ETJ. 

3. A Growth Management Framework provides for the more efficient provision 
of public services and infrastructure necessary to develop land in a logical 
manner. 

2 



C. PROTECT FUTURE DEVELOPMENT 

Belton should use its Growth Management Framework as a means of 
acknowledging the need to extend the City's land use standards and building 
codes to protect future development from inadequate design and construction that 
may proliferate in unincorporated areas. 

1. Planning, zoning, building inspections, code compliance, and other 
enforcement jurisdictions of the City of Belton are extended to annexed 
territories on the effective date of the annexation ordinance. 

2. Through subsequent application of City zoning standards, annexation prevents 
the establishment of incompatible development patterns, while protecting 
existing and future land uses. Annexation, therefore, can be used as a growth 
management tool by promoting orderly development patterns which serve to 
maintain and possibly enhance property values. 

3. As part of a Growth Management Framework, the Planning Department 
should make available the Comprehensive Plan to any interested person. 

D. FOSTERJNTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION 

Belton should use its Growth Management Framework as an approach for 
alleviating jurisdictional conflicts with abutting municipal and county 
governments, and for coordinating service delivery arrangements with emergency 
response providers. 

Belton should consider boundary adjustments with adjacent municipalities where 
an exchange of ETJ could occur between the cities in the mutual interest of both 
cities and the citizens served by each jurisdiction. The requesting municipality 
should have adequate land use standards to maintain development standards 
equivalent to those of the City of Belton. 

V. POLICY STATEMENTS 

The following policy statements comprise City of Belton's Growth Management 
Framework. Both City-initiated and Property Owner-initiated annexations are subject 
to these policy statements. 

A. EVALUATION OF AREAS FOR ANNEXATION BASED ON EXISTING OR 
PLANNED LEVEL OF DEVELOPMENT 

The City of Belton should consider annexation of: 

1. Undeveloped areas. 

3 



2. Areas for which dense development activity is anticipated. 

3. Areas planned or designated in the Comprehensive Plan as Mixed Use or 
Regional Growth Centers. 

4. Areas that have become developed. 

B. EVALUATION OF AREAS FOR ANNEXATION BASED ON SERVICE 
DELIVERY NEEDS 

The City of Belton should consider annexation to provide municipal services to: 

1. Residential, commercial and industrial land uses that would benefit from a 
level of service anticipated for a city rather than an unincorporated area. 

2. Territories that do not adversely impact services to areas already within the 
City limits. 

3. Territories that establish contiguity required for strategic expansion of the City 
and its services. 

C. EVALUATION OF AREAS FOR ANNEXATION BASED ON NEED TO 
PROTECT PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE 

The City of Belton should consider annexation to: 

1. Provide zoning, land use, building codes, and other municipal development 
standards to promote and maintain safe living and working conditions and 
sustainable development. 

2. Extend municipal standards before development occurs, on undeveloped land, 
where growth is anticipated. 

3. Areas that, without such standards, could have an adverse impact on adjacent 
areas within the City. 

4. Areas where unregulated development could have an adverse environmental 
impact. 

5. Areas where unregulated development could have an adverse impact on 
Military missions/ operations. 

D. EVALUATION OF AREAS FOR ANNEXATION BASED ON 
INTER GOVERNMENT AL RELATIONS 

The City of Belton should: 

4 



1. Protect its ability to expand its City limits. 

2. Consider annexation to preclude the creation of other competing political 
jurisdictions. 

3. Consider the impact on the City's ability to expand in the future, and potential 
for economic development. 

4. Consider the impact on the City-owned utilities when evaluating requests for 
Utility Districts or other Special Districts in the ETJ. 

5. Seek to ensure that Special Districts in the ETJ do not establish regulations 
that would be contrary to the best interests of the City. 

6. Consider the following factors prior to releasing any portion of its corporate 
limits or ETJ to another jurisdiction, or accepting territory from another 
jurisdiction: 

a. Adequate land use standards are in place in the other municipality (as 
determined by the City) to protect the subject property and surrounding 
area; 

b. The existence of clear and logical planning boundaries are in place that 
define the current or proposed City limits and ETJ; 

c. Significant negative fiscal impacts on the City's budget will not result if an 
area is released or accepted; 

d. The need for City protection of environmental or other resources has been 
addressed; 

e. The long-term effects of cumulative ETJ releases to other jurisdictions 
have been reviewed. 

E. EVALUATION OF AREAS FOR ANNEXATION BASED ON FISCAL 
CONS ID ERA TIONS 

The City of Belton should consider: 

1. Extension of city limits ensure that areas benefitting from proximity to a urban 
City are contributing revenue to offset the cost of providing services within an 
urban environment. 

2. Opportunities for agreements with other municipalities or regional/area 
service providers to assist with provision of services. 

3. Fiscal impact to extend police, fire, street maintenance, city code enforcement, 
building inspection. 

5 



4. Transportation impacts of major roads to the City - IH 35, IH 14/US 190, FM 
93, SH 439, TX 317, FM 436, Lake to Lake Road, Loop 121 - on its Regional 
Thoroughfare Plans and the City's Thoroughfare Plan. 

F. CONSIDERATIONS FOR THE ISSUANCE OF NON-ANNEXATION 
AGREEMENTS 

Non-Annexation Agreements: 

1. Shall be offered to property owners, within a proposed Municipal Annexation 
Plan, that have Agricultural Exemptions, in accordance with state law. 

2. Issued for Special Districts shall include a statement that the property owner 
consents to future voluntary annexation and a negotiated annexation schedule 
shall be included. 

3. Should consider services in lieu of annexation to extend City regulations and 
requirements in anticipation of annexation at some point in the future. 

4. Should consider revenue sharing options in exchange for the agreement, in 
areas that have taxing authority. 

5. Shall be reviewed by the Planning Department for adherence to these policies. 

6 



E~xhibit "A" 

RESOLUTION NO. ___99~-Z-0_ 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN ANNEXATION PLAN FOR THE CITY OF BELTON; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the 76tb Texas Legislature, 1999, adopted S.B. 89, extensively amending tbe Texas 
Annexation Act, Chapter 43, Local Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, Section 17(b) of S.B. 89, 16th Texas Legislature, 1999, requires that each city 
adopt an annexation plan on or before December 31, J 999, that includes tmitory the city plans to annex 
three years from the date tbe territory is placed in the plan in accordance with Section 43.052, Local 
GovenunentCode;and 

WHEREAS, there are a number of exceptions that authorize annexation of territory without the 
territory having been placed in an annexation plan and for the foreseeable future annexations of territory 
con~\cd \,y the e)ty fit nrto one of \ht:se acqflions. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON THAT: 

SECTION t .. 

For the purposes of Section 17(b) of S.B. 89, adopted by the 76th Texas Legislature. 1999, and 
Section 43.052, Local Government Code, the City Council adopts the following annexation plan: 

CITY OF BEL TON 
ANNEXATION PLAN 

The City Cowicil has reviewed the future expansion needs of the City and the prospe<:ts of 
development within the City's extraterritorial jurisdiction. After studying the effects of amendments to 
the Texas Annexation Act enacted by S.B. 89, 76th Texas Legislature, 1999, the City Council bas 
determined that at this time, the City does not intend to annex any territory that in order to be annexed, is 
required to be in an annexation plan. 

The City Council reserves the right to amend this annexation plan in the future to add territory for 
annexation should circumstances change. 

SECTION 2. 

This resolution shall take effect from and after its passage, and it is accordingly so resolved. 

Passed this the 23rd day of November, 1999 by the City Council of Belton, Texas. 

ATIEST: 

~fih1w 
Connie Torres, City Clerk 



c::::::::J ........ > ... 

CJ -.,, . ..._ 
C:J --
CJe>.u:-. 
CJ-·~ 
c::::::::J -. ... ..-
CJ-·-
CJ--
c:::J _.., ,,..., 
CJ --..,~ 

CJ--
CJ -.- .... 
CJ--- ·-CJ-·-

CJ- -·
CJ ---·--
C::J -··••1 
(=:J .. 11. trWWh. 

C::J~
CJ--

Exhibit "B" 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-22-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, ADOPTING 
A GROWTH MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK TO GUIDE THE PLANNING AND PRO-
CEDURES FOR THE ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY INTO THE CITY LIMITS AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETING CLAUSE. 
 
 
 WHEREAS, this resolution is established to provide guidance and rationale for the 
consideration of areas within the City of Belton extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) for 
annexation; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Belton, Texas, is committed to preserving and enhancing the 
quality of life and unique character of Belton, preserving the rich heritage and natural 
resources, promoting well-planned development, and protecting its citizens, the environment 
and all other assets; and  

 
WHEREAS, Belton’s land uses support economic, cultural and social activities for all 

residents, businesses and organizations; and 
 

WHEREAS, Belton’s historic and cultural resources need to be preserved, protected 
and promoted; and 
 

WHEREAS, the positive, identifiable image of Belton needs to be enhanced and 
protected; and 
 

WHEREAS, Belton’s utility systems must continue to promote the economic health of 
the community; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council declares that the statements contained in the preamble of this 
resolution are true and correct, and are adopted as finding of fact, in accordance with the 
resolution establishing a Growth Management Framework, attached as Exhibit A, to guide the 
planning and procedures for the annexation of territory into the City limits. 
 
 Part 2:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 28th day of June, 2016. 
 

 
THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 

 
 

____________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:                                                       
 
 
____________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk  
  



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 1 of 1   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #13 
    
Second Reading and Public Hearing - Consider ordinances granting a one year extension 
with two additional one-year automatic extensions, unless rescinded by City, of a franchise 
to operate and maintain a non-emergency ambulance transfer service within the public 
streets and highways of the City of Belton: 
 
A. Acadian EMS 
B. Scott & White EMS 
C. Serenity EMS, LLC, dba Ameristat Ambulance 

 
Originating Department 
 
Fire Department - Bruce Pritchard, Fire Chief  
 
Summary Information 
 
Currently, there are four non-emergency ambulance services operating in our City with a 
franchise agreement. They are Skyline EMS, Acadian EMS, Scott & White EMS and 
Serenity EMS. To simplify the management of these franchises, Staff requested all agencies 
renew their franchise agreements at the same time. Additionally, we have extended the term 
of the agreements from one year to one year with two automatic one-year extensions unless 
the City rescinds the franchise. Skyline and Serenity EMS have not made runs in Temple in 
the past year; however, Serenity has requested another franchise in order to keep the 
option available to them. Skyline did not return our multiple calls regarding renewal. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
  
5% franchise fee on gross billings will be required for all calls by the applicant. 
 
Budgeted:   Yes      No 
 
Funding Source(s):  EMS Franchises 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of franchise agreements on first reading and set public hearings with 
Acadian EMS, Scott & White EMS and Serenity EMS, for non-emergency transfers in our 
city, with a 5% fee of all billed transports. 
 
Attachments 
Proposed Franchise Ordinances 



1 
  

ORDINANCE NO.  2016-19 
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A FRANCHISE TO ACADIAN EMS TO OPERATE AND 
MAINTAIN A NON-EMERGENCY AMBULANCE TRANSFER SERVICE WITHIN THE 
PUBLIC STREETS AND HIGHWAYS OF CITY OF BELTON. 
  
 

WHEREAS, Acadian EMS, (the “Company”), operates a non-emergency ambulance 
transfer service for municipalities; and  
 
 WHEREAS,  the Company seeks to provide a non-emergency ambulance transfer 
services to or from a medical facility, a nursing home, or a residence under circumstances 
which do not constitute an emergency to citizens within the City of Belton (the “City”); and  
 

WHEREAS, it is in the interest of the City and its citizens to offer the Company a non-
emergency ambulance transfer services under the terms and conditions as will provide the 
City with the controls and options necessary to provide for the public good; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the Company non-emergency ambulance transfer service franchise holder 
shall, during the life of said franchise, pay to the City of Belton at the Office of the Director of 
Finance in lawful money of the United States, the Franchise Fee as described in the Municipal 
Franchise for Public Services, Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer Agreement attached 
hereto. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Agreement. 
 
 The City of Belton hereby grants a franchise to Acadian EMS in accordance with the 
Municipal Franchise for Public Services, Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer Agreement 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 
 
Section 2.  Term. 
 

The term of this agreement shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning on the 
effective date of this agreement and may be renewed automatically for two additional one-
year periods unless franchise is rescinded by the City. 

 
Section 3.  Acceptance by Company.   
 

Within fifteen (15) days after the passage of this Franchise, the Company shall file with 
the City its acceptance of the terms and provisions of this Franchise. The acceptance shall be 
in writing on the Company’s letterhead and provide as follows: 
 



2 
  

City of Belton 
ATTN:  City Clerk 
333 Water Street 
P.O. Box 120 
Belton, Texas 76513-0120 

 
Acadian EMS (the “Company”), acting by and through the undersigned officer who is 

acting within his official capacity and authority, hereby accepts the franchise to operate a non-
emergency ambulance transfer service within the City as said franchise is set forth and 
provided in Ordinance No. 2016-19 (the “Ordinance”).  The Company agrees to be bound and 
governed by each term, provision and condition of the Ordinance, to accept and to give the 
benefits provided by the Ordinance and to perform each service and duty set forth and 
provided for in the Ordinance in a businesslike and reasonable manner and in compliance 
with the Franchise. 

 
Company:  _________________________________  

 
By: _______________________________________ 

 
Printed Name: ______________________________   

 
Title: ______________________________________ 
  
Email/Phone:________________________________ 

 
 
Section 3.  Open Meetings. 
 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance 
was passed was open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said 
meeting was given, as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government 
Code. 
 
Section 4.  Endorsements and Records. 
 

The City Clerk is directed to make endorsements as appropriate over her/his official 
hand and the seal of the City on the form provided at the conclusion of this Franchise, for the 
public record and convenience of the citizens, of the date upon which this Franchise is finally 
passed and adopted and, if the Company accepts the Franchise, the date of such 
acceptance. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON THE FIRST READING THIS THE 14th DAY OF JUNE, 

2016. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON THE SECOND READING THIS THE 28TH DAY OF 

JUNE, 2016. 
 

 



3 
  

CITY OF BELTON 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
John Messer, City Attorney 
 

The foregoing Ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Belton, Texas, on the ______ day of _______________, 2016 by a vote 
of ____ votes for the Ordinance and ____ votes against the Ordinance. 

 
 
 ______________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of Texas 
 
 

 
_____________________________ accepted the foregoing Franchise by 
written instrument filed on the ______ day of _____________________, 2016. 

 
 
 ______________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of Texas       



1 
  

ORDINANCE NO.  2016-20 
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A FRANCHISE TO SCOTT & WHITE EMS TO OPERATE 
AND MAINTAIN A NON-EMERGENCY AMBULANCE TRANSFER SERVICE WITHIN THE 
PUBLIC STREETS AND HIGHWAYS OF CITY OF BELTON. 
  
 

WHEREAS, Scott & White EMS, (the “Company”), operates a non-emergency 
ambulance transfer service for municipalities; and  
 
 WHEREAS,  the Company seeks to provide a non-emergency ambulance transfer 
services to or from a medical facility, a nursing home, or a residence under circumstances 
which do not constitute an emergency to citizens within the City of Belton (the “City”); and  
 

WHEREAS, it is in the interest of the City and its citizens to offer the Company a non-
emergency ambulance transfer services under the terms and conditions as will provide the 
City with the controls and options necessary to provide for the public good; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the Company non-emergency ambulance transfer service franchise holder 
shall, during the life of said franchise, pay to the City of Belton at the Office of the Director of 
Finance in lawful money of the United States, the Franchise Fee as described in the Municipal 
Franchise for Public Services, Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer Agreement attached 
hereto. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Agreement. 
 
 The City of Belton hereby grants a franchise to Scott & White EMS in accordance with 
the Municipal Franchise for Public Services, Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer Agreement 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 
 
Section 2.  Term. 
 

The term of this agreement shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning on the 
effective date of this agreement and may be renewed automatically for two additional one-
year periods unless franchise is rescinded by the City. 

 
Section 3.  Acceptance by Company.   
 

Within fifteen (15) days after the passage of this Franchise, the Company shall file with 
the City its acceptance of the terms and provisions of this Franchise. The acceptance shall be 
in writing on the Company’s letterhead and provide as follows: 
 



2 
  

City of Belton 
ATTN:  City Clerk 
333 Water Street 
P.O. Box 120 
Belton, Texas 76513-0120 

 
Scott & White EMS (the “Company”), acting by and through the undersigned officer 

who is acting within his official capacity and authority, hereby accepts the franchise to operate 
a non-emergency ambulance transfer service within the City as said franchise is set forth and 
provided in Ordinance No. 2016-20 (the “Ordinance”).  The Company agrees to be bound and 
governed by each term, provision and condition of the Ordinance, to accept and to give the 
benefits provided by the Ordinance and to perform each service and duty set forth and 
provided for in the Ordinance in a businesslike and reasonable manner and in compliance 
with the Franchise. 

 
Company:  _________________________________  

 
By: _______________________________________ 

 
Printed Name: ______________________________   

 
Title: ______________________________________ 
  
Email/Phone:________________________________ 

 
 
Section 3.  Open Meetings. 
 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance 
was passed was open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said 
meeting was given, as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government 
Code. 
 
Section 4.  Endorsements and Records. 
 

The City Clerk is directed to make endorsements as appropriate over her/his official 
hand and the seal of the City on the form provided at the conclusion of this Franchise, for the 
public record and convenience of the citizens, of the date upon which this Franchise is finally 
passed and adopted and, if the Company accepts the Franchise, the date of such 
acceptance. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON THE FIRST READING THIS THE 14th DAY OF JUNE, 

2016. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON THE SECOND READING THIS THE 28TH DAY OF 

JUNE, 2016. 
 

 



3 
  

CITY OF BELTON 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
John Messer, City Attorney 
 

The foregoing Ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Belton, Texas, on the ______ day of _______________, 2016 by a vote 
of ____ votes for the Ordinance and ____ votes against the Ordinance. 

 
 
 ______________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of Texas 
 
 

 
_____________________________ accepted the foregoing Franchise by 
written instrument filed on the ______ day of _____________________, 2016. 

 
 
 ______________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of Texas       



1 
  

ORDINANCE NO.  2016-21 
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A FRANCHISE TO SERENITY EMS, LLC, DBA AMERISTAT 
AMBULANCE TO OPERATE AND MAINTAIN A NON-EMERGENCY AMBULANCE 
TRANSFER SERVICE WITHIN THE PUBLIC STREETS AND HIGHWAYS OF CITY OF 
BELTON. 
  
 

WHEREAS, Serenity EMS, LLC, DBA Ameristat Ambulance, (the “Company”), 
operates a non-emergency ambulance transfer service for municipalities; and  
 
 WHEREAS,  the Company seeks to provide a non-emergency ambulance transfer 
services to or from a medical facility, a nursing home, or a residence under circumstances 
which do not constitute an emergency to citizens within the City of Belton (the “City”); and  
 

WHEREAS, it is in the interest of the City and its citizens to offer the Company a non-
emergency ambulance transfer services under the terms and conditions as will provide the 
City with the controls and options necessary to provide for the public good; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the Company non-emergency ambulance transfer service franchise holder 
shall, during the life of said franchise, pay to the City of Belton at the Office of the Director of 
Finance in lawful money of the United States, the Franchise Fee as described in the Municipal 
Franchise for Public Services, Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer Agreement attached 
hereto. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Agreement. 
 
 The City of Belton hereby grants a franchise to Serenity EMS, LLC, DBA Ameristat 
Ambulance in accordance with the Municipal Franchise for Public Services, Non-Emergency 
Ambulance Transfer Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 
 
Section 2.  Term. 
 

The term of this agreement shall be for a period of one (1) year beginning on the 
effective date of this agreement and may be renewed automatically for two additional one-
year periods unless franchise is rescinded by the City. 

 
Section 3.  Acceptance by Company.   
 

Within fifteen (15) days after the passage of this Franchise, the Company shall file with 
the City its acceptance of the terms and provisions of this Franchise. The acceptance shall be 
in writing on the Company’s letterhead and provide as follows: 
 



2 
  

City of Belton 
ATTN:  City Clerk 
333 Water Street 
P.O. Box 120 
Belton, Texas 76513-0120 

 
Serenity EMS, LLC, DBA Ameristat Ambulance (the “Company”), acting by and through 

the undersigned officer who is acting within his official capacity and authority, hereby accepts 
the franchise to operate a non-emergency ambulance transfer service within the City as said 
franchise is set forth and provided in Ordinance No. 2016-21 (the “Ordinance”).  The 
Company agrees to be bound and governed by each term, provision and condition of the 
Ordinance, to accept and to give the benefits provided by the Ordinance and to perform each 
service and duty set forth and provided for in the Ordinance in a businesslike and reasonable 
manner and in compliance with the Franchise. 

 
Company:  _________________________________  

 
By: _______________________________________ 

 
Printed Name: ______________________________   

 
Title: ______________________________________ 
  
Email/Phone:________________________________ 

 
 
Section 3.  Open Meetings. 
 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance 
was passed was open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said 
meeting was given, as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government 
Code. 
 
Section 4.  Endorsements and Records. 
 

The City Clerk is directed to make endorsements as appropriate over her/his official 
hand and the seal of the City on the form provided at the conclusion of this Franchise, for the 
public record and convenience of the citizens, of the date upon which this Franchise is finally 
passed and adopted and, if the Company accepts the Franchise, the date of such 
acceptance. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON THE FIRST READING THIS THE 14th DAY OF JUNE, 

2016. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED ON THE SECOND READING THIS THE 28TH DAY OF 

JUNE, 2016. 
 

 



3 
  

CITY OF BELTON 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
John Messer, City Attorney 
 

The foregoing Ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Belton, Texas, on the ______ day of _______________, 2016 by a vote 
of ____ votes for the Ordinance and ____ votes against the Ordinance. 

 
 
 ______________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of Texas 
 
 

 
_____________________________ accepted the foregoing Franchise by 
written instrument filed on the ______ day of _____________________, 2016. 

 
 
 ______________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of Texas       



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #14 
 
Consider the following: 
 
A. An amendment to Ordinance No. 2013-02, regarding Institutional Control Measures, on 

portions of the former Rockwool Superfund Site, located east of IH 35 and FM 93 (6th 
Avenue), addressing changes in ownership. 

 
B. An amendment to Resolution No. 2013-13-R determining the necessity of transferring 

real property and authorizing its transfer to the Belton Economic Development 
Corporation (BEDC) for a public purpose, and authorizing the City Manager to take all 
steps necessary to accomplish the transfer of portions of the former Rockwool 
Superfund Site, located east of IH 35 and FM 93 (6th Avenue). 

 
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Sam A. Listi, City Manager 
 
Summary Information 
 
In 2005, following the federal government’s (EPA’s) cleanup of the Rockwool site, the City 
complied with EPA’s directive to adopt an ordinance establishing institutional controls 
intended to preserve the integrity of the asphalt cap, and other on-site obligations. As 
Council recalls, the MATCON containment cell is located on the north side of FM 93, near 
the railroad tracks, and is visible from the highway due to its slight elevation. Responsibility 
and site monitoring shifted to the state agency (TCEQ) after EPA’s five year report ended its 
active involvement. 
 
In 2013, an amendment to the 2005 Ordinance, No. 2005-46, was approved deleting the 
property located on the south side of FM 93 from application of institutional controls. As the 
Council may recall, there was no contamination and no cleanup on that tract, but it had 
been included in the original Rockwool analysis and ordinance conditions due to common 
ownership, which was divided by the relocation of FM 93. 
 
The Council has approved conveying the Northern (north of Taylor’s Valley Road) and 
Central (between Taylor’s Valley Road and FM 93) properties to Belton Economic 
Development Corporation (BEDC) for industrial development. This follows a recent decision 
by the Council to retain ownership of the property located on the south side of FM 93 for 
possible sewer plant expansion (TBWWTP).  
 
As part of BEDC’s effort to market and hopefully sell the properties, BEDC has engaged an 
environmental attorney, John Vay, who has recommended changes in Ordinance No. 2013-
02 to align better with the Institutional Controls currently in place, including: 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 

Page 2 of 2   
 

• Language to facilitate the sale and transfer of property from BEDC to subsequent 
owners/lessees. 

• The opportunity for “commercial” uses has been added to industrial uses. 

• Disturbance in the “containment cell” (cap) is permissible if approved by EPA and/or 
TCEQ. 

• Any land use, and any disturbance of the groundwater monitoring wells, is 
permissible, if approved by EPA and/or TCEQ. 

• The obligation for site integrity may be assumed by BEDC or any subsequent owner 
or lessee, subject to EPA’s/TCEQ’s review. 

• Regardless of ownership changes, the City will retain the obligation to conduct one 
annual inspection and associated report to TCEQ and EPA each year to confirm 
compliance with the institutional controls by owners/lessees. 

• The City’s obligation above does not supersede maintenance, monitoring, and 
reporting obligations of owners and/or lessees. 
 

Mr. Vay has indicated that following passage of this revised ordinance, a copy should be 
provided to EPA and TCEQ to satisfy the City’s commitment to ensure compliance with 
Institutional Controls. 

 
There are three remaining items needed prior to conveyance of the property from the City to 
BEDC. These include the approval of this revised ordinance Item 14A; approval of the 
revised Resolution authorizing City conveyance of the property to BEDC, referencing these 
revised institutional controls Item 14B; and action on the zone change requested by the 
Council from Heavy Industrial (HI) to Light Industrial (LI) District, Item 6 on the June 28, 
2016, agenda. Following minor site cleanup and receipt of an updated Phase I ESA, to 
include the revised Ordinance and Resolution, BEDC will be in a position to accept the 
property. All indications are this conveyance can realistically take place in 30 days. 
 
Fiscal Impact  
N/A 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of ordinance amending Ordinance No. 2013-02 as indicated. 
 
Attachments 
Existing Ordinance No. 2013-02 
Existing Resolution No. 2016-13-R 
Proposed Amended Ordinance Regarding Institutional Controls 
Proposed Amended Resolution Authorizing Conveyance to BEDC 
Special Warranty Deed 
Site Map 



















RESOLUTION NO. 2016w13-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
DETERMINING "rHE NECESSITY OF TRANSFERRING REAL PROPERTY AND 
AUTHORIZING ITS TRANSFER TO THE BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION FOR A PUBLIC PURPOSE, AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETING 
CLAUSE. 

DEFINITIONS: For the purposes of this resolution, the following definitions of terms shall apply: 

"CITY": The City of Belton 

"PROPERTY": Approximately 50.39 acres of land . located in Bell County and being the 
same property more particularly described on the "Exhibit A and B", attached hereto and 
made a part hereof for all purposes. 

"PRO..IECT": Central Belton Industrial Park 

"PROPERTY INTEREST': Fee Simple 

"OWNER": The City of Belton, provided, however, that the term "OWNER" as used in this 
resolution means all persons having an ownership interest, regardless of whether those 
persons are actually named herein. 

"BEDC": Belton Economic Development Corporation 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 

SECTION 1. That, pursuant to Section 253.012 of the Texas Local Government Code, 
the Property is to be. conveyed to BEDC for the public purpose of creating economic 
development for projects described in Sections 501 and 504 of the Texas Local Government 
Code, subject to the existing restrictive covenants on the Property recorded as Document No. 
2013-00006480, 2013·00006481, and 2013-00006482. The development of the PROPERTY 
shall be known as the Central Belton Industrial Park. 

SECTION 2. That for the purpose of conveying the PROPERTY, the City Manager is 
hereby authorized and directed to execute all documents necessary to effectuate the transfer of 
the Property-for the purposes described in Section 1. 

SECTION 3. That BEDC is to have possession of the PROPERTY at closing; and BEDC 
will pay any expenses and closing costs. 

SECTION 4. Ownership of the PROPERTY automatically reverts to the CITY if BEDC at 
any time fails to use the PROPERTY for the purposes set out in Sections 501 and 504 of- the 
Texas Local Government Code. 

SECTION 5. That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 



in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Belton, and it is accordingly so 
resolved. . 

SECTION 6. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this' 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 8th day of March. 2016. 

THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 

Man~-
ATIEST: 

:tu~{j~
A~cas~i,CitYierk 



Exhibit /I A" 

• • I •• , 

CtIJ' ofBeltoll7Nct B 

FIELD NOTES PREPARED BY ALL COUNTY SURVEYING, INC. 

Mar.ch 26, 2012 

Surveyor'e Field Notea for CITY OF BELTON, for: 

13.78 ACRES, beIng part of the O. T. TYLER SURVEY,:ABSTRACT NO. 20, In 
Bell County. Texas and embracing that certaIn caneif 14 aCre ttac:t deaorJbed In a 
deed to THE CITY' OF BIU,TON, TEXAS, of Rlcord In Volume 6~O, Page e68 of 
the Official Public Records of Real PropertY of Bell County, TElXBB, saId 13.76 
acre trect was surveyed by All County Surveying, Inc. and Is more partfcularIV 
described by these mete.s and,bound~ aa follows: 

BEGINNING at a 518" Iron rod found In the north right-of-way line of a publIc 
maIntained roadway known aa TAYLOR'S VALLEY ROAD. baing the southeast 
ccmer of said 14 acre tract, same being the southWeat comer of that certeln 
called 17.737 acre tract described In a deed to APAC-TEXAS, INC., of record In 
000. No. 2009-00047610 of the OffIcfal Public Racords of Real Property of Bell 
County, Texas and beIng th6'sout!'eaat ~mer of1ll1&~ct. . 

THENCE In a westerly dIrection. With the north right-of-way line of saId 
TAYLOR'S VAux.v ROAD, same being the south line of said 14 acre tract 
(maord caO (j/ IV '71 deg IN, 894 f99t) for the foIlowIng'lWO (2), COUI1!eS and 
distances: 

1). 	 NORTH 14deg 18 min 48HC WEST, adletanceof381.111'eet 
to a 1J2"lron rod found; and " 

2). 	 NORTH '71 i:fug11 min 20 S80 WEST, a distance 0' 618.13 feet 
to a 3/8u fron rod found, being the soutHwest comer of said 14 acre 
tract, same being the 80~east cOrner of that ce~ln. trect 
described Ina dead mB. H. SMITH. ET AI.:, of recqrd In Volume 87, 
Page 491 and Volume 90, page" 126 of the Deed Record8bf Bell 
County, Texas locally known as East Belton Cemetery and being 
the southwest comer of this trect. 

THENCE In a northerly dlrectlcn, with the east Una.of said j:smetery tract, seme 
being the weat line .of saId 14 acre tract (record call ofM 19 deg C. 750 feet) for 
the following MO (2); courses and distances: 

1). 	 NORTH 17 deg 23 min 40 aee EAST, II dletance of 118A31'eet 
to a 618' Iron rod found: and 

2). 	 NORTH 18 deg 3& min 00 88C EAST, a dletance of &78.98 feet 
to a celculated point In the LEON RIVER, beIng !he northeast 
comer of said 9&metery tract, same being ttle northwest comer or 
saId 14 acre tract IlIid being the northwest comer of this tract. 



2 ~tyo/B,lton 77aotB 

Surveyor'a FIeld Notes for CITY OF BELTON, !)Onllnuad: 

THENCE In an easterly direction, with the said LEON RIVER, same being the 
north line of said 14 acre tract (1'800rrJ call of 'lip the Leon RIver with It's 
meanders") for tha following THREE (3), courees.snd distances: 

1}. 	 SOUTH 71 daB 82 min 10 sell. EAST, a dlalance of 423.49 foet 
to a calculated point; . . 

2). 	 SOUTH 75 daD 20 min IS lec &A8T, a dlatancD or 322.88 foat 
to a 618ft Iron rod found; and 

3). 	 SOUTH 83 deg 00 mIn 24 He EAST, I dl8tann or 146.16 feet 
. to ~ 314ft metal pipe found, being the northeast oomer of aeld 14 

8cra tract, ssme beIng the northwest comer of said 17.737 acre 
tract and being the northeast corner of this tract. 

THENCE In a southarly dlreallon, with the west line of said 17.737 aore tract. 
s~me being the east line of said 14 acre tract (I8COrd oallofS20 deg 39 min W, 
618 feet) SOUTH 18 dog 46 mIn 66 en WEST,. dlatance 0'841.60 feel to 
the Point ofBeginning. Containing 13.76 ACRES. 

This pro}ect Is referanced to the City ofTemple Coordinate System. an extension 
of the Texas Coordinate System of .1983. Central Zone. All distances are 
horizontal surface dIstances Unl"8 noted and all bSdflnga are grId beari~8. All 
coordinates are referenced to City MOllument No. 133. 111& theta engle at City 
Monument No. 133· Is 01 6 29'23". The comblnad correctlGn factor (CCF) Is 
0.999867! Grid distance =Surface distance X CCF. Geodetic north 11:1 Grid north 
+ theta "8l1gle. Reference tie from Cllv monument' No. 133 to the southWl:lat 
comer of this 13.76 sore tract Is N 02'23'54" E, 22.03 feet. Published CIty 
coordInates for project reference point 133 are N. ;: 10,358.458.27 E. ;: 
3,202.085.92. This descriptIOn Is to accompany a Surveyor's Sketch showing the 
hareln described 13.16 acre tract. ThIs document Is not v.II~. for, any purpose 
unleBB signed and sealed by a Registered Professronal Land Surveyor. 

Surv&yed March 2012 

ALL COUNTY SURVEYING,INC. 
1-800·74S·PLAT 
8a1Wr/prcJeclllpto12I1OlIOil2000Ql120l1lO1l201121!20112B.doo 

ChaJiae C. Luoka 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor 
Reglatration No. 4636 

http:3,202.085.92
http:10,358.458.27
http:0'841.60


Exhibit "B" 

, ' .. 

FIELD NOTES PREPARED BY ALL COUNTY 8URVEYlNG,INC. 
! .. 

March 28, 2012 

Surveyor's FIeld Notes rorthe CITY OF BELTON, far: 

38.328 ACRES, beIng part of the O. T. TYLIR SURVEY, ABITRAC'I' NO. 20, In Bell 
County, Tams and baIng 8 portion of that oerteln Oiled 100.02 eont traet described In a 
deed to THE CITY OF BEl.TON, of reaard In Dco. No. 2009-000DB089 of the Offiollli 
PubUo Records of Reel Properly of Bell County, T'l(es, saId 36.328 acre "aot Wla 
surveyed by All County Survey/ng, Inc. and I, mont pertlculeriy deecr1bed by these 
metes and bounda ae .oUcwa: . 

BEGINNING at a 516" Iron rod found In the aouth right-of-way line of the 
GEORGETOWN RAILROAD, and baing In the east line of aald 100.02 IOnt traot, bel~ 
the northWest comer of that certain cened 18.962 lIore tract detCl'lbeciln a deed to SMA 
FAMILY, LTD., of record In. Voluma 631~, Paga 698 of the OffIcial Publlo Reoorde or 
Real Properly of 8all County. Texas and being the northeset of this flad. 

(HImCI In a southerly direction, wllh the weat Dna of sald 18.952' 8CI'& treat. slime 
being the east line of said 10Q.02 acre traet (l8cord can. of S 17 deg30 min 006SD W. 
1888.91'Ht) SOunt 14 deg 011 mln11e8C WJ:ST, 8 dIltancur1024.20 feet to a 
5/8" Iron rod found In the north right-of-way line of a publfo roadway known 8e F. M. 
ROAD NO. es, ea!d Ifghklf-way Is of reoord In a dead to the STATE OF TEXAS. In 
Volume 2690, Page S38 or .the amlllal Publlo Recorda of Real Property of Bell Cou~, 
Texas. being the eouthweat comor or eald 18.952 StlI'8 lrad and bell'l!'i the eoutheast 
comer of this treal 

THEINCE In agenerally northwaetelfy dIrection, with the north right-of-Way Una 'Of aald 
F. M. RPAD NO. sa and Cf089lng said 100.02 scre tract, for the follOWlnq THREE (3), 
cout&1!IS and dlstancse: 

1)_ 	 NORTH 88 dao 110 min 40.ac WEST. a dlstanco of &88.38 feet to 8 

5I'BnIron rod with plaatlc cap marked nAD County" set. 


With a curve to the right, havIng iii radIus of1847.39 feet, an aro length of 
884.65 feet, a central angls of 41 del 00 min S8 eec and 8 ohard that 
bears NORTH 4B deg 111 mIn 32 leG WEST, 8 dlstan" of844.09 feat 
to a conarete right-of-way marker round; and 

3). 	 NORTH 2'f dee 60 min 13 aec WEST. a dlatance 01249.84 feet to a 

braaD rlghtrof-way marker found, being the southeast comer Of that 

certain called 11 aCN) tract described as TRACT 2, In a deed 10 WillIAM 

LEE McGUIRE INVESTMENTS, LLC, or record In Volume /S033, Pege 

663 of the Official Publlo Records of Real Property of Bell County, Texas 

and being the southwest comer of thle lract 


THENCE In a northerly dIrection, with the eaat line of said 11 acre tract and crossIng 
said 100.02 aore treoI NORTH 11 deg 27 mIn 4I.ac EAST, a distance of 878.34 
feet to Ii 518' Iron rod found In the south rIght-of-way line or said GEORGETOWN 

http:01249.84
http:dIltancur1024.20


.' , 

City D/Belton 2ract C 2 

surveyor's Field Notes for the CITY OF BELTON, for: 

RAILROAD, same being tlTe north line of gsld 100.02 acre \I'aot and belng the nolthweet 
comer of this tract. 

'THENCE In an easterly direction. wilt! the eouth right-or-WIlY line of saId 
GEORGETOWN RAILROAD, eame I:lelnti the north line of Hid 100.02 acre tract, 
(reoon:I oaiJ of S 69 dS(J 69 mIn 20 6&0 E,2177.84 feet) for the following FOUR (4),
couraGe and dIstances: 

1). 	 SOUTH 66 dell 14 min 10 8GO EAST•• dletance of 88U4 feet to a 
618" Iron rod wtth plaetlo cap'marked "AU County" ~: 

2). 	 SOUTH 63 des 07 min 43 lee EAST, • dlatsnCtt of 188.7' feot to Q 

BIS'lron rod found; 

3}. 	 SOUTH 811 dog 18 min 34 liIeo EAST, a dletlnce of 440.87 feet to a 
61S"lron rod found: and 

4}. 	 SOUTH G2 dog 22 min 32 aGO EAST, a dlatanae of 182.11 f88t fo the 
Point of Beginning, .containing 38.328 ACRES. 

this proJeot Ie referenced tO'the City of Temple CoordInate sYstem, sn extension 0' Ihe 
Texaa Coordinate System of 1983, Central Zone. All dIstances aIS hcrlzonlallUl'faca 
dIstance. uniElse noted and all bearlnga ar& gflq bsarlngs. All ooordinates are 
referenced to City Monument No. 133. The theta angle at Olty Monument No. 133 Ie 
01°26'23". The oomblned correction faGtar (CCF) Is 0.99S867. Grid dletance 1:1 SU'lface 
dlstance X CCF. Geodetlo north =Ortd north + theta angle. Reference tie from City 
monument No. 138 tG the northwest comer of this 36.328 acre tract Is N sa·09'23" W, 
518.88 feet. PublJehad City coordinates far project reference point 133 are N. 1:1 

10,368,468.27 e. 1:1 3,202,085.92. ThI8 daacrlpflon I.B to accompany a Surveyor's 
Sketch eI10wIng tM herein desorlbed 38'.328 acre tract. This document Ie not valid for 
any purpoee unls" signed and sealad bV 8 RegIstered prore9Blonal Land Surveyor. 

SUrveyed March 2012 

ALL COUNTY SURVEYING, INC. 
1·800·749-PLAT 
ServerljlrajllCltlpro120000I12Illll1MZOlooJ12011211201W.doo 

Oharles O. Luoko 
RegIstered Profesaionaf Land Surveyor 
Registration No. 4838 

http:3,202,085.92
http:10,368,468.27
http:E,2177.84


1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-24 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 
2013-02, ADOPTING INSTITUTIONAL CONTROL MEASURES AND STANDARDS; 
ESTABLISHING STANDARDS ON CERTAIN LAND, AND SHALLOW GROUND 
WATER USES; ESTABLISHING CRITERIA FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION, 
INSPECTION, REPORTING AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE INSTITUTIONAL 
CONTROL MEASURES; ESTABLISHING PENALTIES FOR THE VIOLATION OF 
AND PROVISIONS FOR ENFORCEMENT OF THESE STANDARDS; AMENDING 
THE AFFFECTED BOUNDARY; ADDRESSING CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP; 
ESTABLISHING NOTICE AND DURATION PROCEDURES; AND ESTABLISHING A 
SEVERABILITY PROVISION AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Belton, Texas, recognizes the Rockwool Superfund Site 
(“Site”) located in the City of Belton, Texas, contains approximately 100 acres of land 
upon which hazardous substances were disposed of on portions of the 100 acres; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Belton, Texas, recognizes the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”), with the concurrence of the Texas, 
Commission on Environmental Quality (“TCEQ”), selected a remedy to address the 
hazardous substances at the Site pursuant to Section 121 of the Comprehensive 
Environmental Responses, Compensation and Liability Act (“CERCLA”), 42 U.S.C. § 
9621; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Belton, Texas, recognizes the selected remedy was 
memorialized in a September 30, 2004, Record of Decision (“ROD”) and an August 19, 
2005, Explanation of Significant Differences (“ESD”); 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Belton, Texas, recognizes that although the selected 
remedy is protective of human health and the environment, and complies with 
applicable and/or relevant and appropriate Federal and State requirements, the 
selected remedial action is suitable for future commercial/industrial uses and will result 
in hazardous substances, pollutants and/or contaminants remaining on portions of the 
100 acres; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Belton, Texas, recognizes that because the selected 
remedial action will result in hazardous substances, pollutants and/or contaminants 
remaining on a portion of the 100 acres, institutional controls were included in the 
selected remedy to prevent any action that would disturb any of the capped areas at the 
Site, to protect the integrity of the containment cell, to prevent the exposure from 
contaminated soil and to future use of shallow ground water at the Site, and to provide 
for the protection and access to ground water monitoring wells located at the Site; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Belton, Texas, recognizes that with respect to Superfund 
Sites with selected remedies such as the remedial action selected for the Rockwool 
Superfund Site, which leave hazardous substances, pollutants, or contaminants in 



2 
 

place, and do not provide unlimited use and unrestricted exposure, the EPA is required 
to conduct a review of the site to determine the protectiveness of the selected remedy 
pursuant to Section 121(c), 42 U.S.C. § 9621(c), every five (5) years; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Belton, Texas, recognizes that Section 121(d)(2)(B)(ii)(III) 
of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9621(d)(2)(B)(ii)(III), and 40 C.F.R. § 300.430(a)(1)(iii)(C) and 
(D), authorizes the use of enforceable measures such as institutional controls at 
Superfund Sites; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Belton, Texas, recognizes that with respect to Superfund 
Sites like the Rockwool Site which are remediated with Superfund funding, 40 C.F.R. § 
300.510(c)(1) requires TCEQ to assure implementation of institutional controls, to 
assure the reliability of the institutional controls, and to assure that the institutional 
controls remain in place after initiation of operation and maintenance; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Belton, Texas, recognizes that the institutional controls 
identified in the ROD and ESD are necessary to protect human health and the 
environment, and ensure the long-term reliability and protectiveness of the selected 
remedial action;  
 
 WHEREAS, as authorized under law, and in the best interests of the citizens of 
Belton, Texas, the City Council deems it expedient and necessary to establish certain 
standards to ensure that the institutional control measures identified in the ROD and 
ESD are administered in a manner that provides reliable, long-term protection to human 
health and the environment; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS: 
 
 SECTION 1. That the City of Belton, Texas, hereby adopts the institutional 
control measures identified in the Rockwool Superfund Site ROD and ESD, attached 
hereto as Exhibits A and B respectively, as the official policy of the City for those 
portions of the 100-acre Site with hazardous substances, pollutants or contaminants 
remaining in place. A map showing the locations of the capped areas and containment 
cell is attached hereto as Exhibit C. 
 
 SECTION 2. That the City of Belton, Texas, hereby prohibits any action, 
including but not limited to digging, excavation, or drilling that would disturb any of the 
capped areas at the Site, the integrity of the caps, the integrity of the containment cell, 
and causes exposure or access to contaminated soil at the Site. The above prohibition 
is subject to the following exception: any disturbance, exposure, access to, or 
construction on the contaminated soils, containment cell, or capped areas at the Site is 
permissible if it is consistent with the Rockwool Superfund Site ROD and ESD, and 
includes individuals authorized by the ROD and ESD, or if otherwise agreed by EPA 
and/or TCEQ. 
 



3 
 

 SECTION 3. That the City of Belton, Texas, hereby prohibits any action including 
but not limited to the drilling, excavation of soil, and the construction of a well or other 
apparatus that could cause exposure or access to shallow ground water at the Site. The 
future use, exposure and access to the shallow ground water at the Site are prohibited. 
The above prohibitions are subject to the following exception: any use, exposure or 
access to the shallow ground water at the Site is permissible if it is consistent with the 
Rockwool Superfund Site ROD and ESD, and includes individuals authorized by the 
ROD and ESD, or if otherwise agreed by EPA and/or TCEQ. 
 
 SECTION 4. The City of Belton, Texas, hereby prohibits any action that would 
disturb or damage the integrity of the ground water monitoring wells located at the Site. 
The access to and use of the ground water monitoring network is prohibited. The above 
prohibition is subject to the following exception: any disturbance, access to, or use of 
the ground water monitoring wells at the Site is permissible if it is consistent with the 
Rockwool Superfund Site ROD and ESD, and includes individuals authorized by the 
ROD and ESD, or if otherwise agreed by EPA and/or TCEQ. 
 
 SECTION 5. The City of Belton, Texas, is hereby obligated to preserve the 
integrity of the cap and the containment cell as indicated herein. Such obligation may be 
wholly or partially assumed by the Belton Economic Development Corporation, or any 
other subsequent owner(s) or lessee(s) of the property containing all or a portion of the 
cap or containment cell, during the period of its (or their) ownership or lease. Nothing 
contained in this ordinance prohibits the construction of permanent buildings, 
foundations and piers to support them, and support and accessory structures, parking 
lots, underground utilities, and other related facilities on or about the ca and the 
containment cell, including the subsequent use and maintenance thereof, so long as 
such construction does not cause components of the remedy selected in the Rockwool 
Superfund Site ROD and ESD to fail, and the EPA and/or TCEQ is afforded the 
opportunity to review and concur that such construction is protective of human health 
and the environment. 
 
 SECTION 6. The City of Belton, Texas, is responsible for the initial 
implementation and subsequent inspection, reporting, and enforcement of the 
institutional control measures and standards included herein. Notwithstanding any 
change in ownership of the property, the City will conduct at least one inspection of the 
Site every calendar year in order to determine if the institutional control measures and 
standards are being complied with by the owner(s) or lessee(s). The inspection will 
evaluate and address the status of the institutional control measures and standards, 
whether or not the institutional control measures and standards remain protective to 
human health and the environment, and whether the Site property has conformed with 
such institutional control measures and standards. The City will draft a report of its 
findings at least once every calendar year. A copy of the annual report will be submitted 
to the TCEQ and EPA by March 31st of each calendar year. Such responsibility of the 
City has no effect on and does not supersede any maintenance, monitoring or reporting 
obligations of the owner(s) or lessee(s) of the property under any applicable regulatory 
agreement or Texas, Risk Reduction Program restrictive covenant at the Site. 



4 
 

 SECTION 7. Upon discovery of any violation of the provisions of this ordinance 
the City of Belton, Texas, is authorized to take any appropriate enforcement action 
including the issuance of orders necessary to ensure compliance with this ordinance, 
the imposition of a monetary penalty, or the initiation of administrative or civil 
proceedings. At a minimum, the City will issue orders as necessary to ensure 
compliance with the institutional control measures and standards within ten (10) days of 
discovery of the violation. 
 
 SECTION 8. That the City of Belton, Texas, will notify TCEQ and EPA as soon 
as practicable, but no longer than ten (10) days after discovery of any activity 
inconsistent with the institutional control measures and standards provided herein, or 
any other action that may interfere with the effectiveness of the institutional control 
measures and standards provided herein. The City of Belton, Texas, will notify TCEQ 
and EPA of the enforcement measures taken within ten (10) days of the discovery 
notification provided to TCEQ and EPA. 
 
 SECTION 9. That the City of Belton, Texas, herby declares the institutional 
control measures and standards identified herein, and the requirements of this 
ordinance, shall remain in full force and effect until the hazardous substances, 
pollutants or contaminants remaining at the Site are at concentration levels sufficient to 
support unlimited use and unrestricted exposure. The institutional control measures and 
standards and this ordinance shall cease upon EPA’s approval and TCEQ’s 
concurrence on risk assessment data and information specific to the Rockwool 
Superfund Site, which demonstrates the Site can support unlimited use and unrestricted 
exposure. 
 
 SECTION 10. That the City of Belton, Texas, will notify TCEQ and EPA at least 
one-hundred and twenty (120) calendar days prior to enacting any ordinance which 
repeals or nullifies a portion or all of the institutional control measures and standards 
provided herein. The City of Belton will provide TCEQ and EPA a copy of any final 
ordinance that modifies, changes, repeals or nullifies a portion or all of the institutional 
control measures and standards provided herein within ten (10) days after the effective 
date of the ordinance. 
 

SECTION 11. Notwithstanding any provisions of this ordinance, and following an 
updated boundary survey in 2012 (Exhibit D), Tract 13, located on the south side of FM 
93, is excluded from application of these institutional controls, since it should not be 
included in the “Affected Property”, and was originally included due to common 
ownership only. 

 
SECTION 12. That all ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance 

are hereby repealed, and all other ordinances of the City not in conflict with the 
provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 13. Should any paragraph, sentence subdivision, clause phrase, or 

section of this ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, 



5 
 

the same shall not affect the validity of this ordinance or any part of provision thereof, 
other than the part so declared to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional. 

 
SECTION 14. Any person or persons, firm or corporation which violates any of 

the provisions of this ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon 
conviction, shall be fined not less than one hundred dollars ($100) nor more than one 
thousand dollars ($1,000) for each offense and each violation hereof shall be deemed a 
separate and distinct offense for each of said days and shall be punishable as such. 

 
SECTION 15. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from its passage and 

publication of the caption, as the law in such cases provides. 
 
DULY PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 

on the 28th day of June, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Marion Grayson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-23-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
DETERMINING THE NECESSITY OF TRANSFERRING REAL PROPERTY AND 
AUTHORIZING ITS TRANSFER TO THE BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION FOR A PUBLIC PURPOSE, AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETING 
CLAUSE. 
 
 
DEFINITIONS: For the purposes of this resolution, the following definitions of terms shall apply: 
 

“CITY”: The City of Belton 
 
“PROPERTY”: Approximately 50.39 acres of land located in Bell County and being the 
same property more particularly described on the “Exhibit A and B”, attached hereto and 
made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
“PROJECT”: Central Belton Industrial Park 
 
“PROPERTY INTEREST”: Fee Simple 
 
“OWNER”: The City of Belton, provided, however, that the term “OWNER” as used in this 
resolution means all persons having an ownership interest, regardless of whether those 
persons are actually named herein. 
 
“BEDC”:  Belton Economic Development Corporation 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. That, pursuant to Section 253.012 of the Texas Local Government Code, 
the Property is to be conveyed to BEDC for the public purpose of creating economic 
development for projects described in Sections 501 and 504 of the Texas Local Government 
Code, subject to the existing restrictive covenants on the Property recorded as Document No. 
2013-00006480, 2013-00006481, and 2013-00006482 as amended by City of Belton Ordinance 
No. 2016-24 passed on June 28, 2016. The development of the PROPERTY shall be known as 
the Central Belton Industrial Park. 
 

SECTION 2. That for the purpose of conveying the PROPERTY, the City Manager is 
hereby authorized and directed to execute all documents necessary to effectuate the transfer of 
the Property for the purposes described in Section 1. 
 

SECTION 3. That BEDC is to have possession of the PROPERTY at closing; and BEDC 
will pay any expenses and closing costs.   
 

SECTION 4.  Ownership of the PROPERTY automatically reverts to the CITY if BEDC at 
any time fails to use the PROPERTY for the purposes set out in Sections 501 and 504 of the 
Texas Local Government Code. 
 



SECTION 5. That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage 
in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Belton, and it is accordingly so 
resolved. 
 
 SECTION 6. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 28th day of June, 2016. 
 

THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 
 
 

____________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:                                                       
 
 
____________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk  



Exhibit /I A" 

• • I •• , 

CtIJ' ofBeltoll7Nct B 

FIELD NOTES PREPARED BY ALL COUNTY SURVEYING, INC. 

Mar.ch 26, 2012 

Surveyor'e Field Notea for CITY OF BELTON, for: 

13.78 ACRES, beIng part of the O. T. TYLER SURVEY,:ABSTRACT NO. 20, In 
Bell County. Texas and embracing that certaIn caneif 14 aCre ttac:t deaorJbed In a 
deed to THE CITY' OF BIU,TON, TEXAS, of Rlcord In Volume 6~O, Page e68 of 
the Official Public Records of Real PropertY of Bell County, TElXBB, saId 13.76 
acre trect was surveyed by All County Surveying, Inc. and Is more partfcularIV 
described by these mete.s and,bound~ aa follows: 

BEGINNING at a 518" Iron rod found In the north right-of-way line of a publIc 
maIntained roadway known aa TAYLOR'S VALLEY ROAD. baing the southeast 
ccmer of said 14 acre tract, same being the southWeat comer of that certeln 
called 17.737 acre tract described In a deed to APAC-TEXAS, INC., of record In 
000. No. 2009-00047610 of the OffIcfal Public Racords of Real Property of Bell 
County, Texas and beIng th6'sout!'eaat ~mer of1ll1&~ct. . 

THENCE In a westerly dIrection. With the north right-of-way line of saId 
TAYLOR'S VAux.v ROAD, same being the south line of said 14 acre tract 
(maord caO (j/ IV '71 deg IN, 894 f99t) for the foIlowIng'lWO (2), COUI1!eS and 
distances: 

1). 	 NORTH 14deg 18 min 48HC WEST, adletanceof381.111'eet 
to a 1J2"lron rod found; and " 

2). 	 NORTH '71 i:fug11 min 20 S80 WEST, a distance 0' 618.13 feet 
to a 3/8u fron rod found, being the soutHwest comer of said 14 acre 
tract, same being the 80~east cOrner of that ce~ln. trect 
described Ina dead mB. H. SMITH. ET AI.:, of recqrd In Volume 87, 
Page 491 and Volume 90, page" 126 of the Deed Record8bf Bell 
County, Texas locally known as East Belton Cemetery and being 
the southwest comer of this trect. 

THENCE In a northerly dlrectlcn, with the east Una.of said j:smetery tract, seme 
being the weat line .of saId 14 acre tract (record call ofM 19 deg C. 750 feet) for 
the following MO (2); courses and distances: 

1). 	 NORTH 17 deg 23 min 40 aee EAST, II dletance of 118A31'eet 
to a 618' Iron rod found: and 

2). 	 NORTH 18 deg 3& min 00 88C EAST, a dletance of &78.98 feet 
to a celculated point In the LEON RIVER, beIng !he northeast 
comer of said 9&metery tract, same being ttle northwest comer or 
saId 14 acre tract IlIid being the northwest comer of this tract. 



2 ~tyo/B,lton 77aotB 

Surveyor'a FIeld Notes for CITY OF BELTON, !)Onllnuad: 

THENCE In an easterly direction, with the said LEON RIVER, same being the 
north line of said 14 acre tract (1'800rrJ call of 'lip the Leon RIver with It's 
meanders") for tha following THREE (3), courees.snd distances: 

1}. 	 SOUTH 71 daB 82 min 10 sell. EAST, a dlalance of 423.49 foet 
to a calculated point; . . 

2). 	 SOUTH 75 daD 20 min IS lec &A8T, a dlatancD or 322.88 foat 
to a 618ft Iron rod found; and 

3). 	 SOUTH 83 deg 00 mIn 24 He EAST, I dl8tann or 146.16 feet 
. to ~ 314ft metal pipe found, being the northeast oomer of aeld 14 

8cra tract, ssme beIng the northwest comer of said 17.737 acre 
tract and being the northeast corner of this tract. 

THENCE In a southarly dlreallon, with the west line of said 17.737 aore tract. 
s~me being the east line of said 14 acre tract (I8COrd oallofS20 deg 39 min W, 
618 feet) SOUTH 18 dog 46 mIn 66 en WEST,. dlatance 0'841.60 feel to 
the Point ofBeginning. Containing 13.76 ACRES. 

This pro}ect Is referanced to the City ofTemple Coordinate System. an extension 
of the Texas Coordinate System of .1983. Central Zone. All distances are 
horizontal surface dIstances Unl"8 noted and all bSdflnga are grId beari~8. All 
coordinates are referenced to City MOllument No. 133. 111& theta engle at City 
Monument No. 133· Is 01 6 29'23". The comblnad correctlGn factor (CCF) Is 
0.999867! Grid distance =Surface distance X CCF. Geodetic north 11:1 Grid north 
+ theta "8l1gle. Reference tie from Cllv monument' No. 133 to the southWl:lat 
comer of this 13.76 sore tract Is N 02'23'54" E, 22.03 feet. Published CIty 
coordInates for project reference point 133 are N. ;: 10,358.458.27 E. ;: 
3,202.085.92. This descriptIOn Is to accompany a Surveyor's Sketch showing the 
hareln described 13.16 acre tract. ThIs document Is not v.II~. for, any purpose 
unleBB signed and sealed by a Registered Professronal Land Surveyor. 

Surv&yed March 2012 

ALL COUNTY SURVEYING,INC. 
1-800·74S·PLAT 
8a1Wr/prcJeclllpto12I1OlIOil2000Ql120l1lO1l201121!20112B.doo 

ChaJiae C. Luoka 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor 
Reglatration No. 4636 

http:3,202.085.92
http:10,358.458.27
http:0'841.60


Exhibit "B" 

, ' .. 

FIELD NOTES PREPARED BY ALL COUNTY 8URVEYlNG,INC. 
! .. 

March 28, 2012 

Surveyor's FIeld Notes rorthe CITY OF BELTON, far: 

38.328 ACRES, beIng part of the O. T. TYLIR SURVEY, ABITRAC'I' NO. 20, In Bell 
County, Tams and baIng 8 portion of that oerteln Oiled 100.02 eont traet described In a 
deed to THE CITY OF BEl.TON, of reaard In Dco. No. 2009-000DB089 of the Offiollli 
PubUo Records of Reel Properly of Bell County, T'l(es, saId 36.328 acre "aot Wla 
surveyed by All County Survey/ng, Inc. and I, mont pertlculeriy deecr1bed by these 
metes and bounda ae .oUcwa: . 

BEGINNING at a 516" Iron rod found In the aouth right-of-way line of the 
GEORGETOWN RAILROAD, and baing In the east line of aald 100.02 IOnt traot, bel~ 
the northWest comer of that certain cened 18.962 lIore tract detCl'lbeciln a deed to SMA 
FAMILY, LTD., of record In. Voluma 631~, Paga 698 of the OffIcial Publlo Reoorde or 
Real Properly of 8all County. Texas and being the northeset of this flad. 

(HImCI In a southerly direction, wllh the weat Dna of sald 18.952' 8CI'& treat. slime 
being the east line of said 10Q.02 acre traet (l8cord can. of S 17 deg30 min 006SD W. 
1888.91'Ht) SOunt 14 deg 011 mln11e8C WJ:ST, 8 dIltancur1024.20 feet to a 
5/8" Iron rod found In the north right-of-way line of a publfo roadway known 8e F. M. 
ROAD NO. es, ea!d Ifghklf-way Is of reoord In a dead to the STATE OF TEXAS. In 
Volume 2690, Page S38 or .the amlllal Publlo Recorda of Real Property of Bell Cou~, 
Texas. being the eouthweat comor or eald 18.952 StlI'8 lrad and bell'l!'i the eoutheast 
comer of this treal 

THEINCE In agenerally northwaetelfy dIrection, with the north right-of-Way Una 'Of aald 
F. M. RPAD NO. sa and Cf089lng said 100.02 scre tract, for the follOWlnq THREE (3), 
cout&1!IS and dlstancse: 

1)_ 	 NORTH 88 dao 110 min 40.ac WEST. a dlstanco of &88.38 feet to 8 

5I'BnIron rod with plaatlc cap marked nAD County" set. 


With a curve to the right, havIng iii radIus of1847.39 feet, an aro length of 
884.65 feet, a central angls of 41 del 00 min S8 eec and 8 ohard that 
bears NORTH 4B deg 111 mIn 32 leG WEST, 8 dlstan" of844.09 feat 
to a conarete right-of-way marker round; and 

3). 	 NORTH 2'f dee 60 min 13 aec WEST. a dlatance 01249.84 feet to a 

braaD rlghtrof-way marker found, being the southeast comer Of that 

certain called 11 aCN) tract described as TRACT 2, In a deed 10 WillIAM 

LEE McGUIRE INVESTMENTS, LLC, or record In Volume /S033, Pege 

663 of the Official Publlo Records of Real Property of Bell County, Texas 

and being the southwest comer of thle lract 


THENCE In a northerly dIrection, with the eaat line of said 11 acre tract and crossIng 
said 100.02 aore treoI NORTH 11 deg 27 mIn 4I.ac EAST, a distance of 878.34 
feet to Ii 518' Iron rod found In the south rIght-of-way line or said GEORGETOWN 

http:01249.84
http:dIltancur1024.20


.' , 

City D/Belton 2ract C 2 

surveyor's Field Notes for the CITY OF BELTON, for: 

RAILROAD, same being tlTe north line of gsld 100.02 acre \I'aot and belng the nolthweet 
comer of this tract. 

'THENCE In an easterly direction. wilt! the eouth right-or-WIlY line of saId 
GEORGETOWN RAILROAD, eame I:lelnti the north line of Hid 100.02 acre tract, 
(reoon:I oaiJ of S 69 dS(J 69 mIn 20 6&0 E,2177.84 feet) for the following FOUR (4),
couraGe and dIstances: 

1). 	 SOUTH 66 dell 14 min 10 8GO EAST•• dletance of 88U4 feet to a 
618" Iron rod wtth plaetlo cap'marked "AU County" ~: 

2). 	 SOUTH 63 des 07 min 43 lee EAST, • dlatsnCtt of 188.7' feot to Q 

BIS'lron rod found; 

3}. 	 SOUTH 811 dog 18 min 34 liIeo EAST, a dletlnce of 440.87 feet to a 
61S"lron rod found: and 

4}. 	 SOUTH G2 dog 22 min 32 aGO EAST, a dlatanae of 182.11 f88t fo the 
Point of Beginning, .containing 38.328 ACRES. 

this proJeot Ie referenced tO'the City of Temple CoordInate sYstem, sn extension 0' Ihe 
Texaa Coordinate System of 1983, Central Zone. All dIstances aIS hcrlzonlallUl'faca 
dIstance. uniElse noted and all bearlnga ar& gflq bsarlngs. All ooordinates are 
referenced to City Monument No. 133. The theta angle at Olty Monument No. 133 Ie 
01°26'23". The oomblned correction faGtar (CCF) Is 0.99S867. Grid dletance 1:1 SU'lface 
dlstance X CCF. Geodetlo north =Ortd north + theta angle. Reference tie from City 
monument No. 138 tG the northwest comer of this 36.328 acre tract Is N sa·09'23" W, 
518.88 feet. PublJehad City coordinates far project reference point 133 are N. 1:1 

10,368,468.27 e. 1:1 3,202,085.92. ThI8 daacrlpflon I.B to accompany a Surveyor's 
Sketch eI10wIng tM herein desorlbed 38'.328 acre tract. This document Ie not valid for 
any purpoee unls" signed and sealad bV 8 RegIstered prore9Blonal Land Surveyor. 

SUrveyed March 2012 

ALL COUNTY SURVEYING, INC. 
1·800·749-PLAT 
ServerljlrajllCltlpro120000I12Illll1MZOlooJ12011211201W.doo 

Oharles O. Luoko 
RegIstered Profesaionaf Land Surveyor 
Registration No. 4838 

http:3,202,085.92
http:10,368,468.27
http:E,2177.84


Page 1 of 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

(with Reservation) 
 

DATE: ______________________, 2016 
 
 
GRANTOR:      City of Belton, Texas, a Texas municipality 
GRANTOR’S MAILING ADDRESS: P.O. Box 120 
      Belton, Texas  76513 
 
 
GRANTEE:       Belton Economic Development Corporation,  

a Texas corporation 
GRANTEE’S MAILING ADDRESS: P.O. Box 1388 
      Belton, Texas  76513 
 
 
CONSIDERATION:  (1) Cash and other good and valuable consideration. 
 
 
PROPERTY:  
Tract A:  
13.76 acres, being part of the O. T. Tyler Survey, Abstract No. 20, in Bell County, Texas, 
and being more particularly described by metes and bounds on Exhibit A attached 
hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes; and 
 
Tract B: 
36.326 acres, being part of the O. T. Tyler Survey, Abstract No. 20, in Bell County, Texas, 
and being more particularly described by metes and bounds on Exhibit B attached 
hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes, 
 
all together with, without covenant or warranty express or implied (whether under 
Section 5.023 of the Texas Property Code or otherwise) all right, title and interest, if any, 
of Grantor as owner of the Property, but not as owner of any other property, in and to, 
(i) any and all appurtenances belonging or appertaining thereto; (ii) any and all 



Page 2 of 8 

improvements located thereon; (iii) any and all appurtenant easements or rights of way 
affecting said real property and any of Grantor’s rights to use same; (iv) any and all 
rights of ingress and egress to and from said real property and any of Grantor’s rights 
to use same; (v) any and all mineral rights and interest of Grantor relating to said real 
property (present or reversionary); and (vi) any and all rights to the present or future 
use of wastewater, wastewater capacity, drainage, water or other utility facilities to the 
extent same pertain to or benefit said real property or the improvements located 
thereon, including without limitation, all reservations of or commitments or letters 
covering any such use in the future, whether now owned or hereafter acquired; (vii) any 
and all rights and interests of Grantor in and to any leases covering all or any portion of 
said real property; and (viii) all right, title, and interest of Grantor, if any, in and to (a) 
any and all roads, streets, alleys, and ways (open or proposed) affecting, crossing, 
fronting or bounding said real property, including any awards made or to be made 
relating thereto including, without limitation, any unpaid awards or damages payable 
by reason of damages thereto or by reason of a widening of or changing of the grade 
with respect to same, (b) any and all strips, gores or pieces of property abutting, 
bounding or which are adjacent or contiguous to said real property (whether owned or 
claimed by deed, limitations or otherwise), (c) any and all air rights relating to said real 
property and (d) any and all reversionary interests in and to said real property (said 
real property together with any and all of the related improvements, appurtenances, 
rights and interests referenced in items (i) through (viii) above are herein collectively 
referred to as the “Property”). 
 
 
TERMS OF CONVEYANCE:    The Property is to be used by Grantee for the public 
purpose of creating economic development for projects described in Sections 501 and 
504 of the Texas Local Government Code.  Ownership of the Property automatically 
reverts to the municipality if the Grantee at any time fails to use the property in that 
manner. 
 
 
EXCEPTIONS TO CONVEYANCE AND WARRANTY: 
1. All easements, rights-of-way and prescriptive rights, whether of record or not; all 
presently recorded restrictions, reservations, covenants, conditions, oil and gas leases, 
mineral severances, agreements and maintenance charges, and other instruments, other 
than liens and conveyances, that affect the property; any discrepancies, conflicts or 
shortages in area or boundary lines; any encroachments or overlapping of 
improvements; all rights, obligations and other matters emanating from and existing by 
reason of the creation, establishment, maintenance and operation of any County Water 
Improvement District, Municipal Utility District or similar governmental or quasi-
governmental agency; taxes for the year 2016, the payment of which Grantee assumes, 
and subsequent assessments for that and prior years due to change in land usage, 



Page 3 of 8 

ownership or both, the payment of which Grantee assumes; existing building and 
zoning ordinances and environmental regulations; and rights of parties in possession. 
2. Restrictive Covenants recorded as Document No. 2013-00006480 and 2013-
00006481 and Ordinance of the City of Belton recorded as Document No. 2013-00006482, 
as amended by City of Belton Ordinance No. 2016-24 passed on June 28, 2016. 
 
 
RESERVATIONS FROM CONVEYANCE: There is hereby excepted and reserved 
unto Grantor, its heirs and assigns, the free and uninterrupted use and easement of 
passing in, on and along the Property in order to inspect the compliance with the above 
referenced Ordinances and Restrictive Covenants, as may be amended in the future.   
 
Grantor, for the Consideration and subject to the Reservations from Conveyance and 
the Exceptions to Conveyance and Warranty, grants, sells, and conveys to Grantee the 
Property, together with all and singular the rights and appurtenances thereto in any 
way belonging, to have and to hold it to Grantee and Grantee’s heirs, successors, and 
assigns forever.  Grantor binds Grantor and Grantor’s heirs and successors to warrant 
and forever defend all and singular the Property to Grantee and Grantee’s heirs, 
successors, and assigns against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim 
the same or any part thereof, by through or under Grantor, but not otherwise, and 
except as to the Reservations from Conveyance and the Exceptions to Conveyance and 
Warranty. 
 
When the context requires, singular nouns and pronoun include the plural. 
 
 
       CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS,  

a Texas municipality 
 
          By: 
       ____________________________________ 
       Sam Listi, City Manager 

 
 

  



Page 4 of 8 

(ACKNOWLEDGMENT) 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF BELL  
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of 
_______________, 2016, by Sam Listi, City Manager of the City of Belton, Texas, a Texas 
municipality on behalf of said municipality. 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS 
 
 
 
AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO:  PREPARED IN THE LAW OFFICES OF: 
 
______________________________  MESSER, POTTS & MESSER, P.C. 
______________________________  P.O. BOX 969 
______________________________  BELTON, TEXAS 76513 
 
14-056 
NP/ss 
  



Page 5 of 8 

Exhibit “A” 

 
  



Page 6 of 8 

 
  



Page 7 of 8 

Exhibit “B” 

 
  



Page 8 of 8 

 



IH 35 SERVICE RD

E 6TH AVE

TAYLORS VALLEY RD1705

1525

2201

603

1600

1702

2200

2303

36.326
Acres

13.76
Acres

N
O

L
A

N
C

R
E

E
K

L E O N
R I V E R

§̈¦35

Path: E:\City of Belton Projects Folders\Maps and Data\City Departments\Planning Department\Sam's Maps\Rockwool\Rockwool Revised.mxd

Maps and data are for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering or surveying purposes. 
They do not represent an on-the-ground survey and represent only the approximate relative location of property boundaries. No warranty is made by the City of Belton regarding specific accuracy or completeness.

BEDC 50.086 Acres
City Limits

0 150 30075
Feet

µ

Map Date: 2/24/2016Aerial Imagery Date: 2015



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 – Page 1 of 2   

 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #15 
     
Consider an amendment to Ordinance No. 2013-26 regulating burglar alarms within the City 
of Belton. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Police Department – Gene Ellis, Chief of Police 
 
Summary Information 
 
In 2013, the City of Belton passed an ordinance to regulate burglar alarm systems. Our 
ordinance requires permits for commercial burglary/intrusion alarms, which are renewable 
every three years. Residential burglar alarms are not required to be permitted. Permits are 
not required for alarm systems that are not monitored by an alarm company, cannot be 
heard outside the premises, and only alert the occupant/owner of the premises. The 
ordinance establishes a false alarm service fee for false alarms in excess of four per 12-
month period. 
 
The vast majority of alarms BPD responds to are false, and we had hoped this ordinance 
would reduce the number of false alarms. Most false alarms are caused by faulty equipment 
or human error. Response to false alarms has an adverse impact on police operations; 
however, a properly functioning alarm system can be an excellent tool in the prevention of 
crime and the apprehension of criminals. Local regulation of burglar alarm systems has 
proven effective in the reduction of false alarm calls in many communities. However, we 
have not noticed a significant reduction in false alarm calls since enacting the ordinance. 
The management of the permits and false alarm billing has created an additional workload 
as well.  
 
We propose amending the ordinance by repealing the sections regarding the permitting 
process and retaining the provision that makes it a violation to knowingly operate a 
malfunctioning alarm system. We have a small number of businesses who have excessive 
false alarms, most often caused by equipment malfunctions. Some choose not to repair their 
systems even after receiving notice of the issue. We propose that those with more than 10 
false alarms in any single (calendar) quarter may be subject to being summoned into 
municipal court if they do not repair their alarm system within ten (10) business days after 
receiving written notice of the issue. Ten false alarms in three months before action is taken 
is a very lenient number and well in excess of the four allowed in the existing ordinance.  
The penalty provision in the ordinance will only be used in extreme cases when a person or 
business fails to correct the issues causing the false alarms. Our goal is the reduction of 
excessive false alarms and not penalizing individuals or businesses for accidental or 
unintended alarm activation.  
 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 28, 2016 – Page 2 of 2   

 

Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the proposed changes to the ordinance amending Chapter 11 of 
the Code or Ordinances, regarding burglar alarm systems.   
 
Attachments 
Current Ordinance with markup 
Proposed Ordinance 



ORDINANCE NO. 2013-26 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 11 OF THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING ARTICLE VI, “BURGLAR ALARM SYSTEMS”, 
INCLUDING CERTAIN DEFINITIONS, PERMIT REQUIREMENTS; ESTABLISHING 
PROCEDURES, VIOLATIONS AND EXCEPTIONS; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR 
PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING A 
PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Belton has determined a need exists to 

regulate burglar alarms within the corporate city limits of Belton; and 
 

WHEREAS, police response to burglar alarms have an impact on the safety and welfare 
of the public since they involve the use of police resources, often in circumstances where the 
alarm is false; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Belton City Council has deemed it important to regulate burglar alarm 
systems in the City of Belton, and due to their effect on police resources, make them subject to 
standards in order to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public within the corporate 
city limits of Belton. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

PART 1. All of the recitals and preambles hereinabove stated in this ordinance are 
hereby found and declared to be true and correct and are incorporated herein and made a part 
of this ordinance. 

 
PART 2. Chapter 11 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Belton, Texas, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 
 

CHAPTER 11, ARTICLE VI  
BURGLAR ALARM SYSTEMS 

 
DIVISION 1. GENERALLY 

 
Sec.11-125. Definitions. 

 
For the purpose of this article, the following terms shall be defined as follows: 
 
Alarm Company means any person who sells, installs, converts, services, or monitors 
an alarm system. 
 
Alarm notification means a notification from or activation of an alarm system that is 
intended to summon the police and designed either to be initiated purposely by a 
person or automatically by a response to stimulus characteristic of unauthorized 
intrusion. 
 



2 
 

Alarm site means a single premise or location (one street address including apartment 
number, suite number, etc.) served by an alarm system or systems under the control of 
one person. Each tenant unit in a multi-unit structure or complex shall be considered a 
separate alarm system if served by a separate alarm system. 
 
Alarm system means a device or system that emits, transmits, or relays a signal 
intended to summon, or that would reasonably be expected to summon, police services 
of the city, including, but not limited to, local alarms. Alarm system does not include: 
 

(1) an alarm installed on a vehicle unless the vehicle is permanently located at a 
site; nor 

(2) an alarm system designed to alert only the occupants or inhabitants of the 
premises where the alarm system is installed, but only if such alarm 
notification cannot be heard outside the premises where the alarm system is 
installed or which does not have a local alarm. 

 
Burglary means the acts described at Texas Penal Code §§ 30.02 and 30.03. 
 
Commercial means a non-residential property engaged in commercial business, 
government services, or non-profit activities.  
 
Excessive False Alarms means more than ten (10) false alarms in any calendar 
quarter (3 months). 
 
False Alarm Notification means an alarm notification to the police department, when 
the responding officer, on reasonable investigation, as required by Section 214.196, 
“On-Site Inspection Required,” of Chapter 214 of the Texas Local Government Code, 
finds no evidence of unauthorized intrusion, attempted unauthorized intrusion, robbery, 
attempted robbery or other illegal activity.  
 
Local Alarm means any Alarm System that annunciates an alarm only by an internal or 
external audio device. 
 
Monitoring means the process by which an alarm company receives signals from an 
alarm system and relays an alarm notification to the city. 
 

DIVISION 2. PERMIT 
 
Sec. 11-126. Required. 
 
A commercial alarm system in the City of Belton may be operated only with a valid 
alarm permit issued by the city. A separate alarm permit is required for each alarm 
system on each alarm site. 
 
Sec.11-127. Fee. 
 
There is no fee for a permit. 



3 
 

Sec. 11-128. Application. 
 

(1) Upon receipt of a completed application form, the city shall issue a commercial 
alarm permit to an applicant. 

(2) An application for a commercial alarm permit must be made on a form provided 
by the city. 

(3) The application shall be signed and verified by the applicant, whether owner, 
partner, corporation, or other. 

(4) Information contained in the records maintained by the city pursuant to this 
Article and that concerns the location of an alarm system, the name of the 
occupant of an alarm system site, or the type of alarm system used is 
confidential and may be disclosed only as permitted by law. Nothing in this article 
shall prohibit the use of such information for legitimate law enforcement purposes 
and for enforcement of this ordinance. 

(5) Persons operating a newly activated or reactivated commercial alarm system 
shall notify the police department after commencing operation of the address of 
the alarm site, the name and the address of the operator, and of any contact 
persons.  

(6) An alarm permit may not be transferred to another person or another alarm site 
and shall be valid only for the alarm site designated in the permit. A permit holder 
shall inform the police department of any change that alters any information listed 
on the permit application within five business days. No fee shall be assessed for 
such changes. 

 
Sec. 11-129. Alarm Permit Duration, Renewal and Inspection. 
 
(1) An alarm permit is issued for three (3) years and must then be renewed upon 
submission of an updated application. 
 
(2) A permit shall not be renewed if the applicant owes outstanding service fees at other 
alarm sites for which he is the permit holder.  
 
Sec. 11-130. Duties of Person in Control of an Alarm System Permit Holder. 
 
(1) A permit holder or person in control of an alarm system shall: 

a) Maintain the premises containing an alarm system in a manner that ensures 
proper operation of the alarm system; 

b) Maintain the alarm system in a manner that will minimize false alarm 
notifications; 

c) Respond or cause a representative to respond within a reasonable period of time 
when notified by the city to repair or inactivate a malfunctioning alarm system, to 
provide access to the premises, or to provide security for the premises; 

d) Not intentionally activate an alarm for any reason other than an occurrence of an 
event that the alarm system was intended to report. 

 



4 
 

(2) A permit holder or person in control of an alarm system shall not allow alarm signals 
to be reported through a relaying intermediary that does not comply with the 
requirements of this article or that is not licensed by the Texas Board of Private 
Investigators and Private Security Agencies. 
 
(3) A person in control of an alarm system shall repair a malfunctioning alarm system or 
correct issues causing excessive false alarms after receiving written notice of the 
excessive false alarms from the Belton Police Department.  
 
Sec. 11-131. Duties of an Alarm Company. 
 
Any person or his agent who sells, installs, or converts, a commercial alarm system in 
the City of Belton shall: 

a) Inform permit holder or a person in control of alarm system of the city ordinance 
requiring permits for alarm systems; 

b) Provide proper operating instructions for alarm system to include guidelines for 
how to avoid false alarms. 
 

Sec. 11-132. Monitoring Procedures 
 
(1) Any alarm company engaged in the business of monitoring alarm systems in the city 
shall: 

a) Report alarm signals by using telephone numbers designated by the city; 
b) Before requesting police response to an alarm system signal, attempt to verify 

every alarm signal, except a duress, holdup, or panic alarm activation, by 
telephone call to the alarm site; 
 

(2) When reporting an alarm notification to the city, provide: 
a) The address of the alarm site from which the alarm notification originated; 
b) All available information (north, south, front, back, floor, etc.) about the location of 

the alarm; 
c) Type of alarm activation (silent or audible, interior or perimeter); 
d) Contact the permit holder or any of the individuals listed in the permit application 

as persons able and agreeing to receive notification of an alarm activation at any 
time of the alarm activation. 
 

Section 11-133. Residential Alarm Systems 
 
A permit is not required for residential alarm systems. The police department shall 
establish a voluntary alarm registration program for residential properties to allow 
residents the opportunity to provide their emergency contact information if desired, as 
well as, in the event of valid alarm activation.  
 
Sec. 11-134. False Alarm Service Fees. 
 



5 
 

The holder of a commercial alarm permit or person in control of any alarm system in the 
City of Belton (to include residential alarms) shall pay a service fee for each false alarm 
notification in excess of four (4) that is emitted from an alarm site, or in the case of an 
apartment complex from each individual residential unit, within a twelve (12) month 
period. The City Council of the City of Belton shall set the amount of the service fees in 
its Fee & Rate Schedule. 
 
Sec. 11-135. Reinstatement of Permit. 
 
A person whose alarm permit has been revoked may have the permit reinstated if the 
person: 
 

a) Submits an updated application and pays a permit reinstatement fee in 
accordance with this ordinance; 

b) Pays all outstanding false alarm (service) fees assessed under this ordinance for 
which a bill has been issued; 

c) A reinstated permit expires the same date on which the original permit would 
have expired had it not been revoked. 

 
Sec. 11-136. Violations; Penalties; Corporations, Partnerships and Other Legal 
Entities. 
 
(1) A person commits an offense if he operates or causes to be operated a commercial 
alarm system in the City of Belton without a valid permit issued under this article. 
 
(2) An alarm company, an alarm permit holder, or a person in control of any alarm 
system, commits an offense if he violates any provision of this ordinance by either 
commission of an act that is forbidden or omission of a duty or responsibility imposed 
upon him by this ordinance. 
 
Sec. 11-137. Government Immunity and Disclaimer. 
 
(1) Registration of an alarm system is not intended to, nor will it, create a contract, duty 
or obligation, either expressed or implied, of response. Any and all liability and 
consequential damage resulting from the failure to respond to a notification is hereby 
disclaimed and governmental immunity as provided by law is retained. 
 
(2) By registering an alarm system, the permit holder person in control of the alarm 
system acknowledges that police response may be based on factors such as. 
availability of police units, priority of calls, weather conditions, traffic conditions, 
emergency conditions staffing levels. 
 

PART 3. Penalty. Any person or persons, firm or corporation which violates any 
of the provisions of this ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a Class C misdemeanor, 
and upon conviction, shall be fined not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor more than five 
hundred dollars ($500.00) for each offense, and each violation hereof shall be deemed 



6 
 

a separate and distinct offense for each of said days and shall be punishable as such.  
 
 PART 4. No Duty Assumed. In undertaking the enforcement of this ordinance, 
the City of Belton is assuming an undertaking only to promote the general health, safety 
and welfare of its citizens. The City of Belton is not assuming any duty or obligation, nor 
is it imposing any duty and/or obligation on its officers and/or employees, nor is it liable 
in money damages or otherwise to any person who claims that the City of Belton and/or 
one of its officers and/or employees breached any such obligation and the breach 
proximately caused injury. 

 
PART 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and 

after its passage in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Belton, 
Texas, and it is accordingly so ordained. 
 

PART 6. Repealing Clause. That all Ordinances or parts of ordinances in 
conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 

PART 7. Savings Clause. If any provision of this ordinance shall be held to be 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remainder of such ordinance shall continue in full force 
and affect the same as if such invalid or unconstitutional provision had never been a 
part hereof. 
 

PART 8. Code Inclusion. That it is the intention of the City Council and is 
hereby ordained that the provisions of this ordinance shall become a part of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Belton, Texas, and that sections of this ordinance may be 
renumbered or re-lettered to accomplish such intention. 
 

PART 9. Open Meetings. It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this ordinance is passed is open to the public as required, and that 
public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by 
the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 28th day of June, 2016. 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor  

 
ATTEST:       
 
 
_______________________________   
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk  



ORDINANCE NO. 2016-29 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 11 OF THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING ARTICLE VI, “BURGLAR ALARM SYSTEMS”, 
INCLUDING CERTAIN DEFINITIONS, PERMIT REQUIREMENTS; ESTABLISHING 
PROCEDURES, VIOLATIONS AND EXCEPTIONS; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR 
PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING A 
PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Belton has determined a need exists to 

regulate burglar alarms within the corporate city limits of Belton; and 
 

WHEREAS, police response to burglar alarms have an impact on the safety and welfare 
of the public since they involve the use of police resources, often in circumstances where the 
alarm is false; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Belton City Council has deemed it important to regulate burglar alarm 
systems in the City of Belton, and due to their effect on police resources, make them subject to 
standards in order to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the public within the corporate 
city limits of Belton. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

PART 1. All of the recitals and preambles hereinabove stated in this ordinance are 
hereby found and declared to be true and correct and are incorporated herein and made a part 
of this ordinance. 

 
PART 2. Chapter 11 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Belton, Texas, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 
 

CHAPTER 11, ARTICLE VI  
BURGLAR ALARM SYSTEMS 

 
DIVISION 1. GENERALLY 

 
Sec.11-125. Definitions. 

 
For the purpose of this article, the following terms shall be defined as follows: 
 
Alarm Company means any person who sells, installs, converts, services, or monitors 
an alarm system. 
 
Alarm notification means a notification from or activation of an alarm system that is 
intended to summon the police and designed either to be initiated purposely by a 
person or automatically by a response to stimulus characteristic of unauthorized 
intrusion. 
 



2 
 

Alarm site means a single premise or location (one street address including apartment 
number, suite number, etc.) served by an alarm system or systems under the control of 
one person. Each tenant unit in a multi-unit structure or complex shall be considered a 
separate alarm system if served by a separate alarm system. 
 
Alarm system means a device or system that emits, transmits, or relays a signal 
intended to summon, or that would reasonably be expected to summon, police services 
of the city, including, but not limited to, local alarms. Alarm system does not include: 
 

(1) an alarm installed on a vehicle unless the vehicle is permanently located at a 
site; nor 

(2) an alarm system designed to alert only the occupants or inhabitants of the 
premises where the alarm system is installed, but only if such alarm 
notification cannot be heard outside the premises where the alarm system is 
installed or which does not have a local alarm. 

 
Burglary means the acts described at Texas Penal Code §§ 30.02 and 30.03. 
 
Commercial means a non-residential property engaged in commercial business, 
government services, or non-profit activities.  
 
Excessive False Alarms means more than ten (10) false alarms in any calendar 
quarter (3 months). 
 
False Alarm Notification means an alarm notification to the police department, when 
the responding officer, on reasonable investigation, as required by Section 214.196, 
“On-Site Inspection Required,” of Chapter 214 of the Texas Local Government Code, 
finds no evidence of unauthorized intrusion, attempted unauthorized intrusion, robbery, 
attempted robbery or other illegal activity.  
 
Local Alarm means any Alarm System that annunciates an alarm only by an internal or 
external audio device. 
 
Monitoring means the process by which an alarm company receives signals from an 
alarm system and relays an alarm notification to the city. 
 

DIVISION 2. PERMIT 
 

Sec. 11-126. DELETED 
 
Sec. 11-127. DELETED 
 
Sec. 11-128. DELETED 
 
Sec. 11-129. DELETED 
 
 



3 
 

Sec. 11-130. Duties of Person in Control of an Alarm System. 
 
(1) A person in control of an alarm system shall: 

a) Maintain the premises containing an alarm system in a manner that ensures 
proper operation of the alarm system; 

b) Maintain the alarm system in a manner that will minimize false alarm 
notifications; 

c) Respond or cause a representative to respond within a reasonable period of time 
when notified by the city to repair or inactivate a malfunctioning alarm system, to 
provide access to the premises, or to provide security for the premises; 

d) Not intentionally activate an alarm for any reason other than an occurrence of an 
event that the alarm system was intended to report. 

 
(2) A person in control of an alarm system shall not allow alarm signals to be reported 
through a relaying intermediary that does not comply with the requirements of this 
article or that is not licensed by the Texas Board of Private Investigators and Private 
Security Agencies. 
 
(3) A person in control of an alarm system shall repair a malfunctioning alarm system or 
correct issues causing excessive false alarms after receiving written notice of the 
excessive false alarms from the Belton Police Department.  
 
Sec. 11-131. Duties of an Alarm Company. 
 
Any person or his agent who sells, installs, or converts a commercial alarm system in 
the City of Belton shall: 

a) Inform a person in control of alarm system of the city ordinance for alarm 
systems; 

b) Provide proper operating instructions for alarm system to include guidelines for 
how to avoid false alarms. 
 

Sec. 11-132. Monitoring Procedures. 
 
(1) Any alarm company engaged in the business of monitoring alarm systems in the city 
shall: 

a) Report alarm signals by using telephone numbers designated by the city; 
b) Before requesting police response to an alarm system signal, attempt to verify 

every alarm signal, except a duress, holdup, or panic alarm activation, by 
telephone call to the alarm site; 
 

(2) When reporting an alarm notification to the city, provide: 
a) The address of the alarm site from which the alarm notification originated; 
b) All available information (north, south, front, back, floor, etc.) about the location of 

the alarm; 
c) Type of alarm activation (silent or audible, interior or perimeter); 



4 
 

d) Contact the persons able and agreeing to receive notification of an alarm 
activation at any time of the alarm activation. 
 

Sec. 11-133. Residential Alarm Systems. 
 
The police department shall establish a voluntary alarm registration program for 
residential properties to allow residents the opportunity to provide their emergency 
contact information if desired, as well as, in the event of valid alarm activation.  
 
Sec. 11-134. DELETED 
 
Sec. 11-135. DELETED 
 
Sec. 11-136. Violations; Penalties; Corporations, Partnerships and Other Legal 
Entities. 
 
An alarm company, an alarm permit holder, or a person in control of any alarm system, 
commits an offense if he violates any provision of this ordinance by either commission 
of an act that is forbidden or omission of a duty or responsibility imposed upon him by 
this ordinance. 
 
Sec. 11-137. Government Immunity and Disclaimer. 
 
(1) Registration of an alarm system is not intended to, nor will it, create a contract, duty 
or obligation, either expressed or implied, of response. Any and all liability and 
consequential damage resulting from the failure to respond to a notification is hereby 
disclaimed and governmental immunity as provided by law is retained. 
 
(2) By registering an alarm system, the person in control of the alarm system 
acknowledges that police response may be based on factors such as. availability of 
police units, priority of calls, weather conditions, traffic conditions, emergency conditions 
staffing levels. 
 

PART 3. Penalty. Any person or persons, firm or corporation which violates any 
of the provisions of this ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a Class C misdemeanor, 
and upon conviction, shall be fined not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor more than five 
hundred dollars ($500.00) for each offense, and each violation hereof shall be deemed 
a separate and distinct offense for each of said days and shall be punishable as such.  
 
 PART 4. No Duty Assumed. In undertaking the enforcement of this ordinance, 
the City of Belton is assuming an undertaking only to promote the general health, safety 
and welfare of its citizens. The City of Belton is not assuming any duty or obligation, nor 
is it imposing any duty and/or obligation on its officers and/or employees, nor is it liable 
in money damages or otherwise to any person who claims that the City of Belton and/or 
one of its officers and/or employees breached any such obligation and the breach 
proximately caused injury. 



5 
 

 
PART 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and 

after its passage in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Belton, 
Texas, and it is accordingly so ordained. 
 

PART 6. Repealing Clause. That all Ordinances or parts of ordinances in 
conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 

PART 7. Savings Clause. If any provision of this ordinance shall be held to be 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remainder of such ordinance shall continue in full force 
and affect the same as if such invalid or unconstitutional provision had never been a 
part hereof. 
 

PART 8. Code Inclusion. That it is the intention of the City Council and is 
hereby ordained that the provisions of this ordinance shall become a part of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Belton, Texas, and that sections of this ordinance may be 
renumbered or re-lettered to accomplish such intention. 
 

PART 9. Open Meetings. It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this ordinance is passed is open to the public as required, and that 
public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by 
the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 28th day of June, 2016. 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor  

 
ATTEST:       
 
 
_______________________________   
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk  


	Workshop Agenda
	#WS2 - Growth Management Framework
	#WS3 - Management of Construction in ROW
	#WS4 - Stormwater Education

	Regular Meeting Agenda
	City Manager's Memo
	#4A - Minutes 061416 Workshop
	#4B - Minutes 061416
	#5 - Staff Report - Zoning Change 501 E. Avenue I
	#5 - Attachments

	#6 - Staff Report - Zoning Change Rockwool Property
	#6 - Attachments

	#7 - Staff Report - Re-plat 93 Quarters Place
	#7 - Attachments

	#8 - Staff Report - Tree Replacement or Fee
	#8 - Attachments

	#9 - Staff Report - Front Yard Fence
	#9 - Attachments

	#10 - Staff Report - Cul-de-sac and Access
	#10 - Attachments

	#11 - Staff Report - Parkland
	#11 - Attachments

	#12 - Staff Report - Growth Management Framework
	#12 - Attachments

	#13 - Staff Report - Non-Emergency Ambulance Service
	#13 - Attachments

	#14 - Staff Report - Rockwool Superfund Site
	#14 - Attachments

	#15 - Staff Report - Burglar Alarms
	#15 - Attachments

	Contact name: City of Belton
	Contact agency: PO Box 120
	Contact address: 1502 Holland Road
	Contact address1: Belton, Texas 76513
	Contact phone: (254) 933-5823
	Contact e-mail: 


